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Official translation of o document into English. For identification purposes, it is sealed with the tronslotor’s stamp. This

translation has been mode by Clemencio Poredes Tejada, an official transiator duly recognized by the Ministry af Justice and
authorized, Res. number 6694 of 1978

SCOTIABANK COLPATRIA S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Stalement of Financial Position
(Expressed in millons of Colombian pesos)

December 31, Drecember 31,
Hote 2024 2023
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 9 % 2.686.277 2.576,346
Financial investment assets 6120571 4.480.6G2
A falr value through profit or loss 1.700.192 GE2. 956
Dbt instruments 10 1.654.722 BE3112
Equity instrements 10 45.470 19,844
At fair value through other comprehensive income 2,988,305 2,230,081
Debl instruments 10 2,841,208 2 098,135
Equity instruments 10 145.099 133,945
At amortized cost 10 1.443.074 1.567.625
Trading darivativas 11 621,167 1.709.144
Hedging derivalives 1y 11472 179,368
Loan portfolic and financial leasing transactions 12 28352015 20,248,914
Consumer portfolio 18,354,502 10,230,148
Commercial portiolio 9,324 004 12.015.350
Less: Impairment of partfolio and financial leasing transactions {1.326.581) {1.3650.502)
Other aceounts recaivable, net 13 332.284 BET.5TH
Current incoms tax, net 18 1.079.849 BED. 4564
Mon-curret assets held for sale, net 14 11,773 19271
Property and eqguipment, net 15 434217 496.914
Investment property, not 16 93.2682 130.2M
Intangible assets, net 17 492 636 638.091
Goodwill 1 112.974 112.974
Deferred income tax, net 256,064 138.806
Other assats, net 19 240,536 260,003
TOTAL ASSETS S T A Y
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Clemencia Paredes Tejada
Official Translater of English - French - Spanish

Official transtation of a document into English. For identification purposes, it is sealed with the translator’s stamp. This

transhation hos been made by Clemencia Paredes Tejada, an officlal transiater didy recagrized by the Ministry of lustice and
authorized, Res. number 6094 of 1978,

SCOTIABANK COLPATRIA 5.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
(Expressed in millions of Colombian pesos)

Decembar 31, December 31,
Note 2024 2 2023

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Depesits and liabilities L 26.341.298 78141 927
Financial obligations 21 6.500.2068 6.508 629
Qutstanding investment securities 25 1.210.785 1,373,606
Trading derivatives i1 64T 265 1352523
Hedging derivatives 11 T77.085 234,948
Employee benefits 22 B2.810 7.2
Provislons 23 15112 13.098
Accounts payable and other llabllities 24 547911 503,468
Current incoma tax, net 18 39

Deferred Income tax, net 282,733 30 134
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 35785937  38.508.589

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TGO THE CONTROLLING COMPANY'S SHAREHOLDERS

lssued cagital 206 3568318 358318
Reserves 26 1.420.502 1.728 805
Share issue premium & 409,189 908,189
Other comprehensive income 26 az2.215" 237 BAA
First-time adoption 80.133 b6 522
Met income for the pariod {124.959) (250.005)
Retained earnings 429,301 IT2.6M
TOTAL CONTROLLING EQUITY 3163699 3444331
NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST 417 13,882
TOTAL EQUITY 3467870 3.458.214
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 38953807  42.056.803

Motes 1 to 36 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statemeants.

Glga Lucla Varon Paloming Fermanda Pérez Herndnder Claudia Lillana Laguna Hidalgn
Legal Regresentative [*) Accountant (%) Tan Auditer of Scotiabank Colpatriab.a
Professional Card 16634 1-T Professional Card 1557231
EPMG 505 member
[See my report of February 28, 2025)

(") We, the undersigned Legal Representalive and the Public Accountant, hereby cerlify that we have previously verifiad the
slatements contained in these consolidated financlal statements and that they have been prepared in accordance with the
information faithfully taken from he accounting books of the Bank and its subsidiaries,
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Clemencla Paredes Tejada
Official Translator of English - French - Spanish

Official transiotion of u document inte English. For identification purpases, it is seoled with the translotor's stamp. This
translation hus been made by Clemencia Poredes Tejuda, an officiol translator duly recognized by the Ministry of Justice and
authorized, Res. number 6694 of 1978.

SCOTIABANK COLPATRIA 5.4, AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidaled Statement of Incoms
{Exprassed in milions of Golomblan pesos)

For the yoars ended on

Docamber 31, Decembar 34,

Mo 0w 2023
Interast and valuation income 1 4,986,481 5.652.183
Lean portfolo and linancial leasing 12 4405851 £.112.346
Valuation of financial asseds ol fair value, net 17514 117,693
Valuabion of debt financlal assels at amortized cost, not 147,200 158,107
Gain on salo of investments, net . 82,173
Valualion and settlement of derivatives, net BE,128 .
Other interest, et 228,927 1774
Interest and valuation expense {2.869.312) (3.702.738)
Customer deposits 20 (2.379.241) (3077795
Finaneial obligations and outstanding investment securilios 2 (Go1.004) {BT0.5E3)
Loss on sale of investmants, net {19.062) .
Walsation and settlement of derivadives, nel I AL (34 4270)
INTEREST AND VALUATION INCOME, NET 1997149 1.860.445
Imgairment of loan portfollo and accounts recelvable, not 92,13  (1.457.043) {1.480.377)
INTEREST AND VALUATION INCOME, NET AFTER i
IMPAIRMENT 540,106 369068
Income fram commissions and olher services 27 1313729 1256173
Expenses on commisslons and other sorvices s (sd3a24) (G20.938)
INCOME FROM COMMISSIONS, NET g 670,605 [ ET
Impalrment of the value of non<financlal assots (12.785) 123.770)
Employes benefit expense m (B62.528) {G0G.061)
Other incoma F ] 453,062 614073
Other expenses 0 (1.449.859) (1. 186.763)
PROFIT OR LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX {164.409) {386.213)
Incame tax 18 36.749 112,087
HNET INCOME FOR THE PERIOD ) _{124.660) (254.161)
HET INCOME FOR THE PERIOD ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Sharetwidders of the conbroling company {124.5654) (250,055
MNon-conkrolling inleras| 299 {4.126)
MET INCOME FOR THE PERIGD 5 1246600  (25ai60)

Moles 1o 38 are an integral part of tha consobdated fnancial statements,

CHES Lucia Varcn Pal orng Fernanda Pédree Herndmdir Daudia Ullama Laguas Hidslgo
Legal Representative |*) Bccoumlamt [*) Tax fauditor of Scotlabank Calpatriasi,
Pralessional Card 166341.T Professional Card 155723-T
EPMG 505 mennbor
[See my repoet of Febeusry 28, 2025]

1) We, the undersigned Legal Raprasentatve and lhe Pulblic Accountant, hereby certify that we hane proviously verified
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Clemencia Paredes Tejada
Official Translator of English - French - Spanish

Officivl transiotion of o document into English. For identification purposes, it is sealed with the translatar’s stamp. This

tronsiotion has been made by Clemencia Paredes Tejoda, on afficial translatar duly recognized by the Ministry af Justice and
outhorized, Res, number G694 of 1978

SCOTIABANK COLPATRIA 5.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of ather Comprahensive Income
(Expressed in millions of Colombian pesos)

Fer tha years ended on

Decemiber 31, December 31,
Mate 2024 23

MET INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 5 {124.660) {254 4617
ITEMS THAT MAY BE SUBSEQUENTLY RECLASSIFIED INTO NET 4 148316
INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 3400 e
Hedge accounting

(Loss) on cash flow hadging darivativas, net (5.321) (7.378)

Deferred tax on cash flow hedging derivatives, nat 18 2.129 1.573
Investments at fair value through QCI

(Loss) gain on investments in debt securities. net (33.683) 197,530

Deferred tax on invastmants in debt securities, net 18 13473 {B1,508)
ITEMS THAT WILL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED INTO NET INCOME FOR )
THE PERIOD (132.271) {34.753)
Investments at fair value through QGI

Gain on investmeants in equity instruments, net 8.964 15472

Deferred tax on investmants in equity instruments, net 18 (1.297) 1.350
Lean portfolio

:rpr;::l‘oh impairment adjustment for consolidated financial statemant (216.378) (79.346)

Deferred tax on koan portfolio impairment edjustment for consalidated 75.440 T TH

financial statement purpases Ty
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE NET INCOME FOR THE PERIOD, NET OF (155.673) 76.863
TAXES b
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE NET INCOME FOR THE PERIOD $ (280.333) {178.298)
OTHER CGOMPREHENSIVE NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Ehareholders of the contralling company (2R0632) (174,172}
Mon-controfing interest 280 4.126)
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE NET INCOME FOR THE PERIOD $  (280.333) {178.298)
Motes 1 1o 36 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Olga Lucia Varon Paloming Fernanda Pérez Herndndez Claudia UIl'ana'l.awna Hidalge
Legal Representative (*) Accountant [*) Tax Muditor of Scotiabank Colpatria S
Professlonal Card 166341-T Prolessional Card 1557237
KPMG 5,05 mamber

{3z my report of February 28, 2025)

(7} We, the undersigned Legal Representative and the Public Accountant, hereby cortify that we have sz '}‘ﬂ[ﬂ | AhPuredes T
statements contained in these consolidated financial stalements and that they have bean prepared in accor h& WL”.{.OH{'L&%M:.-
5 el i) LA

information faithfully taken from the accounting books of the Bank and its subsidiaries, -5 gy o T
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Clemencia Paredes Tejada
Official Translator of English - French - Spanish

Official transtation of a document into English. For identification purposes, it is seoled with the translotor’s stamp.  This
transtation hos been mode by Clemencia Poredes Tefado, on afficial transiator duly recognized by the Ministry of Justice and

aulhorized, Res. number 6694 af 1978,

SCOTIABANK COLPATRIA S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
{Expressed in milions of Calombian pasos)

Cash flowe from operating activities
Met incoms for the period

Adpestiments 1o reconcile the net income for the period with the cash

provided for {used in) operating aclivilies
Impairment for loan portfolio and leasing ransactions, not
Impairmeant of accounts receivable, nat
Impairment of non-current assets held for sale. net
Impairrment of invesment properly, net
Impairmant of other aseels, mat
Impairment of intangible assels
Impairment of property and equipment, net
Depreciation of investmant propery
Depraciation of property and equipmant
Amoriization of property and equipment
Amortization of intangible assats
Less (gain) on sake of Investments, net
Gain on valuation of investments, net
(Gain) Loss on valuation of derivate instroments, net
Gain on sale of portiolie, net
Gain on sale of property and equipment, nat
Less on sale of nen-current assels avallable for sale, net
Loss (gain) on sak of invesiment property, net
Galn on foreign exchange difforence, net
Expenses Incurred on interest on customer deposits, inancial cbligations,
and cutslanding ewestment securities
Income from interest on kean portfolio and financial leasing
Income ax recovery

Changes in operating assets and liakilities:
Decrease in dervatives, net
Decrease in koan portiolio and leasing fransactions
Decrease (increase) in other accounts receivabile, net
Increase in non-current asaets hald for salke
Decraasa (increase) in other assets
Deecroase in customer deposits
Increase (decrease) in employes benefils
Increase (decreasa) in provisions
Decrease in accounts payable

Intarast receivad from loan portiolio
Interest paid on deposits and liabities
Interest paid on financial obligations
Inerest paid on bonds
Paid mcomao lax
MNet cash provided for (used in) cperating activities

Notes

16, 3

17, 30

12, 29
14, 29

For the years ended on
Dacember 31, Decombar 31,
2024 s
(124.660) {254.161)
1453466 1.478.290
3677 2.08r
B8 )
8843
3.108
- T
225 L4}
00 141
59,081 ]
1.264 1,464
155.290 121.942
19.062 {B2.173)
(264.714) (275 800)
(B8.128) 34 420
(73.593) (113.351)
{4.433) {2 555)
1,085 2744
11.139 (191}
(195.649) (228.055)
2970250 3748318
(4.405.891) (8.112.348)
________ (38.749) (112,057
(505.999) (709, 285)
3IT0.A%0 1151
1.981.681 1,820,774
551.714 {617 3BE)
{8.177) (23.835)
104,669 (147.076)
{2.607.103) (3,764 414}
5.6084 (4. HEE)
2.014 {5202
{47.970) (32829
A AB3 AGG ERUGIRL
(2545 586) {22 035,006
{435.340) {485.016G)
(177.125) (187.532)
(409.911) (NG T
TEGOET {2.828.308)
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Clemencia Paredes Tejada
Official Translatar of English - French - Spanish

Officiol translation of @ document inta English. For identification purposes, it is sealed with the translator’s stomp, This
translation has been made by Clemencia Foredes Tejuda, on officlal translatar duly recognized by the Ministry of Justice and
outhorized, Res, number 6694 of 1978,

SCOTIABANK COLPATRIA S5.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Slatement of Cash Flows
(Expressed In milions of Colomblan pasas)

Cash flow from investing activities
(Increase) decrease in finamoil investiment assels
Interest received from investment assels
Proceeds from the sale of property and equipmeant
Acquisition of property and equipment
Proceads from sale of Inesiment property
Addilions of inlangible susoty
Dividends declared in cash from investiments in aquity instrumeants
Net cosh (used In) provided by investing activities

Cash flow from linancing activithes
Aequisiion of inancial cbligations
Paymen of financial obligations
Paymnent of rental lees
Dividends paid in cash
Capilalizalion
Caphalization cosis
Bond paymanis
Diilribwation of CFG Godensa conlributions
Het cash provided by financing activities

Eftect ol foreign exochange differences on cash and cash equivakents
herease (decrease), nat in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents al the Leginning of the period

G annd inssh eoquivalents af the end of the period

Moles 1 1o 38 ore an inbegral part of the consolidated financial stmements,

Dlgaluda Viron Paleming
Legal Represantative (*)

Fernanda Pérez Hemdnder
Accountant|*]
Professional Cand 166341-T

For the years ended an

December 31, Drstnrmbiar 31,
Holas B S 023

{1.587.747)

(1] THE.BG0
15 50,055
(37.375)
3.euz

17 {110.535)
10, 28 ’ 6574
{1.458.276)

B, 3 311848237
o, (30.847.022)
iy {35 508) ; }
(579 (287)

- 20N

- ||,::;._!

Claudia Likanalaguna Irida'l'w_ -
Tax Auwditor of Scotiabank Colpatrda S.A.
Professional Card 155723-T
EPRG S A S mimmibser
[See my repont of February 28, 2025)

(") W, B undersigned Legal Representative and the Public Accountant, hereby cerdify thet we have previously verified the stalerments conlained
in these consolidated financial statements and that they have bean prapared In accordance with the infarm ation faithéully taken from the accounting

Iaooks: of fhe Bank and ils subsidiares.
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Clemencia Paredes Tejada
Official Translator of English - French - Spanish

OFFICIAL TRANSLATION OF A DOCUMENT INTO ENGLISH. FOR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES, IT IS SEALED WATH
THE TRANSLATOR'S STAMP. THIS TRANSLATION HAS BEEN MADE BY CLEMENCIA PAREDES TEIADA, AN OFFICIAL
TRANSLATOR DULY RECOGNIZED BY THE MINISTRY OF JUSTICE AND AUTHORIZED, RES. NUMBER 6694 OF 1978,

SCOTIABAMEK COLPATRIA 5.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2024 and 2023
(Expressed in millions of pesos)
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Clemencia Paredes Tejada
Official Translator of English - French - Spanish

Official translotion of a document into English. For identification purposes, it is seoled with the translator's stamp.
This translation has been made by Clemencia Paredes Tejoda, an officiol translator duly recognized by the Ministry
af Justice and authorized, Aes. number 6694 of 1978,
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Clemencia Paredes Tejada
Official Translator of English - French - Spanish

Official transiation of o document into English. For identification purposes, it is sealed with the transiator’s stamp.
This translotion has been made by Clemencia Paredes Tejada, an official translater duly recognized by the Ministry
of lustice and authorized, Res. number 6694 of 1978,

SCOTIABANEK COLPATRIA S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
MNotes to the Cunsolideted Financial Statements

1. Reporting Entity

Scotiabank Colpatria 5.4, (the Parent Company) (and hereinafter, “the Bank”) is a private company that
was incarporated on December ¥, 1972, under Public Deed Mo. 4458 of the Eighth Notary's Office of
Bogotd D.C., as Corporacion de Ahorro y Vivienda, becoming a Commercial Bank through Public Deed No.
03748 of October 1, 1998, of the 25™ Notary's Office of Bogotd D.C. On June 15, 2023, through Public
Deed No. B40G of the 29 Notary's Office of Bogotd D.C., the bylaws were amended, increasing the
authorized capital from 5350.000 to 5432150,

With Resolution MNo. 3352 of August 21, 1992, the Financial Superintendency of Colombia authorized
Corporacidn Colpatria UPAC Colpatria, today Scotiabank Colpatria 5.A., to operate until June 14, 2100. The
main purpose of the Bank is the execution and performance of all acts, contracts, and transactions
permitted to banking establishments, subject to the requirements, restrictions, and limitations imposed
by the laws especially those set forth in the Organic Statute of the Financial System,

The Bank and its subsidiaries have their main domicile in the city of Bogota D.C., at Carrera 7 No. 24 = 8
and as of December 31, 2024, operated through 95 offices in Colombia and had 5.333 employees [as of
December 31, 2023, they operated with 95 offices in Colombia and had 5,370 employees).

The direct and ultimate parent company of Scotiabank Colpatria S.A. is The Bank of Nova Scotia (Scotiabank
or BMS), domiciled in Toronto, Canada.

The consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2024, include the financial statements of the
Bank and the following subsidiaries (hereinafter, the Group):

Subsidiarg's Legal

Name Maln Activity Location Shareholding % (1)

Ewecution of all acts, contracts, and transactions permitted to trust

Flduciaria Scotiabank | companies, regulated by Colombdan law. Its activity is malnly

Colpatria 5.4, developed through administration, investment, guaranty, and real
estate trusts,

Bogotd, D.C. 94,64%

Scobia Securitics The develepment of commission contracts for the purchase and sale
(Colombia) .4 of securities, the distribution of investment funds, and the  Bogotd, D.C 94,90%
Comisionista de Bolsa | performance of transactions on their own account.

Im July 2023, the Financlal Superintendency of Colombia was Informed
of the shareholders” final decision not to continue with the process of
Crédito Ficil Codensa | obtaining the operating license. The business will continue to operate
54, Compaiiia de throwgh the current “commercial Agreement™ model, without any
Financlamiento—en | changes. At the General Sharehalders' Meeting held on January 16,
liguidacidn 2025, the liquidator's report and the final Rguidation account were
approved. This act was notarized by public deed No. 110 of the Tenth

Notary’s Office of the Circuit of Bogotd, on lanuary 30, 2075,

Bogotd, D.C. 50,99%

{1} The Bank's direct and indirect shareholding percentages in each of the subsidiaries have not changed as of December 31,
2024,
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SCOTIABANE COLPATRIA S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

. Basis for the Preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Declaration of Compliance with the Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards Accepted in Colombia

The consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2024, have been prepared in accordance with
the Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards accepted in Colombia for entities of Group 1 (IFRS Group
1) established by Law 1314 of 2009, regulated by the Sole Regulatory Decree 2420 of 2015 as amended by
Decrees 2496 of 2015, 2131 of 2016, 2170 of 2017, 2483 of 2018, 2270 of 2019, 1432 of 2020, 938 of 2021,
1611 of 2022, and 1271 of 2024, except for:

- The recognition in other comprehensive income in equity, without affecting the net Income for the
period, of the difference resulting between measuring the loan portfolio impairment in accordance with
Chapter XXXl of the Basic Accounting and Financial Circular of the Financial Superintendency of Colombia
in the separate financial statements and measuring the loan portfalio impairment under IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments,

- The recognition as an investment in a subsidiary of the investment that the Bank has in Crédito Facil
Codensa S.A. Compaiiia de Financiamiento en Liquidacidn, considering the provisions of the Financial
Superintendency of Colombia.

The IFRS Group 1 is based on the complete International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), issued and
officially translated into Spanish by the International Accounting Standards Board — IASE,

Measurement Basis

The consolidated financial staterments have been prepared based on the historical cost, except for certain
significant items included in the consclidated statement of financial position:

- Financial Instruments at Fair Value through Profit and Loss: The measurement hasis is the fair value, and
the changes are recognized in the consolidated income statement.

- Financial Instruments at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income: The measurement basis is the
fair value, and the changes are recognized in other comprehensive income.

- Derivative Financial Instruments: Measured at fair value and changes are recognized in the consolidated
income statement.

- Men-Current Assets Held for Sale: Measured at the lowest of fair value less costs to sell and the carrying
amount.

- Employee Benefits Except for Short-Term Defined Benefits and Termination Benefits: Measured using
the projected credit unit.
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SCOTIABANK COLPATRIA S A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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Functional and Presentation Currency

The items included in the Group's consolidated financial statements are expressed in the currency of the
primary economic environment where the entity operates. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Calombian pesos, which is the Group's functional and presentation currency.

All information is presented in milllons of pesos and has been rounded off to the nearest unit unless
otherwise specified.

. The Basis for the Presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements

In compliance with the requirements of the Financial Superintendency of Colombia, the Group prepares
consolidated and separate financial statements. The separate financial statements are the basis for the
distribution of dividends and other appropriations by the shareholders.

The consolidated financial statements are presented following the parameters below:

Consolidated statement of financial position: Assets and liabilities are presented in order of liquidity
and due date, respectively, as it is considered that this form of presentation provides more relevant
and reliable information for a financial institution. Consequently, in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements, the amount expected to be recovered or paid within the following twelve (12)
months and after twelve (12) months is disclosed for financial assets and liabilities.

Consolidated income statement for the year and other comprehensive income: These are presented
separately in two statements. In addition, the consolidated income statement is presented on a
discriminate basis according to the nature of the expenses, this model provides more appropriate and
relevant information.

Consolidated statement of cash flows: It is presented by the indirect method, in which the net flow
from operating activities is determined by correcting net income for the effects of items that do not
generate cash flow, net changes in assets and liabilities derived from operating activities, and for any
other item whose monetary effects are considered Investing or financing cash flows. Interest income
and expenses received and paid are part of the operating activities,

The following concepts are considered in the preparation of the consolidated statement of cash flows:
- Operating activities: These are the activities that constitute the Group’s main source of income.

Investing activities: These correspond to the acquisition, sale, or use by other means of long-term
assels and other investments nol included in cash and cash equivalents.

- Financing activities: Activities that result in changes in the size and structure of the net equity and
liabilities that are not part of aperating or Investing activities,

2. Use of Estimates and Judgments Affecting the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the Group In accordance with the Accounting
and Financial Reporting Standards accepted in Colombia (IFRS) requires management to make judgments,
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SCOTIABANK COLPATRIA 5.4, AND SUBSIDIARIES
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estimates, and assumptions about the future that affect the application of accounting policies and the
amounts of assets, liabllitles, contingent assets and liabilities at the of the consolidated statement of
financial position, as well as the income and expenses for the year. Actual results may differ from these
estimates,

The relevant estimates and assumptions are revised on a regular basis and are consistent with the Group’s
risk management. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the periad in which the estimate is
revised and in any future period affected,

Information about critical judgments and estimates in the application of accounting policies that have the
most significant effect on the consolidated financial statements is described in the fallowing notes:

Mote 5: Fair Value Estimation for Financial Instruments

Infermation about the fair values of level 1 (listed prices), level 2 (observable prices), and level 3 financial
instruments are disclosed in Note 5c.

The fair values and valuation of financial instruments are determined following the fair value hierarchy.

The Group considers observable data market data that is available and verifiable, and that reflects the
assumptions that market participants will use when pricing the asset or liability,

= MNote 10: Impairment of Investment Financial Assets.

Impairment of investment financial assets is based on the Group's best estimate of the present value of
cash flows expected to be received, taking into account key assumptions to determine the weighted
average expected loss rate. In estimating these flows, the Group makes judgments about the financial
condition of the counterparty, the future cash flows, and the value of the underlying guarantee. (See Note
7a).

Financial assets carried at amortized cost are assessed for impairment on the basis described in the
accounting palicy (see Mote 3c).

- Note 12: Impairment of Loan Portfolio

The loan portfolio impairment estimation s carried out in accordance with the guidelines of IFRS 9 under
assumptions of recovery of future cash flows taking Into account, among other criteria, the historical
behavior of loans, particular characteristics of debtors, securities for loans, among others. The Group
periodically evaluates its loan portfolio and financial leasing and determines whether there is a need to
record impairment against the net income for the accounting period,

- Mote 14: Determination of Fair Value for Mon-Current Assets Held for Sale

For the measurement of non-current assets held for sale, fair value less costs to sell is estimated based on
unobservable data.
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- Mote 15: Property and Equipment

In leases, when one of the Group's entities acts as lessee, the variables used in the determination of the
asset values by right of use in lease contracts, terms, and interest rate correspond to the best estimates
made by the Bank concerning the time of use of the assets and the financing rate that it would use for an
asset under similar conditions.

In arder to assess the iImpairment of property and equipment, it is necessary to determine whether there
are indications of value impairment and, if so, to determine the recoverable amount of the asset, based
an the higher of its fair value and its value in use, and then compare it with its carrying amount.

= Note 17: Impairment of Intangible Assets and Goodwill

The Impairment evaluation of intangible assets includes key assumptions underlying the recoverable
amaounts, including the recoverability of development costs.

The goodwill impairment evaluation requires determination of the recoverable amount of the Cash-
Generating Unit (CGU) that contains It, identified as the Bank's consumer and mortgage segment, and
calculated using the discounted free cash flow methodology at the rate representing the Bank's cost of
capital according to the Capital Asset Pricing Model (CAPM). The bank uses the best information available
at the evaluation date to determine the variables to be included in the discounted cash flow and the rate
to be used.

- Note 18; Deferred Income Tax

The Group assesses the realization over time of deferred income tax assets, which represent taxes on
future earnings, which are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position. To the extent that
tax benefits are probable, deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences and tax loss
carryforwards are recoverable,

Probable future revenues and profits are estimated in accordance with the Bank's business plan, which is
based on expectations that are considered reasonable under the circumstances,

= MNote 21: Lease Liabilities

The determination of the right-of-use liability in lease contracts follows the same estimates used to
establish the value of the right-of-use asset, i.e., variables related to terms and interest rates that
carrespond to the best estimates the Group has made regarding the time of use of the assets and the
financing rate It would use for an asset under similar conditions.,

- Mote 22: Employee Benefits
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The measurement of post-employment benefit obligations (retirement pensions) and other long-term
obligations depend on long-term premises and assumptions determined on an actuarial basis, including
estimates of the present value of projected future benefit payments, considering the probability of
potential future events, such as increases in the minimum wage, turnover indicators, and demographic
experience. These assumptions and assumptions may affect the amount and future contributions if there
is any variation. This is in accordance with the requirements of 1AS 19 Employee Benefits.

The discount rate allows for establishing future cash flows at the present value at the measurement date.
The Group determines a long-term rate that represents the investment market rate for Government bonds
that are denominated in the currency in which the benefit will be paid and considers the timing and
amounts of future benefit payments for which the Group has selected the Goavernment bond rate,

Variations in liabilities for changes in actuarial assumptions are recorded in the consolidated income
statement.

- Mote 23: Estimates for Legal Proceeding Provisions

To cover possible losses from labor, tax, and civil proceedings, the Group estimates and recognizes a
provision according to the circumstances, using management's opinion based on the concepts of the
external legal advisors. These estimates and judgments are in some cases uncertain, giving rise to
differences between actual and estimated dishursements, these differences are recognized in the period.

=  MNote 27: Commission Income

Recognition of commission income Is based on the estimation of whether the related services are rendered
at a specific point in time or over time.

f. Going Concern

During the year 2024, the Group had a financial performance similar to that of the market with impacts on
income due to a sharp drop in the usury rate and a slower decrease in the intervention rate of Banco de la
Repdblica. However, the Group has improved its financial performance compared to the previous year
leveraged on growth in expenses below the market and profitability of the consumer and commercial
portfolios. As a strategic focus, the Group has defined its strategic pillars in People, Customer, and
Sustainable and Long-Lasting Growth; focusing on the deepening of its customer base and the core of its
portfolio; on the best use of its capital stock and resources for customers and sharehaolders,

The objective has been achieved by transforming the consumer portfolio with better segmentation and
focused services, making the Corporate and Commercial Banking profitable, and deepening products,
seeking a leading position with an integral portfolio of financial solutions and alternatives. The analysis of
the current situation and future prospects leads management to conclude that, as of December 31, 2024,
there are no incidents, events, or conditions that may infer that the Bank will be liguidated or cease its
activity.
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g. Foreign Currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency (Colombian pesos) at the
exchange rate in force at the transaction date,

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated into
the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate al the date the fair value was determined.

MNon-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at the historical
cost are translated at the exchange rate at the transaction date.

As of December 31, 2024, and 2023, the exchange rates used per dollar were $ 54.409,15 (pesos) and
£3.822,05 (pesos), respectively.

3. Material Accounting Policies

The paolicles and basis of accounting established below have been consistently applied in the preparation of
the consalidated financial statements, in accordance with the Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) accepled in Colombia, including any accounting instructions by the Financial Superintendency of
Colombia, together with the exceptions described in section (a) of Note 2 of these financial statements.

In addition, the Group adopted accounting policy disclosures (Amendments to 145 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements and Statement of Practice 2) effective January 1, 2024. The amendments reguire disclosure of
‘material’ accounting policies rather than ‘significant’ accounting policies. Although the amendments did not
result in any change to the accounting policies themselves, they did have an effect on the information about
the accounting policy disclosed in section (e) of Note 2, with the term “significant’ being changed to ‘material’,

a. Basis for Consolidation

Subsidiaries: Subsidiaries are those entities over which the Bank, directly or indirectly, exercises control.
The Bank controls a subsidiary when, by being involved therein, it is exposed or has the right to some
variable returns from its involvemnent in the stake and has the ability to influence such returns through the
power exercised over the subsidiary. The Bank has power when having rights that give the ability to direct
the relevant activities. Financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date on which control commences until the date of terminatian of cantral,

Financial statements of subsidiaries used in the consolidation process correspond to the same period and
the same reporting date as those of the Bank.

Loss of Control: When control over a subsidiary is lost, the subsidiary's assets and liabilities, any related
non-controlling interest, and other components of equity are derecognized from the accounts. Any
resulting gain or loss is recognized in net income. If any interest in the subsidiary is retained, it shall be
measured at its fair value at the date on which control is lost.

5 Pareedes f el
Fuiet ek LA

i ek A

a2 T A

Y

16

PR A ]

h
. AT
R - EREA

&



Clemencia Paredes Tejada
Official Translator of English - French - Spanlish

Official translation of o document into English. For identification purposes, it is sealed with the transiator’s stamp.
This tronslation has been made by Clemencia Paredes Tejada, an official transiatar duly recognized by the Ministry
af Justice and authorized, Res. number 6694 of 1978,

SCOTIABANK COLPATRIA S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Interests in Joint Agreements: loint agreements are those over which there is joint control, established
by contracts that require unanimous consent for decisions related to activities that significantly affect the
agreement's returns. They are classified and accounted for as follows:

- Joint operation: When the Group is entitled to the assets and obligations concerning the liabilities related
to the agreement, it accounts for each asset, liability, and net income (including those held or incurred
jointly) in connection with the operation.

Transactions Eliminated from Consolidation: Intercompany balances and transactions, in addition to any
unrealized income or expenses arising from transactions between the Group's companies, are eliminated
during the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. Unrealized gains from transactions with
companies whose investment is recognized according to the equity method of accounting are eliminated
fram the investment in proportion to the Bank's interest in the investment. Unrealized losses are
eliminated in the same manner as the unrealized gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

In the consolidation process, the Bank combines the assets, liabilities, and net income of the entities in
which the Bank determines control and then proceeds to eliminate reciprocal transactions and unrealized
gains between them, The interest of non-controlling interests in controlled entities is presented in equity
separately from the Bank's shareholders' equity.

The consalidated financial statements include the assets, liabilities, equity, and net income of the Bank
and its subsidiaries.

The following is a table with details of the interests of each subsidiary:

December 31, 2024
Cantrolling Met

Entity Sharehelding % hzsets Liabilabics Equity Income for the

Year
otiabank Colpatria 5.4 Parent Company 5 38.292.622 35.533.715 2,758,907 {163.295)
S 94,90% 45,610 1629 43.981 1276
irm ' 94,64% 37,440 8573 28.867 1.539
Erwckpu bk Cade) 50,99% 786 6 780 (14)
3B.376.458 35.543.923 2.832.535 {157.544)
Flismsire rel acdjucslpent: 577.349 242014 335,335 32.585
Consolidation 5 38.953.807 35.785.937 3.167.870 {124.959)
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December 31, 2023
Controlling Met

Entiry Sharehalding % Assets Liakhilities Equity Income far the
Year
rent
Seotiabank Colpatria 5.4 e 1, 274.5¢ 18,339,713 1,940,232 (300,303)
Croamipany i
li suritios (Caol |
4 I PR LS & ] 260
Camision i [l
[=) Fla Ll ]
1} 40,78 416G 12.362 7938
alpal
bl Codensa 9.0
[ £ 2L 210 20,030 {9.564)
(en loguidacidn )
Total Bank and subsidlaries 31.387.047 38,349,547 3.038.394 {298, 260)
iminaticr 1
L LR 119,820 g9, 335
adjustmenls
Consalidation § 42.050.803 38.59H. 584 3.454%.214 {250,035])

(1} In November 2024, CFC Codensa made a partial refund of the contributians that the shareholders had made to
the entity. In this distribution, the Bank received 59.809, and the minority shareholders received $9.427,

b. Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The Group applies the requirements of IFRS 9 to determine the measurement basis of financial assets and
liabilities. The financial assets and liabilities are classified into one of the following measurement
categories, as subsequently measured at

- Amortized cost [AC)
- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI)
- Fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)

The classification is determined based on the characteristics of the cash flows of assets and liabilities, as
well as the business model used by the Group for its management,

Business Maodel Evaluation

The business model evaluation involves determining how financial assets and liabilities are managed to
generate cash flows. The evaluation of the business model is performed at the Group level, reflecting

whether the cash flows will come from obtaining contractual cash flows from the sale of financial assets
or both.

For the evaluation of the business model, the following factors are taken into consideration:

- How the performance of assets in a portfolio Is evaluated and reported to key decision-makers within
each line of business.

= The risks that affect the performance of assets held within a business model and how those risks are
managed.

- Whether the assets are held for trading purposes, i.e., assets that are acquired or contracted primarily
to sell or repurchase in the shart term or held as part of a portfolio that is managed together to earn
profits or take short-term positions.
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- How compensation is determined for the management of the lines of business of the Bank managing
the assets; and

- The frequency and volume of sales in prior periods and expectations about future sales activity.

Evaluation of Cash Flow Characteristics

The evaluation of the contractual cash flow characteristics involves the evaluation of the contractual
characteristics of an instrument to determine whether they give rise to cash flows that are consistent with
@ basic loan agreement, this Is given if only the principal and interest payments an the outstanding
principal amount are represented (SPPI).

The principal is defined as the fair value of the instrument at initial recognition. The principal may change
during the term of the instruments due to repayments,

Interest is defined as the consideration for the value of money over time and the credit risk associated
with the outstanding capital amount and for other basic lending risks and costs (liquidity risk and
administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In conducting this evaluation, consideration is given to contractual characteristics that could change the
amount or timing of contractual cash flows such that the cash flows are no longer consistent with a basic
loan agreement. If any contractual characteristic that could modify the cash flows of the instrument is
identified, such that they are no longer consistent with a basic loan agreement, the related financial assat
is classified and measured at fair value through profit and loss.

Financial Assets and Liahilities Measured at Amortized Cost

Financial assets for loan portfolio are classified at amortized cost considering that the model is placement
and collection according to the contractual terms, which give rise, on specific dates, to cash flows that are
solely payments of the principal and interest on the capital balance.

Debt instruments are measured at amortized cost if they are held in a business model whose objective is
to collect contractual cash flows, and these represent only payments of principal and interest, Debt
instruments measured at amortized cost for non-trading purposes are initially recopnized at fair value
including transaction costs, commissions, premiums, and discounts, considered an integral part of the
effactive interest rate,

All financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at amartized cost unless they correspond to
financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit and loss, including derivatives, or financial
guarantee contracts.

Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Financial assets for trading purposes are measured at fair value in the consolidated financial statements,
with transaction costs recognized immediately in the consolidated income statement,

Debt instruments are measured at fair value through consolidated net income if they are held under a
business model whose objective is not to collect contractual cash flows or If the cash flows do not
represent only payments corresponding to principal and interest,
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All financial liabilities are classified as measured subsequently at amartized cost using the effective interest
method, except for:

. Itis held in a business model where the Group benefits from changes in its value or it is held for trading
{e.g., financial derivatives), or

b. From the time of initial recognition, it has been designated to be measured at fair value through profit
and loss.

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Comprehensive Net Income

Debt instruments are measured through other comprehensive income if they are held in a business model
whaose objective is to obtain contractual cash flows representing only payments of principal and interest,
or for sale. Debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are initially
recognized at fair value and transaction costs will affect other comprehensive incame. Subsequently,
transaction costs will be amortized against the consolidated income statement using the effective Interest
method or at the time of their realization.

For debt instruments, interest income and Impairment losses (or reversals) will continue to be accounted
for in the consolidated income statement.

Equity instruments are measured at fair value through other consolidated comprehensive income; this
decision is irrevocable unless held for trading. The accumulated fair value is not recyeled through income
statements at the time of sale of the instrument. Dividend income continues to be recognized in
consolidated net income unless it represents a clear recovery of the investment cost, Transaction costs
initially capitalized are not subsequently recycled Lo consolidated net income at the time of use,

Reclassifications of Financial Assets
Debt Instruments

Reclassification of debt instruments between measurement categories may occur only if the Bank and its
subsidiaries identify a change In the business model for managing their financial assets. This
reclassification will be applied prospectively from the date of reclassification, without re-expressing
previously recagnized gains or losses or interest (including losses due to value impairment).

Equity Instruments

Reclassifications between measurement categories of equity instruments are not permitted; therefore,
after initial recognition, an investment in an equity instrument may not be reclassified,

¢. Impairment of Financial Assats

Expected impairment losses are determined based on the present value of cash flows related to default
events occurring within 12 months of the reporting period, or over the expected life of the financial
instrument depending on the credit impairment since origination. Expected losses reflect an unhiased
probability-weighted outcome that considers multiple scenarios based on reasonable and supportable
forecasts,
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The expected loss model contains a three-stage approach, which is based on the change in credit quality
of loans since initial recognition. Under stage one, there is not a significant increase In credit risk, and an
impairment loss corresponding to the next twelve months from the reporting date is recognized. Under
stage two, there is a significant increase in credit risk, and an impairment loss corresponding to the ECL
(Expected Credit Loss) - expected credit loss estimates - is recognized for the life of the loan, but loans are
nol disclosed in default. Under stage 3, where there is objective evidence of impairment, these financial
assets are classified and disclosed as impaired assets, and impairment continues to be recognized for the
whole life of the loan,

The ECL model utilizes forward-looking information using reasonable and supportable forecasts of
macrogconomic conditions in the determination of significant increases in credit risk and the
measurement of expected credit losses.

For more specific details on how the Group calculates ECLs including the use of forward-looking
macroeconomic information, please see Note 7{a) - Credit Risk.

ECL impairments are presented in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as follows:

Financial assets measured at amortized cost: as a deduction from the carrying amount of these assets.

- Debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income: Mo impairment is
recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position because the carrying amount of these
assets is adjusted to fair value. The calculated loss is discounted directly from the value and is
recagnized in other comprehensive income.

- Exposures recognized in off-balance sheet accounts including non-disbursed loan commitments, letters
of credit, and financial guarantees: as a provision recognized in other liabilities.

- When a financial instrument includes a utilized and an unutilized component, and the Bank is unable
to identify the ECL separately, the Bank presents a combined amount for both components, The joint
amount is presented as a deduction from the carrying amount of the utilized component. Any excess
presented is recognized as a provision in other liabilities.

Measurement of the Expected Credit Loss

Input data of the probability of default {PD), exposure at default (EAD), and loss given default (LGD) used
to estimate expected credit losses is modeled based on the macroeconomic variables that are most closely
related to credit losses in the relevant portfolio.

The details of these statistical parameters/input data are:
- This is an estimate of the probability of default over a given time horizon. A predetermined value can

only occur at a given paint in time during the estimated remaining useful life if the amount exposed
has not been previously derecognized and is still in the portfolio.

- EAD: An estimate of the exposure at a predetermined future date, taking into account the expected
changes in the exposure after the presentation date, including repayments of the principal and interest,
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whether contractually scheduled or otherwise, expected repayments on committed exposures, and
accrued interest on payments not made,

- LGD: An estimate of the loss resulting from an event of a default that occurs at a given point in time.
It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those the Bank would expect
to receive, including the realization of any guarantees. It is generally expressed as a percentage of EAD.

Forward-Looking Information

The measurement of expected credit losses for each stage and the evaluation of significant increases in
credit risk consider information about past events and current conditions, as well as reasonable and
supportable forecasts of future events and economic conditions. The estimation and application of
forward-looking information require significant judgment.

Macroeconomic Factors

In its models, the Group depends on a wide range of forward-looking information such as economic input,
including GDP growth, unemployment rates, bank rates, and house price indices. Input and models used
to calculate expected credit losses do not always capture all market characteristics at the date of the
consolidated financial statements. To reflect this, gualitative adjustments or overlays may be made as
temporary adjustments using an expert credit judgment.

Multiple Forward-Looking Scenarios

The Group determines the provision for credit losses using three probability-weighted forward-looking
scenarios.  Internal and external sources of information are considered to achieve an unbiased
measurement of the scenarios used, preparing the scenarios using forecasts generated by Scotia
Economics (SE). The forecasts are created using internal and external models/data which are then
maodified by SE as necessary to formulate a "base case" view of the future direction of relevant economic
variables, as well as a representative range of other possible foreseeable scenarios. The process involves
developing two additional economic scenarios and considering the relative probabilities of each outcome.
The "base casze” represents the most likely outcome and is aligned with information used by the Bank for
other purposes, such as strategic planning and budgeting. The other scenarios represent more optimistic
and pessimistic outcames.

Definition of Default:
The Bank considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- The borrower is not likely to pay its credit obligations to the Bank in full without the Bank resorting to
actions such as the collateral enforcement action (if collateral is held).

- The barrower s maore than ninety (90) days past due on any credit obligation,

- The requirements of IFRS 9 define judgments and assumptions with respect to evaluating whether
credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition and incorporating forward-looking
information in the measurement.

Impairment of Other Accounts Recelvable
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To determine the impairment of other accounts receivable, the Group applies a simplified loss model for
accounts receivable that do not contaln a significant financial component, in which impairment is
measured as the value equal to the expected credit losses over the expected life of the asset. The Group's
analysis excludes items with maturities of less than 30 days, the nature of the items and debtors is
analyzed, and the histarical behavior of accounts with uncollected balances is analyzed together with the
details of the losses.

The Group calculates credit losses based on the historical credit loss expectation for each defined asset
group, considering the type of customer, the nature of the transaction, and the type of guarantee.

To measure impairment, the information available on the evaluation date of past events, current
conditions, and forecasts of future conditions is considered.

d. Hedge Accounting

The Bank has opted to continue to apply the hedge accounting reguirements of IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: recognition and measurement. However, it has implemented additional disclosures required
by the IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and amendments related to IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”.

All hedging relationships, their objectives, and the risk management strategy to carry out these hedging
transactions are formally documented at the outset by the Bank. Hedging documentation includes
identification of the hedging instrument for the hedged item, the nature of the risk being hedged, and the
methodology for measuring the effectiveness of the hedging instrument in offsetting exposure to changes
in the fair value of the hedged item or changes in cash flows attributable to the hedged risk.

The Bank also formally evaluates, both at the inception of each hedge and on an ongoing basis, whether
the hedging instruments are highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged items. Hedge
ineffectiveness is measured and recorded in the consolidated income statement.

Fair Value Hedges

This type of hedge seeks to protect the fair value of the hedged item through the use of hedging
instruments, in general, swaps that reflect the movements of the interest rate curve, as the case may he,
In general, swaps used as hedges reflect future interest rate expectations, through the exchange of the
variable rate (IBR) vs the fixed rate.

Cash Flow Hedges

A cash flow hedge Is a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a particular
risk associated with a recognized asset or liability (i.e., future interest payments on a variable index) or
highly probable future transactions that may affect profit and loss. Cash flows associated with a group of
these items may be hedged as long as they meet the requirements detailed in the Cash Flow Hedging
Palicy established by the Bank.

For cash flow hedges, changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated as hedge accounting and
determined to be effective are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income.
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The ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognized immediately in the
"other income and expenses” item.

Effectiveness Measurement

The hedge effectiveness is measured by comparing changes in the value of the hedging Instrument with
the changes in the value of a hypothetical swap that reflects the conditions of the hedged item. In this
way, the hypothetical swap is constructed by using a notional amount equal to the hedging swap, a
variable rate that reflects the rate paid on the hedged item, and a fixed rate in pesos that, at the beginning
of the hedge, makes the initial valuation of the hypothetical swap equal to zero. Likewise, the
measurement of effectiveness is carried out retrospectively and prospactively.

Derivative financial instruments designated as hedging instruments seek to reduce the volatility arising
from various types of risk (interest rate risk, exchange rates, etc.), while hedge accounting allows relating
the recognition of gains and losses of the hedging instrument with the hedged item so that they can be
offset in profit and loss at the same time,

A hedge is effective if, at the beginning of the period and in subsequent periods, changes in cash flows
attributable to the hedged risk during the period for which the hedge was designated are offset and the
hedge effectiveness is within a range of eighty percent (80%) to one hundred and twenty-five percent
(125%).

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Bank revokes the hedging relationship, when the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting. Any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument that has been recognized in equity will
continue in equity until the forecasted transaction is ultimately recognized in profit and loss. When the
forecasted transaction is no longer expected to oceur, the cumulative gain or loss in equity is recognized
immediately in profit and loss.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial position when the
contractual rights over the cash flows of the financial asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset
during a transaction in which substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred.

On the derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount of the
asset and the sum of the consideration received and to be received and the cumulative gain or loss that
has been recognized in other comprehensive income and retained earnings is recognized in profit and loss.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and benefits inherent to ownership and
continues to retain control of the transferred asset, the Group shall recognize its interest in the asset and
the associated obligation for the amounts it would have to pay.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and benefits inherent to ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized loan for the
resources received,

Clemencia Paredes Tepads

,wi I.HJ‘.[.IEI{ _IH{. CHFT ['_: fij 3
24 Resalucian
R i SN
W il 'i".! F ) i i
-ﬂi‘!\!:"l.lu;wu.uu..'i BHGAIGE= « Skl f‘:}' i
L [Rl)

T s e i E



Clemencia Paredes Tejada
Official Translator of English - French - Spanish

Official transiotion of a document into English, For identification purposes, it is sealed with the translator’s stamp.
This transiation has been made by Clemencia Paredes Tejoda, an officiel transiator duly recognized by the Ministry

f.

of Justice and authorized, Res. number 6694 of 1978,

SCOTIABANE COLPATRIA S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Accordingly, financial assets are only derecognized from the Statement of Financial Position when the
rights over the cash flows that they generate have been extinguished or when the implicit risks and
benefits have been substantially transferred to third parties.

. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash balances, interbank funds, and demand deposits with original
maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition, subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in fair value and used by the Group in the management of short-term commitments.

Interbank funds correspond to those placed or received by the Group directly from another financial
institution, without any investment or loan portfelio transfer agreement. These are transactions related
to the corporate purpose agreed for a term not exceeding thirty (30) calendar days, provided that they
seck to take advantage of excesses or make up for liguidity defects. Likewise, they include overnight
transactions with foreign banks using the funds of the Group.

Interast income generated from the transaction is recorded in the consolidated income statement.

Interest

Interest income is recognized in the consolidated income statement using the effective interest method.
The effective interest rate is the discount rate that exactly equals the estimated cash flows receivable or
payable over the expected life of the financial instrument (or, where appropriate, a shorter peried) to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. To calculate the effective interest rate, the Group
estimates cash flows taking into account all contractual conditions of the financial instrument excluding
credit losses,

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all commissions and points paid or received that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or liability.

Fees and Commissions

The Group recognizes income from ordinary activities to represent the transfer of goods or services
committed to customers for an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those poods or services. This will be reflected in accounting if it meets the
following criteria:

- The parties to the contract have approved the contract (in writing, crally, or in accordance with other
traditional practices of the business) and agree to comply with their respective obligations.

- The Group can identify the rights of each party with respect to the goods or services to be transferred.
- The Group can identify the payment conditions with respect to the goods or services to be transferred.

- The contract has a commercial basis (i.e., the risk, timing, or amount of the entity's future cash flows
are expected to change as a result of the contract.) The Group is likely to collect the consideration to
which it is entitled in exchange for the goods or services that will be transferred to the customer. In
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assessing whether it is probable that the amount of consideration will be collected, the Group will
consider only the customer's abllity and intention o pay such consideration when due. The amount of
consideration to which the entity will be entitled may be less than the price established In the contract
if the consideration is variable, this is because the entity can offer the customer a price reduction.

The initial measurement will be the transaction price, and any subsequent amortization, if any, will be
made in a systematic manner consistent with the transfer of the goods or services to the customer,

Transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services committed to the customer, excluding amounts
collected an behalf of third parties (e.g. taxes). The consideration committed to a customer in a contract
may include fixed amounts, variable amounts, or both.

h. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment includes assets under control held by the Group for current or future use.

Recognition and Measurement

The Group recognizes an item of property and equipment when it Is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the entity and its cost can be measured reliably.

The initial measurement of property and equipment is at cost, which is the cash equivalent amount at the
date of recognition in books, plus directly attributable costs. Import duties, non-recoverable indirect taxes,
trade deductions, and discounts, as well as estimates related to asset retirements, are also included.

Subsequent to its recognition as an asset, an item of property and equipment is recorded at cost less
accumulated depreciation, and, if applicable, accumulated value of impairment losses.

Decommissioning

A provision s recognized for the estimated amount of the costs to decommission leased assets to bring
them to the condition in which they were initially received. The carrying amount of the decommissioning
provision is updated at the end of the reporting period.

Derecognition In Account

An item of property and equipment is derecognized when it meets the criteria for derecognition. That is,
through its use or if the Group will not receive econemic benefits from the asset through use or sale. Gains
or losses on derecognition are recognized in net income for the period.

Depreciation

The value incurred for depreciation of each period will be calculated using the straight-line methad,
according to the estimation of useful lives that the Group considered will faithfully represent the term of
time in which an element classified in this group of assets is expected to compensate an economic benefit
and will be recognized in net income for the period.
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The Group determined the useful life of each class or group of assets to be recorded as property and
equipment, taking Into account the expected use of the assets, the expected physical wear and tear, the
technical or commercial obsolescence, and finally, the legal limits or restrictions on the use of the asset.

The useful lives determined by the Group are:

Type of Property Useful Life
Buildings 80 years
Egquiprment and furniture 10 years
Office supplies 10 years
Computer equipmant 5 years
Yehicles 5 years
Improvements in leased propertie: 7 years
|||';l avements in owned property 7 years
Assets held for use 10 years

The Group has determined that the residual value of property and equipment will be zero (30).

Leases when the Bank and its Subsidiaries Act as a Lessee

Definition of Lease

The Group evaluates at the inception of a contract whether it is, or contains, a lease based on the definition
of a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract, or a part of a contract, conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. When the leased property is not under a short-term contract {less than 12 months) or is of
low value, it is recognized as an asset and a liability according to the following principles:

Initial Measurement of the Right-of-Use Asset

At the commencement date or the modification of a contract, the Group will measure a right-of-use asset
at cost, comprising:

The amount of the initial measurement of lease liabilities.

Lease payments made prior to or as of the commencement date less lease incentives received.

Initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and

an estimate of the costs to be incurred by the lessee in decommissioning and removing the underlying
asset and restoring the asset to the conditions required by the terms and conditions of the lease. The

Group will recognize these costs as part of the cost of the right-of-use asset if liability is incurred on
account of them.

Initial Measurement of Lease Liabilities
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At the commencement date, the Group will measure lease liabilities at the present value of the lease
payments that have not been paid by that date. Lease payments will be discounted using the Bank's and
its subsidiaries’ incremental borrowing rate.

At the commencement date, lease payments included in the measurement of lease liahilities.

At the commencement date, lease payments included in the measurement of lease liabilities comprise
subsequent payments for the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term, not paid at the
commencement date:

- Fixed payments less any lease incentive receivable,

- Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate initially measured using the index or rate at
the commencement date.

- Value expected to be paid by the lessee as a residual value guarantee.

- Strike price of a call option if the Group is reasonably certain of exercising it.

- Penalty payments to terminate the lease, if the lease term reflects that the Bank and its subsidiaries
will exercise the option to terminate the lease,

Subsequent Measurement

Subsequent Measurement of the Right-of-Use Asset

After the commencement date, the Group will measure its right-of-use asset by applying the cost model
less accumulated depreciation and losses for value impairment, adjusted for any new measurement of
lease liabilities.

Right-of-use depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to
the end of the lease term unless the lease transfers awnership of the underlying asset to the Group at the
end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise the call
option. In that case, the right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset,
which is determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment.

Subsequent Measurement of Lease Liabilities

After the commencement date, the Group will measure lease liabilities by:

- Increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest an lease liabilities,
Decreasing the carrying amount for lease payments made, and

- Re-measuring the carrying amount for new measurements of or modifications to the lease and fixed
lease payments that have been revised. This new measurement will be made by the Group by
discounting the modified lease payments using the modified discount rate if there is a change in the
lease term or the evaluation of a call option of the underlying asset.
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After the commencement date, the Group recognizes in net income for the period the interest on lease
liabilities and the variable lease payments not included in the initial measurement an the date on which
the conditions giving rise to these payments arise,

The Group has applied its judgment in determining the term period of the contracts in which extension
clauses are Included. The evaluation of whether the Group is reasonably certain to exercise such options

has an impact an the term of the lease, which significantly affects the value of recognized lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets.

Leases when the Bank and its Subsidiaries Act as a Lessor

When in a contract the Bank acts as a lessor, it should be determined whether the lease should be classified
as an operating lease or a financial leasing. If dassified as an operating lease, the rental fees will be
recognized as income as the service is rendered, on a straight-line basis.

Investment Property

Investment properties are immovable properties held for the purpose of earning rental income or capital
appreciation of the property or both at the same time and are not held for use In the supply of goods or
services, or administrative purposes, Investment properties are initially measured at cost. The Group has
adopted the cost model as its policy in the subsequent measurement of these properties,

The initial cost includes expenses that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment
property. The cost of assets constructed by the entity itself includes the cost of materials and direct labar,
any other costs directly attributable to the process of making the asset suitable to work for its intended
use, and capitalized borrowing costs.

Subseguent measurement of investment property is made at initial cost less depreciation and any
impairment losses.

Any gain or loss on the sale of an investment property is recognized in the income statement.

At each accounting close, the Group analyzes whether there are any indications, both external and
internal, that an asset is impaired. If there is evidence of impairment, the impairment value is estimated
and recognized in the income statement for the period.

Intangible Assets

The Group's intangible assets correspond to awsets of a non-monetary nature and without physical
appearance. These are assets whose cost can be reliably estimated, and it is considered probable that the
expected future economic benefits attributable to the asset will flow to the Group.

The initial measurement of intangible assets depends on how the Group obtains the asset. An intangible
asset can be obtained in the following ways: through separate acquisition, as part of a business
combination, or internally generated assets.

An intangible asset acquired in a separate transaction is measured at cost, which includes the acquisition
price, including import duties and non-refundable taxes on the acguisition, and any costs directly
attributable to the preparation of the asset for its intended use. In business combinations, the value of
the asset cost will be that corresponding to its fairvalue at the date of acquisition. Forinternally generated
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intangible assets, all disbursements in the research phase are recognized in expenses for the year in which
they are incurred and those incurred in the development phase, necessary to create, praduce, and prepare
the asset for its intended use are capitalized.

Subsequent disbursements are capitalized only when increasing the future economic benefits
incorporated into the specific asset related to these disbursements, All other disbursements, including
disbursements to generate goodwill and marks internally, are recognized in net income.

The Group's intangible assets are carried at cost less the accumulated amortization and amount of losses
from value impairment.

Amortization is recognized In net income based on the straight-line amortization method according to the
estimated useful life, a maximurm of ten (10) years, from the date on which they are available for use since
they more accurately reflect the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits related
to the asset.

Amortization methods, useful lives, and residual values are revised each financial year and adjusted if
necessary.

m. Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of price paid over the fair value of assets and liabilities acquired in a
business combination. Goodwill is subject to an annual impairment evaluation and, if any, it is recorded
in net income. Once an impalrment loss is recognized, it Is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Impairment of Goodwill

In accordance with 145 38, Impairment of the value of Assets, the Bank tests for goodwill impairment
recognized in the financial statements related to the acquisition of the consumer business, credit cards,
and small-sized and medium-sized enterprises of Citibank Colombia 5.A., and distributed to the Cash-
Generating Unit (CGU) identified during the current period. If as a result of this analysis, it is determined
that the recoverable amount of the CGU exceeds the carrying amount, the unit and the goodwill
attributed to that unit will be considered as not impaired. If the carrying amount of the unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, the entity shall recognize the impairment loss of the value by first depleting the
initially recorded goodwill.

For this calculation, the valuation of the Cash-Generating Unit to which the respective goodwill was
assigned at acquisition is used, using the discounted cash flow method and considering the economic
situation of the country and the banking sector, historical financial information, and projected five-year
growth in income and costs, and, subsequently, growth in perpetuity according to the projected growth
of the economy, discounted at the rate that represents the Bank's capital cost, the main way in which
the Bank is financed.

n. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The carrying amount of the Group's non-financial assets, excluding deferred tax assets, is revised at each
date of the consolidated statement of financial position to determine whether there Is any indication of
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impairment. If such indications exist, then the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated. An
impairment lass Is recognized If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. To
determine the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted at their present value, using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market evaluations of the temporary value of money and the
specific risks that may be associated with the asset.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are evaluated at each date of the Consolidated Statement
of Financial Pasition for any indication that the loss has decreased or disappeared. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determing the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, had no
impairment loss been recognized.

0. Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

For an asset to be classified as non-current held for sale, it must meet the following conditions: Its carrying
amount must be expected to be recovered essentially through a sale transaction; must not be intended
for use; the asset must be available in its present conditions for immediate sale, management must be
committed to a business plan for the sale, and it is expected to occur within a period of less than 1 year,

Mon-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of the carrying amount and the fair value less
costs to sell at the measurement date.

p. Employee Benefits

The Group grants its employees the following benefits in exchange for the services rendered by them:

Short-Term Benefits

These are employee benefits that are expected to be fully settled within twelve months after the end of
the annual reporting period.

The different employees of the Group are entitled to short-term benefits, such as salaries, vacations, legal
and extra-legal bonuses, and severance payments & interest on severance payments under the labor
regime Law 50 of 1990, and other extra-legal benefits. These benefits granted to employees will be
recognized once the requirements of enforceability are met, not only in accordance with the provisions of
the Law, but also with respect to those extra-legal benefits determined by the Group, and in consideration,
however, of conditions such as the type of contract, type and amount of salary, length of service, among
other particular characteristics, as stipulated in the Group's internal policies,

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are recognized as
expenses as Lthe related service is provided,

Post-Employment Benefits

Agreements whereby an entity provides benefits after the period of employment are post-employment
benefit plans. Post-employment benefits are divided into two:

1. Defined contribution plans
Clemencia Panedes Tejado
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The Bank's legal obligation is limited to the amount it has apreed to contribute to the fund. The
accounting is bazed on the value of the contributions agreed with the pension and severance pay fund
at the rate required by the labor legislation in force. Defined contribution plans do not require actuarial
calculations. They are accounted for based on the contribution of the services rendered by the
employee on a monthly basis.

2. Defined Benefit Plans

If the Bank's obligation consists in providing the agreed benefits to the employees, where payment of
the benefit to the employee Is assumed in the future at the time of complying with the conditions
required by the labaor legislation, actuarial caleulations are required to measure the obligation incurred,
as well as the expenses. The abligations are measured on a discounted basis by applying the Projected
Unit Credit methodology.

Actuarial calculations to measure the ohligations towards employees for defined benefits and long-
term obligations will be performed annually; however, management may perform the calculation with
a different periodicity when an event occurs that Impacts the behavior of the macroeconomic
indicators and variables to be used.

Long-Term Benefits

These are all employee benefits that are expected to be fully settled after twelve months following the
end of the annual reporting period.

Liahilities for long-term employee benefits are determined based on the present value of the estimated
future payments to be made to employees, calculated based on an actuarial study prepared by the
projected unit credit method, using for this purpose actuarial assumptions of mortality rates, salary
increases, employee turnover, and interest rates determined by reference to the current market yields of
honds at the end of the period of Natlonal Government issues or high-guality corporate ebligations.

The Group grants its employees long-term extra-legal seniority bonuses during their working life
depending an the number of years of service every five, ten, fifteen, and twenly years, etc., calculated as
days of salary according to the nominal salary type. Likewise, vacation bonuses and aids at the time of
retirement are granted.

Termination Benefits

These are employee benefits provided for the termination of the employment period due to the
termination of the employee's contract before the normal retirement date. The Group recognizes a
liability and an expense as termination benefits on the earlier of the following dates:

- When the entity is no longer able to withdraw the offer of those benefits.
- When the entity recognizes the costs of a restructuring.

q. Provisions

These are recognized when the Group has a present obligation, whether legal or implicit, as a result of a
past event, where it is probable that it will have to give up resources that incorporate economic benefits
to assume the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. When some
ar all of the economic benefits required to assume a provision are expected to be recovered from a third

Clemenciu Paredes Tejad,.
TRADLMTORE OFTC LAl pr
Pn.__—.z e o L o B s e
o el e,
EARN S Gy ;-_.P. o
RO e ) A‘r‘ » r.nif:. i D
ERGLIGH - “Tohp LEAN G

WARZEH B | oy g

32




Clemencia Paredes Tejada
Official Translator of English - French - Spanish

Official translation of a document into English. For identification purposes, il is sealed with the translator’s stamp.
This translation has been made by Clemencia Paredes Tejoda, on official tronslator duly recognized by the Ministry
of Justice and guthorized, Res. number 6694 of 1978.

SCOTIABANE COLPATRIA 5.A. AND SLBSIDIARIES
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

party, an account receivahle is recopnized as an asset if it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will
be received and the amount can be rellably measured.

The amount recognized as a provision should be the best estimate, at the end of the reporting period, of
the dishursement required to assume the present obligation. Estimates will be determined according to
professianal judgment and the experience obtained in similar operations.

Provisions should be revised at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the best estimate
available when it is no longer probable that resources incorporating economic benefits will flow out of the
entity to meet the obligation.

Litigation

The Group estimates and recognizes a provision for litigation to cover possible losses from lawsuits filed
by employees and customers, civil, commercial, and tax trials, based on the management's opinion
supported by external legal advisors.,

These provisions are recognized at the best estimate of the value required to settle the obligations on the
balance sheet date, considering the risks and uncertainties of the obligation.

Onerous Contracts

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the economic benefits that the Group expects from
the contracts are less than the unavoidable costs of complying with the established obligations,

r. Financial Guarantees

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Bank, as issuer, to make specific payments to reimburse
the halder far the loss incurred when a specific debtor fails to meet a payment obligation, in accordance
with the conditions of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees represent for the Bank an irrevocable commitment to cover with financial resources
up to the maximum amount guaranteed when the customer fails to comply with the contractual
obligations towards third parties during a determined period of time.

5. Tanes
Income Taxes

Income tax expenses Include current and deferred taxes. They are recognized in net income except to the
extent that they relate to items directly recognized in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current Taxes

Current tax is the amount payable or recoverable for income taxes and current taxes, It is calculated hased
on tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the date of the consolidated statement of financial
position, Management periodically evaluates the position taken in the income tax returns with respect to
situations where tax laws are subject to interpretation and, if necessary, constitutes provisions for
amounts expected to be payable to the tax authorities.

The Group estimates its tax liabilities based on an understanding of the country's tax legislation and also
has Independent tax advice for each situation that may require it. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the
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Management of the Bank and its subsidiaries considers that none of the administrative tax proceedings to
which it is a party, individually ar in an aggrepate form, is material and none will generate a significant
financial impact; therefore, Management does not consider it necessary to disclose the possible
contingencies that could arise from the judicial proceedings in progress.

The Bank and its subsidiaries only offset current income tax assets and liabilities if there is a legal right
before the tax authorities and intend to settle the resulting debts for their net amount or realize assets
and settle debts simultaneously.

Deferred Taxes

Deferred tax is recognized using the liability method, determined by the temporary differences between
the tax bases and the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities included in the financial statements.

Deferred tax is recognized in net income for the period, except for items that are recognized in equity ar

other comprehensive income. In these cases, the tax is also recognized in equity or other comprehensive
income, respactivaly.

Deferred tax liabilities are the amounts payable in the future for income tax related to taxable temporary
differences, while deferred tax assets are the amounts to be recovered for income tax due to the existence
of deductible temporary differences, offsettable negative tax bases, or deductions pending application. A
temporary difference is defined as the difference between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities and
their tax hase,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is revised as of the date of the consolidated statement of
financlal position and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable gains will
be available to allow all ar part of the deferred tax assets to be used.

Recognition of Taxable Temporary Differences
Deferred tax liahilities arising from taxable temporary differences are recognized in all cases except:

- When arising from the initial recognition of geodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction other than
in a business combination, and the date of the transaction does not affect the accounting net income
or the tax base.

- When they correspond to differences associated with investments In subsidiaries, partner companies,
and joint ventures over which the Bank and its subsidiaries have the ability to control the timing of
their reversal and it Is not probahble that their reversal will occur in the foreseeable future,

Recognition of Deductible Temporary Differences
Deferred tax assets arising from taxable temporary differences are recognized in all cases except for:

- Those cases in which the differences arise from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction other than a business combination which, at the date of the transaction, does not affect
the accounting net income or the tax base.

- Those relating to temporary differences assodiated with investments in subsidiaries to the extent that
the tempaorary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and are expected to generate future
positive tax gains to offset the differences.
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Tax planning opportunities are only considered In the evaluation of the recoverability of deferred tax
assets if the Bank and its subsidiaries intend to adopt them or it is probable that they will be adopted.

Measurement

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates that apply in the financial years in which
the assets are expected to be realized or the liabllities to be paid off, based on the approved, or about to
be approved, regulations and after considering the tax consequences that will follow from the manner in
which the Group expects to recover the assets or settle the liahilities.

The Group revises the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the fiscal year-end cut-off date to reduce
such amount to the extent that it is not probable that there will be sufficient future positive tax bases to
offset them,

Deferred tax assets that do not meet the above conditions are not recognized in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group reconsiders at year-end whether the conditions for recognizing
previously unrecognized deferred tax assets are met.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized inthe consclidated statement of financial position as non-
current assets or liabilities, regardless of the expected date of realization ar settlement.

MNon-monetary assets and liabilities of the Bank and its subsidiaries are measured in terms of their
functional currency. If tax profits or losses are calculated in a different currency, exchange rate variations
will give rise to temporary differences and the recognition of a deferred tax liability or asset, and the
resulting effect will be charged or credited in net income for the period.

Offsetting and Classification

The Bank and its subsidiaries only offset deferred income tax assets and liabilities if there is a legal right of
set-off before the tax authorities and such assets and liabilities carrespond to the same tax authority.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in the Bank's consolidated statement of financial position
as non-current assets or liabilities, regardless of the expected date of realization or settlement,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in the statement of financial position as non-current
assets or liabilities, regardless of the expected date of realization or settlement.

Industry and Commerce Tax

In application of Article 19 of Law 2277 of 2022, as of tax year 2023, the possibility of taking fifty percent
(50%) of the industry and commerce tax as a tax discount is eliminated.

4. Repulatery Changes and Accounting Pronouncements lssued but Mot Yet in Force

The Group monitors developments and changes in standards issued by 1458 and local regulators to
measure the impact of the adoption of new standards on the consolidated financial statements,

a. Standards and Amendments Applicable fram January 1, 2027

With Decree 2171 of October 15, 2024, the following new standard was incorporated Into the accounting
regulatory framework, which will apply to annual periods beginning after January 1, 2027, and has not
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been applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements. The Group Intends to adopt

the accounting pronouncements applicable to them on their respective dates of application and not
earlier.

Affected Standard Entry into Force Details

It will be applicable for the general-purpose financial statements
of entities classified in Group 1, as of Janwary 1, 2027, and repeals
the International Financial Reparting Standard IFRS 4 Insurance

Mew Standard IFRS 17 Contracts, as of January 1, 2027,
January 1, 2027 This standard impacts the recognition, measurement,
Insurance Coantracts presentation, and disclosure of insurance and reinsurance

business. In addition, it requires contracts to be added at the time
of initial recognition In the partfolio if they are subject to similar
risks and are managed together. The Group Is evaluating Impacts.

b. Mew Standards and Interpretations Not Yet in Force

Below is a list of the standards and amendments issued by IASE that have not yet been incorporated into
Colombian legislation, on which the Group is evaluating impacts:

Affected Standard Issued Uty i Details
Force
The main changes included are:
- The new standard focuses the presentation on the
Income Statement.
- Introduces changes for the presentation of the
financial parfarmance.
- Requires the classification and presentation of income
and expenses inte five categories (i.e, operating,
investing, financing, income tax, and discontinued
January 1,
Mew Standard IFRS 18 2027 (subject aperations).
" thel - Introduces two additional mandatory subtotals:
Presentation ond  April 2024 issu:;n:eof operating profit or loss and profit or loss before
disclosure  in financial financing and income tax.
regulatory
statements decrees) - Management-defined performance measures
(MPMs) must be disclosed with gualitative  and
quantitative information.
IFRS 18 provides enhanced guidance on the elements
to be considered when aggregating or disaggregating
line items.
Labeling line items as “Other” is discouraged and
additional information will be requested if continuing
to do so.
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Affected Standard Issued Enty Details
Force
Mew standard IFRS 19 January 1, e StnCar a_llum .smm} suhsldluanes NDME6 T
2027 (subject for small- and medium-sized enterprises or any local
o : ' regulatery framework to construct their financial
Subsidigries withaut to the ¢ 2 :
. el Way 2024 - statements if their parent company prepares financial
public accountability. issuance of “
. statements under full IFRS. This will be applicable for
Infornvation W be regulatory subsidiaries that have no public obligation or liabilit
disclosed decrees) 3% P i ¥

which is not the case for the Bank and its subsidiaries,

5, Estimation of Fair Value of Financial Instruments

a. Determination of Fair Value

The Group has established processes to ensure that the valuation of financial instruments is appropriately
determined.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are traded in active markets is based on market prices
listed at the fiscal year-end cut-off date.

An active market is a3 market In which transactions for assets and liabilities are carried out with sufficient
volume and frequency to provide market price information on an ongoing basis.

Market observable prices represent a Hierarchy Level One (1) valuation. Where possible, valuations are
based on the observable market price input obtained in an active market.

Prices are not always available from listed market prices or may be related to transactions in inactive or
illiquid markets. In these cases, internal models that maximize the use of the observable input are used
to estimate fair value. When the significant input to the models is observable, the valuation is classified
in Hierarchy Level Two (2).

When financial instruments are traded in an inactive market or using models where there are no
observable parameters and management judgment is required, to determine fair value, the use of
unobservable input data is necessary and, therefore, they are considered at Hierarchy Level Three (3).

The Group calculates the fair value of fixed-income instruments and derivatives on a daily basis, using price
information provided by the officially designated official price vendor (PRECIAL. This vendor has been
authorized after complying with the rules applicable to price vendors for valuation in Colombia, including
its purpose, operating regulations, approval process for valuation methodologies, and required
technological infrastructure, among other aspects. After evaluating the methodologies of the price vendor
PRECIA, it is concluded that the fair value calculated for derivative instruments based on the prices and
input provided by the price vendor is appropriate.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value is classified In its entirety is determined
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement In its entirety. Financial
instruments that are listed on markets that are not considered active, but are valued based on listed
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market prices, quatations fram price vendaors, ar alternative price sources supported by cbservable input,
are classifled as Level 2.

If a fair value measurement uses abservable Input that reguires significant adjustments based on
unabservable input, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement. The evaluation of the significance of a
particular Input datum in the fair value measurement in its entirely requires professional judgment, taking
into account factors specific to the asset or liahility. The Group considers observable data market data
that is already available, distributed ar regularly updated by the price vendor, reliable and verifiable, has
no proprietary rights, and is provided by independent sources that actively participate in the market in

guestion,

The main valuation techniques and inpul data used in estimating the fair value of financial instruments
classified in level 2 and level 3 are presented below.

Type

Debt securities

Valuation Technigue for Level 2

Calculation  of the present walue of

Main Input Used
- RVU bond references (SEN/MEC price

discounted financial instruments with curves systems)
constructed from observable data, taking
into account market variables

Derivatives Calculation of the present value of financial — Currency forward:

Equity securities of
Helding Bursatil

Regional

instruments and market comparison
technique. Fair values are based on quotes

- Interest rates
- Devaluations

from  Bloomberg/Reuters  transactional - Exchange rates
systems, brookers: |CAP, Tradition, GFI,

Tullet, CTME, central banks

Quotes reflect current transactions in similar  USD/COP Opticns:
instruments = Interest rates

Market valuation price calculated by auction
within the valuation day

38

- Devaluations
= Yolatility matrices
- Exchange rates
SERS00 Options:
- SEPS00 Index
= Volatility matrices
Securities farward:
- Underlying prices
- Interest rates
IR5s, interest rate, and currency hedging
swaps:
- Colombian and foreign interest rates
[SOFR/IBR curves)
- Exchange rates

Input published by the Price provider
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Valuation Bkl incliarvalite Tnpnit Interrelationship between Significant
Type Technigue for ! Unohservable Information and Fair
Data
Level 3 Value Measurement
Variable income Discounted - Balance sheet and P&L The estimated fair value may
sacurities - Investment  free cash flow  projection assumptions increase (decrease) if:
in Credibanco, ACH, (assets, liabilities, - Balance sheet and income statement
Redeban revenues, expenses) projections  were  higher  ({lower)
- Cost of debt according to the market behavior and
- Cost of equity _ the investee company's use of
- Estimate of perpetuity resources.
-The debt cost were higher (lower)
according to the average funding rate
used,
-The equity cost were higher (lower]
according Lo the estimates included inits
calculation.
- The estimate of perpetuity were higher
{loweer) according to the expected growth
of the Colombian economy.
- Balance sheet and PEL The estimated fair value may
_ ) projection assumptions increase (decrease) if:
!I'riI::I:trriI:t:;;:': Discounted (assets, liabilities,
. free cash flow  revenues, expenses) - The estimate of perpetuity were higher
Colombiana

- Estimate of perpetuity (lower) according to the expected growth
of the Colombian economy.

b. Determination of Fair Values of Financial Assets and Liabilities Recorded at Amortized Cost Determined
Solely for Disclosure Purposes

The following are the detalls of how the financial assets and liabilities recognized at amortized cost and
measured at fair value for disclosure purposes only were valued,

- Loan Portfolio

The estimated fair value of the loan portfolio reflects changes in the general level of interest rates that
have arisen since the loan portfolio was originated or acquired. The specific valuation methods used
are the following:

For the fixed-rate portfolio, the fair value is determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
thereof, based on market interest rates for loan portfolios with similar terms and risks.

For a floating rate loan portfolio, the fair value is determined without considering the potential
adjustment to changes in credit spreads; therefore, the fair value is supposed to be equal to the
carrying amaount,
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- Deposits, Subordinated Bonds, and Financial Obligations

The fair values of deposits payable on demand or on notice ar customer deposits, subordinated bonds,
and floating rate financial obligations payable at a fixed term are not adjusted for changes in credit

spreads; therefore, the fair value of these types of deposits is supposed to be equal to their carrying
amount,

The estimated fair value of fixed-rate deposits payable at a fixed term is determined by discounting the
contractual cash flows based on the market interest rates offered for deposits with similar conditions
and risks.

¢. Carrying Amount and Fair Value

The following table shows the carrying amount, fair value, and fair value hierarchy of financial instruments
assets and liabilities:
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Bacember 31, 2024 )
Carrying Level 1 Lewed 2 Level 3 Total Fair vahue
Anunl
ASSETS
Eash 5 2686277 2BEE2TT - - 2.BRE.2TT
vt o b ORI e sesarn - L e
;...:d'ln:l:r:;_;:::l.|r|l|"-|1 by Ehie matien andfor foregn 1134817 1,324,537 . - 1.324,537
Isural o guaranteed by ather financlal institutions 330,185 330,185 - - 130,185
||_|-,re.;t|1-.¢_-||ts at fair value throngh profit and boss 45470 A 1062 45470
Couity instrumenis
Insestemints ol anwelized cost 1.443.074 - Laaa. 117y - 1.494.117
lsguad or gusrantesd by the Colombin Gavermmen LAa43.004 - 1444117 - Ladd 117
pwestments at Fabr value through OC1 2986305 2.B41.206 5,906 139.103 2,988,308
Rusuaieel v | nibzed by thi Colarmbian Government 2.EA1.206 2891206 - * 2,841,206
Cquity instruments 145,099 - 5.996 139,103 145.05%
621157 - E21.157 - 621.157
407.683 - 407 6R3 - 407683
14.722 - 14,722 - 14.722
B.290 - B0 - 8,190
164,549 - 164.949 . 164.949
6T = 267 - 26T
e 25,246 T 25,246 o 25,246
Hedging derivatives 111172 . 111.172 - 111172
CHFFeRCY f I 106104 = 106104 - 106.104
Inlesest rale swap 5.068 . 5068 - 2068
Lean partlalic 26,352,015 E = I1.671.180 21671180
Commerchal porifalio A.324.0094 - E 9,432,521 932,521
Consurmer portiolio 18,334,502 - . 18.238.659 18.238.659
Partfolio impairnaenl _(1.326.581) - - S i - - -
Total Financial Asets $ 35900182  TasR208 2.183.504 27.850.691 _ 37.220.400
LIABILITIES
Trading derivatives BAT.265 - 647265 = G47.265
Cusrency forward 4385497 . A3E.997 . A38.557
4,975 = 4,975 - 4,875
168,385 - 18,385 . 18365
167.783 . 167.783 - 167.781
5 F i% 2 - ] = 1
CUEMnCy oplions 17123 . 17123 b 17.123
Hedging derfvatives 10495 - T1.005 = 77.095
Cunrency -8 v - B7.699 - 67500
INEEFEEE FALE SR 9.196 - 9.1%6 . 9,196
Customer deposiis 26.341. 208 - = 25,500,654 25.500.654
Rank cunrant account depasits L938.805 . . 1.938.505 1938805
Term deposit cortificates 13,293,562 - . 12.452 918 12.452.918
S deposits 10.766.423 . - 10.766.423 10.766.423
(haers 342508 - - 342.508 342,500
Finanial abligations 580,269 = - 6.580.289 G.580.280
literbank Funds 3,320638 = - 330638 3.320.638
Bank loana 1.599.697 - - 2.599.657 2.599.697
Loang frem rediscount entlties 521581 - - 521581 521.581
Lenses 130,611 . - 130.611 130,611
Cther Bnancid obiligations .76k = - TS 1.762
Inwesbiment securiiqt L210.785 - o - ) 1196615 1.196.615
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L e December 31, 2024
Carrying
CAwount el b2 B b s
Total Financial Liabilivies §  34.856.732 - T24.360 33.277.558 34,001,918
. — Dwcowbor 31,2023
Carrylng
L Lirw L 3 I

Amount 11 . rml.! o Tatal Falr Valug
ASSETS
Cash 5 2570316 2576344 - - 25716340
Inw:.tmrrlrs..'ll falr walue through pradic and loss - 63,113 663,142 i ) ST
Dabk securitios

el - i .
tssued or guaranteed by the naton andfor foreign 42,019 542,019 j 543 018
Euvisnaenis
tsaued or guaranteed by other financkal institutions 121.0%3 121.083 - 120093
Imvestments at fair walue through profic and loss -
195844 - = B s

Equity instruments 8 ArEN LiEes
Investments at amoniced cose 1.567.6145 E 1854588 1,554 508
T ow guarantecd by the Colamblan Goecimment 1567.635 - 1,554,588 - 1.554. 588
Invmstments at falr value through OCIH 2,230,081 2.096.135 6,506 127.360 2.230,081
lesued o guarantecd by the Colombian Gowranment 296,135 IIEG, 135 - 2046135
Couity insirumonts 133,996 - 580 127,300 133,546
Trading derlvatives 1,709,144 1.704. 144 - 1709404
Cuprency forware 1.184.623 . 1.154.623 . 1.IR4 B2
Curiency swap 17007 - 37.097 E EFRL
Intenest rate swap A48. 726 LE A 4487 26
Spat transactions a0 . S0 E ol
Lurrency aptons LRG0 38,605 . S8,
Hecging derivatives 179,368 . 179,368 179,368
Currency rate swap 1 74.558 174.558 = 174.558
INLEFEST rate swap A.210 . 4810 - 4,810
Loan partiolie 29,E46.914 - - 32,939,584 FL.939,584
Commerchal portfalia 12015350 . 11965176 11.965.176
Consumes posthdio 19,230,146 ] - 20.970.4908 20.874.408
partfolio impaiment 139858 - : N S
Tokal Financial Assels 5 38702434 5.335.593 3449606 ) In0Be.JE8  ALETLUGT
LIARILITIES
Trading derivatives 1.351.518 - 1.352.523 B L391.513
Cuprency forvard 503,813 BO.E1 035813
Facurities torwand k] : Far) - 2z
CHFrency swap 35,781 36.781 EIra ]
Inlesaest rale swap A%4.017 - 454,057 454017
Luriency opthans ERACELL E ERACY] - 57620
Hedging derivatives 234, 944 - 230548 E F14.948
Cuirency swap 185, 464 189464 13% 454
Interest rate swap A5.04E9 . hie, - A58
Customer deposits 29,141,927 . 27883112 27.883.112
Bank curment accound depoits 1.987.352 g - 1487552 L9755
Termn deposin certificates i14.97/4.901 = ® VL F1G.080 13716080
Safiings dieposils 11.435.124 11435 124 11435124
Others 14,350 - . 744.350 744350
Financial oliligations 5.508.629 - 5508620 5.508.629
Interbank funds LAL1.003 - - 2.421.002 2423 002
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December 31, 2023

Carrying Lemwel 1 Lissned 2 Tostal Fadr Vale
Al
14
Fram e STV B Hil
r limancial 1
Investment securitie 1.373.00% L84, 244
Total Financial Liabililes 5 17.611.633 . 1,587,471 36,273,450

d. Valuation of Equity Instruments Level 3

The Group has investments in this type of instruments in Redeban Multicolor 5.A., Credibanco 5.4., ACH
Colombia 5.4, and Titularizadora Colembiana 5.4, In accordance with section (a) of this note, the valuation
method used is discounted free cash flow, constructed based on the valuator's own projections, income,
costs, and expenses of the entity to be valued over a period of five years, taking historical information
obtained from the company and residual values determined with growth rates in perpetuity established
by the valuator according to his/her experience. These projections and residual values were discounted at
interest rates constructed with curves taken from price venders adjusted for estimated risk premiums and
taking into account the risks associated with the company being valued.

The following is a summary of the ranges of the main variables used in the valuation of each of these
companies:

- Redeban Multicolor %.A.

Results of the Valuation by Selected Approach
Mumber of outstanding shares 15.791.803
Sharehalding percentage 7.03%
Valuation price per share (pesos) 40.018,92

Prasent Value Adjusted by Discount Rote

Variables Range Used for Valuation
nternal inflation Between 5,3% and 3,10%
Gross domestic product Betweean 1,70% and 2,90%

The following is a list of the published price sensitivities whose variables were defined by the investor,
Variations in the value of this investment are recognized in the income statement:

Present Value Adjusted by Discount Rate

Number of  Published Price per Favarable ) Unfavarable
Variables Variatian
Shares Share (Pesos) Impact Impact
Income 44.2491,33 +/- 100 ph 35.746,51
15.791.803 540,018,92 Perpetuity gradient 43.247,32  +/-100pb 37.500,95
Discount rates 47,636.73 +(- 50 ph 37.705,67

- Credibanco 5.A.
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Variable Range % 2024p"* - 2028p
Internal inflatior Between 3,1% and 9,40%
Grass domestic product Between 5,50% and 3,20%

*p: Projected

The following table includes a sensitivity analysis of changes in these variables in the Bank's equity
considering that variations in the fair value of this investment are recognized in other comprehensive
income.

Present Value Adjusted by Discount Rate

\siable u bli:.i':;d Price per shareholding Vartation Favorable Unfavorable
Share Percentage Impact Impact
Incanmi +/- 100 ph 123,26 114,31
Perpetuit i i::'.m'.: il Sllﬂ-.ﬂﬂ ?,UE% 'l.l" 100 pb 118.94 113.?2
Discount interest rates +/- 50 ph 119,78 117,90

- ACH Colombia 5.A.

Results of the Valuation by Selected Approach
resent value adjusted by discount rate 41.260.268

Mumber of outstanding shares 6,594,807
Sharehalding percentage 4,45%
Valuation price per share (pesos) 5191.100,09

The following table includes a sensitivity analysis of changes in these variables in the Bank's equity
considering that variations in the fair value of this investment are recognized in other comprehensive
incame, in egquity.

Present Value Adjusted by Discount Rate

) Published Price per e Fawvarable Unfavorable
Variables Variation
Share Impact Impact
Income +_.|r' 100 Fb 1%.53?,?? 150.155.-53
Perpetuity pradient $191.100,09 +/- 100 pb 205.415,63 185,121.12
Discount interest rates +/- 50 pb 195.539,58 193.219,55

- Titularizadera Colombiana 5.A.

Results of the Valuation by Selected Approach
Prasent value adjusted by discount rate | $30,825.574

Mumber of outstanding shares 4,213,395
shareholding percentage 6,35%
Valuation price per share {pesos) 57.3

Present Value Adjusted by Discount Rate
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Variables Range Used for Valuation
Income (growth % over 10 years) 0,9% - 3,2%
Grawth in residual values after 10 years 2.84%
Discaunt rate 15,2% - 18,9%

The following is a list of the published price sensitivities whose variables were defined by the investor:

Present Value Adjusted by Discount Rate
Mumber of  Published Price per

g . Variahlas Favorable Impact Variation Lhalavnrabie
shares share Impact
Incame (*) 64,109,732 +f- 1% MA
. ) +/= 1% of
f;f::;: :"tere:d wil 7.345.302 the NA
4.213.395 7.3 vayeas gradient

A general cost of the
Equity cost rates sectar is calculated, nat +/- 50FB 19

an equity of the entity
(*) Average of 5 years of valuation

e. Transfer of Hierarchy Levels

As of December 31, 2024, there was a transfer from Level 2 to Level 1 of 5252.418 of tradable debt

securities; for the year 2023, there were no transfers of fair value hierarchy levels to and from Level 1 and
Level 2 of the Investment portfolios.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, there ware no fair value transfers between Level 2 and Level 1 to or
from Level 3.

f. Reconciliation Hierarchy Level 3

Equity
Instruments
Balance as of December 31, 2023 147204
Valuation adjustment with effect on oet income 26,343
WValuvation adjustment with effect on OCl 9.964
B + as of December 31, 2024 H 183.511
Balance as of December 31, 2022 135.250
Va adjustment with effect on net income {3.518)
Valuat rdjustment with effect an O0) 15472
Balance as of December 31, 2023 ] 147204

G, Operating Sepments

An operating segment is a component of the Group that develops business activities from which income
from ordinary activities may be earned and costs and expenses may be incurred, and whose operating
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results are regularly revised by the Group's highest decision-making authority, which decides on the
resources to be allocated to each segment and evaluates its performance. These segments meet the
guantitative thresholds on which the information is reported.

As of December 31, 2024, the Group has five (5) operating segments: Commercial, Consumption, Housing,
Treasury, and Others. These segments offer different products and services and are managed separately
according to the Group's management and internal information structure,

- Commercial; Legal Entities with commercial, ordinary, construction, development, corporate
revolving, savings accounts, current accounts, and time deposits. The companies that make up this
segment are corporate, business, and small- and medium-sized enterprises, companies with sales over
US$50 million per year and that have a relationship with the Bank for credit products and transactional
products.

- Consumption: Individuals with credit card products, free consumer investment, revolving personal
laans, vehicle loans, payment orders, savings accounts, current accounts, and time deposits.

- Housing: Individuals with housing loans.

- Treasury: This includes options, forward, spot, and interbank products, fixed income, public debt,
private debt, and debt reduction securities.

- Others: This includes segments not listed above, comprising fund costs of deposits managed by the
funding unit, portfolio sales, sale of foreclosed assets, other income related to partners, and
information on subsidiaries:

The results of these business segments are based on the Group's internal financial reporting systems. The
accounting policies applied by these segments are the same as those adopted by each entity of the Group.

The funding value of internal transfer prices of assets and liabilities is established using market rates and
expenses are allocated to each segment equally, using several parameters.

Performance is measured based on the segment profit before income tax, as the Group's management
believes it s relevant to evaluate certain segments related to other entities operating within the industry.

Information related to the results of each segment is presented below:
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SCOTIABANEK COLPATHIA 5.4, AND SUBSIDIARIES
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7. Financial Risk Management

The Group assumes overall liability for the establishment and supervision of a framework for managing
the various risks to which it is exposed, credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk, operational risk, money
laundering risk, and issuer and counterparty risk. The Group's risk management policies are established ta
identify and analyze the risks it faces 50 as to set appropriate risk limits and contrals and monitor risks and
compliance with the limits. Risk management policles and systems are revised periodically to reflect
changes in management and procedures and are intended to develop a strong internal control
enviranment,

The Audit Committee of the Bank and its subsidiaries supervises the risk management process and
monitors compliance with the risk management policies, it is assisted in its supervisory role by Internal
Audit, which conducts ongoing checks of risk management controls,

a. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the financial loss risk faced by the Group if a customer or counterparty in a financial
instrument fails to comply with its contractual obligations, and arises mainly from the Group's loans,
accounts receivable from custamers, investment instruments, and derivative transactions, The credit risk
management strategy defines the target market and the risk tolerance levels to be assumed. The abjective
of the credit risk management strategy is to ensure that all the Group's lines of business are included.

For risk management reporting purposes, the Group considers and consolidates all credit risk exposure
elements such as the debt service, the non-payment risk, and the industry risk.

Credit quality is considered a reliable representation of information provided by those financial institutions
in which the Group maintains cash funds.

Consolidated Credit Risk Exposure

The credit risk exposure of the Bank and its financial subsidiaries arises from their lending activities and
transactions with counterparties that give rise to the acquisition of financial assets.

The maximum consolidated credit risk exposure of the Bank and its financial subsidiaries is presented
below and reflected in the carrying amount of financial assets in the consolidated statement of financial
position as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
Assets
Debt instruments at fair value through profit and loss
Mational goverament andfor foreign govermments 5 1,324 537 542014
Financial institutions 230,185 121.093
La54.722 bb3.112
Equity instruments at fair value through profit and loss 45470 19. 844
Debt instrusents at fair value through OC1
Ll g nrreenl 2.841.206 2086, 135
Equily instruments at Fair walee throwgh ©QC1 145.099 133,946
Dbt insbruments at amortized cosl
Mational governmen 1.443.074 1 567.625
Trading derivatives 621.157 170049, 144
Hedging derivative 111.172 179,368
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Decembier 31, December 31,
2024 2023
Loan portfolio
Cansumer portfolio 18.354.502 19,230,146
Commercial prortfolio 0.324.094 12.015.250
27.678.596 11.245.496
Arccounts receivable 338.546 £02.796
Total financial assets with cradit sk 1 34.879.042 FH.507.966
Credit risk outside the Statemant of Financial Position
Financial guarantees and letters of credit 1.107.788 2449, 504
Cradit lirmit 13.597.903 15986 1'|€
Total exposure to credit risk outside the statement of financial position 5 14.705.691 18.436.010
Total Maximum Exposure to Credit Risk 5 49,584,733 56.943.482

Credit Quality of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Credit quality determined by independent risk reting agencies of the financial institutions in which the
Group deposits funds is as follows:

December 31

December 31, 2024 3023 d
Banco Repiibdica 5 939,468 B93.450
|y mnent grade 1.275.360 1.138.420
. y inastment grade 471.449 a4 AT0
5 2.686.277 2576346

Cash and cash equivalents are maintained with Bance Repdblica and financial institutions supervised by
the Financial Superintendency of Colombia.

Credit Quality of Financial Investment Assets
Below are the details of the credit quality determined by independent rating agents of the main

counterparties in debt and equity securities, in which the Group has investments at fair value through
profit and lass, at amortized cost, and at fair value through other comprehensive income:
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December 31, 2024 DE“;‘E;' 31
Investmaents at fair value through profit and loss, representing
debt
:;::.I-."'I-Illl.l'h Bl ..11 anteed by the national povernment or forgian 5 1324537 542,019
Inwestment gracde 330.185 121.093
1.654.722 663,117
Iwestments at falr valee t||rlru,;|| jar ofit and hl-\.'., l|-.'|ui{5r
instruments
Investrment grade 45,470 19.844
A45.470 19.844
Investments at fair value through OC, represanting debt
:_;:;::J::_III_:_IIIIIII:_:;:I;I:.! antesd by the notional government or foreign 2,841,206 2,006.135
2.841.206 2.096.135
Investments at fair wvalue through OC, coguity instruments
Investment grade S -7 - B 2
145.099 133,946
Investments at amertized cost
Ivvestent grade 1.443.074 1567625
s .l S—1 T

Credit Quality of Derivatives

The counterparty risk rating of derivative financial instruments for trading and hedging assets is detalled
helow:

Decamber 31, 2024
Forward Cash Optlons STy Swap Hedging Tatal
— . . _  __Lpbons . Swap —
|::l-l:!|a:.:ll1w".t 5 416.004 246 24.04% 165.118 111,172 116677
Speculation 6.228 19 1.201 B.121 - 15.569
Meadiwm risk B3 . - - - B3
8 422,405 267 25.246 173.230 111.172 732.329
__December31,2028 =~~~ 0000 —
Currendy Hedging
e h lon 5w Tertal
Forward Cash Options Options P Swop
“llll.l:i:.ll”m' 2 L.0E4.550 90 37.645 444,386 179,368 1.746.079
grade
Speculation 949,604 - [ 41,437 142,004
ediun risk 429 - - 425
5 1.184.623 a0 3B.608 185,823 179,368 ) 1,888,512
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The counterparty risk rating of derivative financial instruments for trading and hedging liabilities is detailed
below:

December 21, 2024

Currency Hedging
Forward Cash Options Options. Swap sl Total
b 5 394.135 . 16.830 137.492 77.095 625.552
I ) A9 537 2 2493 A8.676 = a8.808
5 A43.972 2 17123 186.168 T7.0M5 724360
December 31, 2023
Forward Comvency Swap Hedging Taotal
Options ) Swap )
Mk ! 781 436 154,967 234,948 4.678 347
radd
Speculbalio 22669 G2E 15,831 59,129
BM, 10 57,620 490,798 234.948 1.587.471

Criteria for the Evaluation, Rating, and Provisioning of Credit Risk

The Bank has the IRMS (Integrated Risk Management System) within which credit risk is included. The
Bank has policies and processes to identify, measure, control, and monitor credit risk during the granting,
maintenance, and collection phases, including restructurings. Likewise, the Bank has metrics and early
warnings associated with risk appetite.

In the granting process, variables have been established for each of the portfolios that allow for
differentiating borrowers that fit the Group's risk profile. The processes of segmentation and
differentiation of loan portfolios and potential borrowers serve as the basis for their internal rating. The
methodologies and procedures implemented in the granting process allow far monitoring and controlling
the credit exposure of the various portfolios and the aggregate portfolio, avoiding an excessive
concentration of credit by the debtor, economic sector, econamic graup, risk factor, ete,

The Group conducts continuous monitoring and internal rating of credit operations in accordance with the
granting process, which is based, among other criteria, on infarmation related to the historical behavior
of portfolios and loans, the particular characteristics of debtors, their loans and guarantee backing them,
the debtors' credit behavior with other entities, and the financial information that allows for knowing their
financial situation and the sectorial and macroeconomic variables that affect the normal development of
therm.

Restructurings

The restructuring of a loan is any mechanism through which the Bank grants new conditions to the
borrower with the purpose of modifying the originally agreed contractual conditions of the loan to allow
the debtor to adeguately service its obligation due to the present or future impairment of its capacity to
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pay. Restructured loans are recorded at the time of restructuring at the present value of the future cash
flows specified in the agreement, discounted at the original rate of the asset before the restructuring.

Paortfolio Purchases

The initial recognition for acquired loans is at the market value at the date of acquisition.
Portfolio Sales

The Bank ceases to recognize a loan (or group of loans) once its contractual right to cash flows has ceased,
This may occur at the maturity of the loan or through the transfer of the loan. The Bank is deemed to have
transferred a loan when the contractual rights to receive the contractual cash flows are transferred
together with all the risks and benefits of ownership. When the loan is recognized and the consideration
received on the loan is greater than the carrying amount, the gain is recorded as a gain on the portfolio
sale.

Portfolio Write-Offs

Total and partial loan write-offs are recorded when management determines that there is no realistic
likelihood of full repayment and that they are one hundred percent (100%) provisioned, after having
exhausted all possible means of collection, in accordance with the concepts of the Bank's judicial collection
agencies and managing attorneys.

Write-offs are submitted to the Board of Directors for authorization once the debtor's total insalvency has
been established; likewise, the Bank continues with the collection process in case of the debtor's eventual
solvency.

If a written-off loan is later recovered, this recovery is recognized in the consolidated income statement
against impairment expenses.

Loan Consumer
Credit Risk Exposure

In accordance with the implementation of IFRS 9, the Bank has put an expected loss model into production
for the calculation of credit risk impairment in the consumer portfolio segment that meets the
requirements of the aforementioned standard. The expected loss model was built through advanced
madels for most of the consumer portfolio (Housing and Consumer) except for SMEs, other consumption,
and microcredit which, due to the availability of information and size of the portfolio, were built through
intermediate models and the leasing portfolio that was built through a simplified model.

The Bank's IFRS 9 models (advanced, intermediate, and simple) meet the requirements of IFRS 9
regulations in terms of calculating an expected loss through the prabability of default, the expected
exposure at the time of default, and the loss-given default. These parameters are calculated taking into
account the value of money over time, the expected life of the loan, and the analysis of the significant
increase in risk through stages (SIR Analysis).

In the case of the portfolio acgquired in the business combination, an intermediate model was used

complying with the requirements of IFRS 9 regulation, which were developed at Scotiabank, also following
strict quality controls,
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Commercial Portfolio

Evaluation and Re-Rating of the Loan Portfolio

In the credit rating process, the Bank assigns the customer an Investment Grade (IG Code) used to
differentiate the risk of default of a customer, which is a code that reflects the risk profile of the debtor
customer under the evaluation of various factors such as financial behavior, management, payment
experience, financial hedging, and the prospects of the customer and the industry, among others.

The Bank's IFRS commercial portfolio comprises the Business, Construction, Corporate, and SAM (Special
Account Management) segments. For the calculation of provisions, a methodology based on the
customers’ 1Gs is handled, which is divided into two calculations of provisions, a collective one, which is
calculated for 1Gs 87-30, and the individual one, calculated for 1Gs 21, For the expected loss methodology,
provisions are calculated according te a PD (Probability of Default), LGD (Loss Given Default), and EAS
(lifetime). The formula used is the following PE = PD*LGD*EAL

When a customer is 1G 21, the provision is divided into two groups:

Principal Accounts (over 1 million Canadian dollars (CAD)): Customers with balances greater than CAD
51 million, these customers are managed and shown individually as they are the most material
customers. Their provisions are calculated using the BEEL (Best Estimated Expected Losses) form.

- Local Regulator (under 1 million Canadian dollars (CAD)): Customers with balances under 51 million
CAD, these customers are managed collectively. For the provisions of these customers, local provision
calculated by the Commercial Benchmark Model in equity is taken.

Credit Risk Rating

The Bank rates credit operations based on the criteria mentioned above and classifies them in one of the
following credit risk categories, taking into account the following minimum objective conditions:

December 31, 2024

Grade Stages 1 and 2 Stage 3 Tolal
Investment graces $ 1.281.5883 - 1,281,883
C e 7.161.729 - 7.462.729
Acnitaring lisi EFEN ] - 374022
Impaired loans . 505.460 505.460
Tutal 5 B.818.634 505.460 9.324.094
December 31, 2023
Grade Stages 1 and 2 Stage 3 Total
resbment grad 4 338927 1. 138.927
B 2.041.452 8041452
hanitoring list 276.244 276,244
Impalred 58,027 558727
Texlal 5 11.456.673 55B.727 12.015.350
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Guarantees

For 1G 21 accounts under CADS 1 MM
- Policy for Acceptance and Handling of Guarantees

Guarantees are additional support requested by the Bank from ils customers so as to reduce the risks
inherent to the lending activity. Guarantees are not considered payment instruments.

- Policy for Requiring Additional Guarantees

The Bank requires additional guarantees to be provided when the legal regulations on credit limits so
provided, credits that exceed three (3) years of term, or that are not shared with other creditors of the
customer unless they are shared to the same degree with the Bank's subsidiaries located abroad or
with its subsidiaries.

The guarantees are set up at the time of granting as follows:

- Guarantees set up on immovable property used for housing purposes: the value at the time of
granting will correspond to the value obtained through a technical appraisal. In the case of new
properties or properties of less than one year of age acquired by a financial institution to enter into
leasing contracts, the value at the time of granting will be the acquisition value of the immovable
property or the value obtained through a technical appraisal.

- Guarantees on immovable property not used for housing purposes: the value at the time of granting
will correspond to the value obtained through a technical appraisal. In the case of new properties
or properties of less than one year of age acquired by a financial institution to enter into leasing
contracts, the value at the time of granting will be the acquisition value of the immovable property
or the value obtained through a technical appraisal.

- Guarantees on machinery and/or equipment: the value is determined according to its age, i.e.,
machinery or equipment of less than one year of age will have the value in the purchase invoice,
this value will be valid for one (1) year. At the end of this period, its value must be updated annually,
applying the straight-line depreciation methodology and according to the useful life of the
respective asset; over one year, it will have a technical appraisal on the granting date and this value
will be valid for one (1) year. At the end of this period, the value of the asset must be updated
annually, applying the straight-line depredation methadology and according to the useful life of
the respective asset,

- Guarantees on vehicles are based on Fasecolda's value guides or, failing that, on commercial
appraisals published by the Ministry of Transportation.

- Guarantees on other assets: the value of the guarantee at the time of granting corresponds to the
value obtained in the technical appraisal performed.
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- Distribution of Guarantees

A loan may be backed by its own guarantee, or it may be backed as protected by a guarantee whose
owner is ather than the debtor of the loan.

The assignment of guarantees is made up to the completion of cne hundred percent (100%) of the
balance of the loans.

=  Dpen Guarantees

When a guarantee backs several obligations, a proration is made according to the balance of each of
the obligations, provided that they are of the same debtor and type of portfolio.

When an obligation has a defect of guarantee, i.e., the value of the guarantee does not cover the
balance of the obligation, this uncovered balance is assigned the PDI corresponding to without
guarantee,

Current loans that are backed by a guarantee and whose appraisals are past due have a PDI
corresponding to without guarantee.

- Closed Guarantees

Only the indicated loan is covered up to one hundred percent (100%) of the balance and without
exceeding the value of the legal limit of the guarantee.

b. Market Risk

Market Risk is understood as the possibility of incurring losses or a decrease in the economic value of
equity as a consequence of changes in market prices and rates (interest rates, credit spreads, stock prices,
currency rates, exchange rates, commodities), the correlations between them, and their levels of volatility,
for its on-balance sheet or off-balance sheet positions.

The Group’s market risk management and monitering have been designed to identify, measure, control,
and moniter the exposure to market risk of its operations. This palicy explains in detail the main stages
and elements of the Integrated Risk Management System (IRMS), taking into account that each of them
has been prepared based on the general guidelines provided in this regard in Chapter XXXI of the Basic
Accounting and Financial Circular (BAFC) 100 of 1995 of the Financial Superintendency of Colombia,
following the guidelines of Scotiabank.

The System is approved by the Risk Committee and the Board of Directors and is constantly menitored
through reports on risk exposure and approved limits. The Risk Committee meets monthly to monitor
market risk exposure at the Senior Management level,

Likewise, appropriate policies and limits consistent with the Group's risk appetite and in compliance with
the regulatory provisions in force have been established, which are submitted for revision and approval to
the Board of Directors and Scotiabank at least once a year.
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Transactions with new products and participation in new markets can only be carried out after:

- Having completed an evaluation of the risks associated with the activity and determined that the
activity is within the Group's risk appetite and the strategy approved by the Board of Directors; and

- Having defined and approved appropriate limits, policies, and controls on the activity.

The Group uses the standard model established in Chapter XXX of the BAFC (Basic Accounting and
Financial Circular) as the official model for the caloulation of the Value at Risk - VaR which is reported to
the Financial Superintendency on a dally and monthly basis. Additionally, the Group has developed other
market risk models for its treasury book inside the Bank, which allow it to identify, measure, and control
the defined exposure levels, also establishing a robust limit structure according to the size of the business,
as well as daily monitoring and reporting schemes to Senior Management and monthly to ALCO (Assets
Liabilities Committee) and the Board of Directors.

The following is a list of the controls and limits associated with the aforementioned models:

- VaR
Open and intraday positions
- Sensitivities for investment and derivative portfolios
- Stress Testing
- MNotional
- Terms
- Balance sheet sensitivity analysis

The Group pays particular attention to ensuring that measurement models take into account appropriate
market risk factors, i.e., market rates and prices that affect the value of its asset, liability, and off-balance
sheet positions.

VaR is a statistical measurement that estimates the potential for loss of value of the Group's trading
positions due to adverse market movements over a defined time horizon and with a specified level of trust.
The quality of the VaR of the Bank and its subsidiaries is validated through stress testing and backtesting.
As a complement to the VaR, the Group carries, within its limits, a Stress VaR, which contemplates the
highest volatilities at the historical level and sets guidance in both limits as an early warning for timely
monitering and management.

Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book (IRRBB)

As of December 2024, new regulatory requirements were adopted in compliance with external circular
025 of 2022 issued by the Financial Superintendency of Colombia, which were integrated within the
Group's general structural interest rate risk policy, ensuring compliance with and consistency of controls,
measurement, internal and regulatory management.

The need to manage this risk results from the inherent mismatches that originate in the positions of the
banking book due to different terms, rates, amounts, and currencies, between the asset, liability, and off-
balance sheet products. The management strategy is focused on identifying the efficient structure of the
balance sheet to ensure the entity's sustainability and favorable monetary results for the business,
including the analysis and management of possible potential impacts due to the variation of market
interest rates.
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For the evaluation of interest rate risks, the Group has decided to apply the standard model established
by the Financial Superintendency of Colombia, by which the exposure is quantified through two sensitivity
measures: Economic Value of Equity (EVE) and Net Interest Margin (MNIM), as described in the regulation.
These metrics contain the risk estimate for projected interest rate-sensitive flows that impact on the
Group's economic value and financial margin exposure.

As of December 2024, the Bank evaluated and calculated the exposure to the Economic Value of Equity
(EVE) considering the 6 scenarios of rate shocks described in the regulation; the highest sensitivity to which
the positions of the banking book are exposed corresponds to the scenario of parallel curves by +400 basis
points (bps) with which a risk level higher than fifteen percent (15%) of the Bank's BOE + ABE (Basic
Ordinary Equity + Additional Basic Equity] is reached, a level considered atypical as established in the
regulation.

The Bank has designed an action plan to reduce exposure under the regulatory model that has been
included in the 2025 Risk Appetite Framework to ensure monitoring and compliance,

On the other hand, the Bank has been measuring the structural interest rate risk based on internal models
and assumptions according to the dynamics of the business in its different products. The methodology
starts with the determination of assets and liabilities sensitive to interest rates, for which the flows are
contractually mapped according to their maturity or repricing date, so as to determine the spreads by
currency over time and the calculation of the sensitivity to 100 bps.

The measurement technigues implemented are in line with the complexity of the identified risks so that
through these technigques the exposure to market risks present on the balance sheet can be correctly
quantified.

The Group makes continuous improvements in terms of procedures, methodologies, and internal control
mechanisms that allow it to identify, measure, control, and monitor this risk effectively, and to adopt
timely decisions for adequate mitigation, in the development of its authorized operations, both for the
positions of the banking book and the treasury book, whether on or off the balance sheet.

i) Structural Interest Rate Risk: Structural balance sheet risk represents losses that may arise due to
mismatches between assets and liabilities not offset by off-balance sheet positions, related to their
maturity, pricing, currency, or readjustment (UVR), and Interest rates, The difference in maturities and/or
pricing periods may cause the reinvestment or refinancing of aszet and liability transactions to be made at
prices that negatively impact the budgeted interest accrual result. There Is also exposure to variations In
interest rates when assets and liabilities have different reference rates, particularly in variable-rate
transactions.

Through Treasury and ALCO, the Group actively manages its interest rate risk exposures within the
structure of limits established at the level of static gaps and sensitivity to 100 bps, which are approved by
the Board of Directors and monitored on a monthly basis,

In the third guarter of 2024, the annual revision of limits was made, under which same of the assumptions
and caleulation methodologies of some of the parameters of the interest rate risk model were updated, in
order to align them with the best international standards and strengthen the market risk system. As a
result, and considering the business and market expectations, the limits were revised and updated.
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il) Sensitivity to Interest Rates of Investment Portfolio and Derivatives: Based on the Group's interest
rate sensitive positions, the calculation methodelogy uses a sensitivity of 100 bps and generates the
following two indicators, over which it has established limits:

a. Net Interest Income: Quantifies the impact of an adverse change an interest rates in the short term.
This impact reveals the deviation that the budgeted interest margin may undergo after one year. Net
Interest Income represents the maximum pre-tax effect of an interest rate shock of +/- 100 bps.

b. Economic Value of Equity Model: Quantifies the impact of an adverse change in interest rates on the
Group's equity, in other words, it represents the variation that the share value would experience in the
event of a movement in the yield curve, Exposure is disaggregated by currency and represents the
maximum loss before taxes in the present value of the entity's assets and liabilities in the event of a parallel
change of +/- 100 bps in interest rates.

The results of both interest rate sensitivity measures are shown below:

. December 31,
December 31, 2024 3033
Mt Interast Income (NIl A47.690 ]

itivity % MILMN 2, 60%: AL

¢ Value (EV) 236,548 153,133
f{Equity®* 12,59% TEE%

Key Factors that Explain Variation in Metrics: During 2024, exposure to the interest rate risk increased
mainly due to a decrease in stable funding, which was replaced by short-term funding and the strategic
acquisition of term deposits of more than one year, favoring the maintenance of the Group’s margin;
additionally, lower prepayment rates increased the duration of the medium- and long-term portfolio,
which has widened the gaps in long-term assets. The Group’s management continues to focus on
improving funding costs, prioritizing profitability, and reducing structural exposure through the best
possible funding structure.

Margin sensitivity had its variable behavior during the year, with a decreasing trend during the last quarter,
driven by the maturity of Term Deposit Certificates, TDCs, bonds, and the investment strategy in short-
term securities, reducing the liability gap in the first-time bands.

Trading Portfolio Risk Management: In accordance with the provisions of Chapter XXXI of the Basic
Accounting and Financial Circular 200 of 1995, which relates to the rules applicable to the Management of
Market Risks, the Group, through its Integrated Risk Management System (IRMS), has policies, metrics,
limits, and specific controls for the management of the market risk to which the portfolios of the trading
desks and the Asset and Liability Management (ALM) are exposed.

Among the main measures the Group has are the Regulatory VaR, the Internal VaR, measurements under
stress conditions, and retrospective evaluations of internal models. All of the above, under a scheme of
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internal and regulatory limits periodically evaluated and approved by the Group's Board of Directors and
Senior Management,

During 2024, the Group carried out the annual revision of limits for investment portfolios and trading and
structural derivatives, in such a way that they were revised and updated according to the business growth
objectives, the economic perspectives, and the risk appetite of the Group, with the approval of their
Boards of Directors.

The valuation of the Trading and ALM portfolios is performed daily based on the input and valuation
methodologies provided by the Bank's official price supplier - PRECIA. For this purpose, there are daily

validation processes to ensure the correct valuation in the application. For further description, see Note
5.

Calculation and management of the different metrics are performed on a daily, weekly, and monthly basis
and whenever required by the market conditions. The metrics apply to all financial instruments that are
part of the Trading and ALM portfolios and are exposed to possible losses due to variations in prices
according to their business model.

Below is a summary of the gquantitative information on the main metrics mentioned above,

Regulatory VaR: The Group uses the Regulatory VaR calculation following the guidelines of the Standard
Model established by the Financial Superintendency of Colombia in Chapter XXXI, “Comprehensive Risk
Management System”, and the methodology established in Annex 6. This procedure is performed on a
daily and monthly basis with the closing of the financial information. It consists of four elements that are
calculated separately and the results are shown below (last, minimum, average, and maximum):

Last L
December 31,
December 31, 2024 003
i 5 185.788 196,174
Exchai 1@ rate 4.903 9,812
of share: 2866 1,514
Callective partfolios 694 edd
Bank YaR 194,251 210,372
chuciaria Scotiabank Colpuatria 5. A0 5 B
cotia Securities (Colombi) S8 240 533
Conselidabed Vait s 194,496 211,013
Decernber 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
VaR criberia P lnimum Mverage Manimum hinimum Avarage Maximum
134.090 197 8350 210,372 187,667 202,643 210,372
e e 1 5 16 12 16
I (R I 240 158 £33 151 S0k Ga3
Comnsolidated Val 184.331 198,213 211,021 188.026 203.159 211.021
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In the calculation of the consolidated VaR, the risk charge taken into account for each of the subsidiaries
is the value at risk calculated individually under the guidelines of the Standard Model of the Financial
superintendency of Colombia in Chapter XXXI.

During the past year, a decrease in the Regulatory VaR Is evidenced due to lower exposure associated with
the interest rate risk.

Farelgn Currency Exchange Rate Variation Risk

The Bank's foreign currency assets and liabilities are mainly held in U.5. dollars, Canadian dollars, and
Euros, among other currencies.

The following are the details in pesos of the foreign currency assets and liabilities held by the Bank:

December 31, 2024

. Othwer Currencies Tatal Billicns of
M;::;:;H Expressed in Millions of Colombian
U bollars _ Pesos
Assets in forelgn currency
Cash and cash equivalents & 185 2 1.265.426
T pld 1?1 - THE.374
valive inclruments 135 . 595,235
Laan portfolko 314 = 1.384.473
Other accounts recelvable 21 ) - R _9'2._5’92
] 927 2 4,096.100
Liabilities in foreign currency
Clstamer daposits 31 1 141.093
Gerialiee inslromenls 131 ol 577.599
Fanancsng 590 = 2.601.399
Aceounts payahle & - 76455
] 758 i 3.346.516
Mt asset position in foreigh currency 5 169 1 749.554
December 31, 2023
. * Other Currencies Total Millions of
Millions of SR ; ;
Collons Expressed in Millions of Colombian
L%, Dallars Pasos
"1 2 1.119.861
210 - B02.631
3ER - 1.475.311
Liean poertfodic 345 1.318.607
Other accounts recelvabh A% - 183.458
5 1.280 Fi A.895. 508
Liabdlities in foreign currency
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December 31, 2023

= Other Currencies Tatal Millions of
Millios of .
Dollars Fxpressed in Millions of Colomblan
= .5, Dollars Posos

1 546,553
Drerivativ Tumer 1.17%. 683
iancing 36 ¥ AI0ERA
5 19.110
L0777 1 4 120,170
Net asset position In forelgn currency g 203 1 779,698

If the exchange rate had increased by 10 Colombian pesos per USS1 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023,
the effect on the net position would generste an increase of $1.700 and an increase of $2.040,
respectively.

On the other hand, if the exchange rate had decreased by 10 Colombian pesos per USS1 as of December
31, 2024 and 2023, the effect on net position would generate a decrease of $1.700 and a decrease of
$2.040, respectively,

Liquidity Risk

In the course of its operations, the Group is exposed to Liquidity Risk as a result of not being able to fully,
timely, efficiently, and at reasonable prices meet its financial obligations arising from its commitments,
due to the insufficiency of available liguid resources and/or the need to assume unusual funding costs,

To guarantee adequate control of the Liquidity Risk exposure and provide an adequate environment for
liquidity management, the Group has implemented the Liquidity Risk Management System, framed in the
Integrated Risk Management System (IRMS), through which this risk is effectively identified, measured,
contrelled, and menitored, which is approved by ALCO and the Board of Directors, and is constantly
monitored monthly, through reports on the risk exposure and the approved limits. ALCO meets monthly
to follow up on the liguidity risk exposure at the Senior Management level.

During the third quarter of 2024, the annual review of limits was carried out, under this review, the
different assumptions used in the different monitering and control metrics were evaluated and calibrated.
The next review will be carried out during the second quarter of 2025, in accordance with the periodicity
established jointly by the Bank and Scotiabank,

The policies are aligned with the principles governing Scotiabank's risk management, while complying with
the mandates of local regulations, and are under permanent revision and updating to ensure the validity
and timeliness of the content of the policies for proper management and decision-making.

Contractual Maturities of Assets: The following table presents the undiscounted contractual cash flows of
financial assets, as of December 31, 2024 and 2023:

December 31, 20024

1 1-3 i=h =12 1=3 A=5 E
Manth Maonths Maonths Months Years Year Years
& 2.685.277 - - - .
146.052 118.9387 1.4 667 1.119.564 991.443 810.376
b1 —— TEAGICTE
frrEL :
s M e TIaT

Gy
i

641.070

lemeerecral Wlareale s ' e ju.

B
ENOrdliM - TN
R EE o M AR



Clemencia Paredes Tejada
Official Translator of English - French - Spanish

Officiol tronslation of @ document into English. For identification purposes, it is sealed with the translatar’s stamp,
This transiotion hos been made by Clemencia Paredes Tejada, an official translator duly recognized by the Ministry
of lustice and authorized, Res. number 6694 of 1978

SCOTIABANK COLRPATRIA 5.4, AND SUBSIDIARIES
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 1,083.242 1.494.116 1070516 1.248.641 3139.425 916.566 12181
I 1.484.613 696.190 865,614 1.473.080 4.645.867 2630879 4,947,781
Decamber 31, 2023
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Contractual Maturities of Liabilities: The following table shows the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liahilities, as of December 31, 2024 and 2023:

December 31, 2024
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Regulatory Measurement IRL — During 2024, the Group complied with the limits established by the
regulation in terms of positive 7-day and 30-day IRL, maintaining levels of high-guality liquid assets above
the regulatory limit.

In 2024, the indicator (IRL) in amount and 30-day ratio decreased with respect to the end of 2023. The IAL
behavior was mainly Influenced by funding management through strategies to reduce volatile deposits
and funding compensation through money market transactions. The IRL remains at sufficient levels to
meet liquidity reguirements.
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In line with the above, the strategy of the Group and Treasury has been adjusted to have an efficient
management of liquidity levels, thus complying with the palicies and guidelines established locally and by
scotiabank, together with the strengthening of the management of structural portfolios, high-quality liquid
assets, and the funding structure of the entity.

The comparative result of the IRLr is shown below:

December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
EFr A10%
217% 193%

December/23 = December) 24

BAinimum Poseriage Blaimmym
7 days 266% 533% 1,070
0 days 163% 248% 396%

The following table shows the level of liquid assets at the end of December 2024 and their expected
availability for a period of 90 days, in accordance with the provisions of the Financial Superintendency of
Colombia. Liguid assets show hedging greater than twice the 30-day liquidity needs at the end of
December 2024, For the term from 31 to 90 days, the flow projections show a negative gap due to their
higher concentration and aggregation in the liability pasitions, as usual, given the structure of the Bank's
balance sheet and liquidity management. In this regard, it is worth mentioning that this does not represent

any risk of defaulting on obligations at that term, given that such positions are covered by the high buffers
held in the previous terms.

Ligyuicl Assets ab the Days 1to ¥ Daysdta Days 1 ta 30 Days 31 to
Cut-0ff Date [1) Tatal (2 15 Tokal (2) Total (2) 90 Total (2)
5 A.104.597 3.105.756 2.417.950 2.212.348 (4.085.491)
3411586 3132173 A T4 a3 1.996.121 (1.312.452)

(1) Liguid Assets cormespond to the amount of the available funds, investments in debt securities at fair value, imeestments in
open-end mutual funds without a lock-up agreement, securities, or coupons transferred to the Group In the development
of lending operations in the money market and that have not been subsequently used in borrowing operations in the
money market,

{2} The residual value of liguid assets for each time band after discounting the modified estimated net liquidity requirement
{IRLm).

Throughout 2024, an average level of liquid assets was maintained higher than that recorded at the end
of December 2023 ($4,377.992 and $3.411.586, respectively). In line with the bank's strategy for reducing
funding costs, work is constantly being dane to make more efficient use of liquidity, which has translated
into an increase in the levels of liquid assets avallable for use. These levels are sufficient to support
liquidity needs and ensure compliance with the regulatory and internal limits.
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Decf23 = Dec/2a Decf23 = Decf24 D23 = Decf24a
5 3.319.795 4,377,992 5.749.989
902.666 2213870 3.449.542
1.442.205 2.164.122 2.738.082

Additionally, to monitor the Group's liquidity, the 30-day Consolidated Short-Term Exposure Indicator is
measured, which reflects the net liquidity requirements by currency. The indicator is transmitted ta the
Financial Superintendency of Colombia on a biweekly basis and expressed in dollars.

Indicator December 31, 2024 [ecembaer 31, 20023
lank STE USD 413.276.207 s 437,294,431
ffiliates STEI LSD 6,440,603 LS 8.063.840

Currently, the Group presents positive indicators exceeding the minimum amount reguired greater than
ZEero.

Regulatory Measurement NSFR

The liquidity indicator called Net Stable Funding Ratio — NSFR allows for monitaring the long-term liquidity
of the entities through the structural management of the balance sheet.

This metric established, as of March 2022, the minimum level over the indicator at ene hundred percent
(100%). In September 2023, the regulatory change established by External Circular 013 of 2023 issued by
the Financial Superintendency of Colombia was incorporated.

The Bank has complied with the minimum regulatory requirement since the implementation of the
indicator. Throughout 2024, the Bank worked on the growth of stable funding sources and focused
primarily on reducing costs associated with funding demand deposits related to more volatile customers.

By the end of December 2024, the indicator (NSFR) showed an increase with respect to the end of
December 2023, The NSFR performance was mainly benefited by the lowest funding required due to lower
portfolioc demands, together with a reduction in other assets.

The indicator result is shown below:

December 21, 2024 ) December 31, 2023
Minimum Avorage Maximum Lasi Minimuim Awerage Maimum Last
106,5% 110,2% 114,0% 109,1% 104, 4% 100, O 113, 6% 1065, 55

Derivative Instruments - The Bank is exposed to liquidity risk in connection with the use of derivative
instruments to meet its customers’ needs, generate income from trading activities, manage market and
credit risks arising from its lending, financing, and investment activities, and reduce its cost of capital.
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The internal and regulatory liquidity risk models reflect the inflows and outflows for derivative instruments
through cash flow projections, thereby being considered within the defined limits and liquidity
management.

The Bank maintains the implementation of continuous improvements in procedures, methodologies, and
internal control mechanisms that allow it to effectively identify, measure, control, and monitor risks and
adopt timely decisions for adequate mitigation, in the development of its authorized operations, for
positions in the banking book and treasury book, whether on or off the balance sheet,

Operational Risk Management

The Group manages operational risks under the Integrated Risk Management System (IRMS) according to
External Circular 018 of 2021 issued by the Financial Superintendency of Colombia under the model of the
three lines of defense:

The first line is responsible for identifying and assessing risks and managing them, the implementation of
preventive and corrective actions, and effective controls to address the deficiencies detected in the
processes, the technology, or the administration with third parties. The second line, in this case, Enterprise
Risk Management, is responsible for the duties of risk and control supervision, provides frameworks for
risk management, identifies emerging issues, reports and detects changes in risk appetite, and also
monitors the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management throughout the organization,

Accordingly, the second line of defense has established the Operational Risk Management Palicy through
which the different programs that allow management of operational risks in the identification,

measurement, control, and monitoring stages are reported in order to keep the Group's risk profile
updated.

Likewise, through the Operational Risk Matrix (ORM) tool, which reflects the probability of accurrence of
risks and the impact or consequence given their materialization, the Operational Risk Profile is generated
where, as of December 31, 2024, thirty-three percent (33%) of the risks have a medium rating and sixty-
seven percent (67%) of the risks have a low rating, parameters that are within the acceptable risk appetite
levels. However, the entity has an action plan in place to improve sustainability and maintenance of risks
and controls.

Concerning Third-Party Risk Management (TPRM), through which processes and procedures are
established to assess the exposure to risks of outscurced services, during 2024 several improvemeants were
implemented in the pracess, amang which the fallowing improvements stand out:

i. Expansion of the scope of services subject to the risk assessment process.

ii. Strengthening of terms and conditions included in purchase orders and special alliance contracts.

i, Improvements in due diligence related to technology resilience risk frameworks, information security,
and activities for closing “Exit Strategy” agreements.
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iv. Simplification of risk assessment for various services, including consulting, litigation attorneys, and
financial market infrastructure services, amang others,

v. Implementation of improvements to optimize contract renewal and execution processes.

On the other hand, through the strengthening of independent monitoring, opportunities for improverment
were identified and follow-up activities were implemented through the establishment of action and
manitoring plans, especially for those contracts with a higher level of risk exposure and for the monitoring
activities parformed by the contract manager during the verification of the third party's compliance with
ahligations.

Likewise, training activities on Operational Risk were delivered to critical third parties that provide services
to financial entities, with the purpose of raising awareness of the importance of risk management on
delegated activities.

#s of December 2024, the Bank has 468 active contracts, where fifty-eight percent (58%] of the contracts
were classified as contracts with medium inherent risk, thirty-four percent (34%) as low-risk contracts, and
eight percent (8%) as high- and very-high-risk contracts; Scotia Securities 5.4, Comisionista de Bolsa has 7
active contracts, where 3 contracts were classified as contracts with high inherent risk, 2 as low-risk
contracts, and 2 as high-risk contracts; Fiduciaria Scotibank Colpatria has 21 active contracts, where slxty-
twio percent (G2%) of the contracts were classified as contracts with medium inherent risk, thirty-three
percent (33%) as low-risk contracts, and five percent (5%) as high-risk contracts; after the risk assessment
by the different risk frameworks, it was determined that they are within the Group's risk appetite,
Although within the assessment by the different risk frameworks, some control deficiencies or risk alerts
were identified, these were considered tolerable and there are action plans in follow-up for the
corresponding control task to remedy identified gaps.

Concerning the regulation for compliance with the recording of operational risk events (External Circular
018 of 2021 issued by the Financial Superintendency of Colombia), the loss standard was strengthened to
guarantee the correct identification, collection, and processing of loss events, thus complying with the
high-quality event base, a specific criterion so that the Bank will be able to calculate its own Internal Loss
Indicator (IL1), which is part of the solvency margin calculation, in the following years. In this regard, the
Bank is in a transition period, so the ILI is being taken in accordance with the estimates of the Financial
Superintendency of Colombia until 2025, which for 2024 was 1,5. The Bank continues to develop different
actions at the level of technological systems, adjustment of strategies, and modification of processes to
mitigate the operational risk, including strategies to strengthen controls to reduce the risk of fraud and
assoclated monetary losses.

Analysis of Operational Risk Events

The following are the operational losses:

December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
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? 19,359 15.94
erational rl 5,641 2 GAT
ness annd penali 11.254 A.507
) . [2.847) {3.054)
] a3.a07 50,046

Accumulated losses as of December 31, 2024, are distributed as follows: sixty-eight percent [68%) in
connection with fraud events, twenty-six percent (26%]) in connection with fines, penalties, and litigation;
and thirteen percent (13%) corresponding to operational risk events. In comparison with the losses of
2023, a decrease of thirteen percent (13%) was achieved, which is supparted by the strengthening and
fallow-up of the cantrals implemented in the business units, in addition to the timely identification and
management of events to mitigate economic losses.,

In order to mitigate the events that generate the highest percentage of losses (fraud), authentication
processes and monitoring rules were strengthened, as well as the sending of anti-fraud campaigns through
#CriminalMente, a program established by the Bank that provides our customers with greater knowledge
of the types of fraud and key points to avoid becoming victims of fraud or the fraud itself, mainly by social
engineering. On the other hand, the Biocatch initiative was implemented to evaluate the behavior
between the user and the device, facilitating the identification of events with a high rate of fraud in a
timelier manner, thus reducing loss levels; as well as the implementation of two-way messaging for the
confirmation of customer transactions and facial biometrics in some of the placement channels,

In addition, operational controls were strengthened and  implemented in credit card
origination/maintenance processes (enhancement and re-issuance), revision with allies and internal
working groups to identify weaknesses and subsequent coverage of these.

Business Cantinuity

During 2024, as part of the strengthening of the Business Continuity Management program, the following
activities were carried out:

Updating of the business impact analysis (BIA) and the business continuity plan (BCP) by the different
management departments (78) of the Group, thus complying with the timelines established by
Scotiabank.

- Performing alternate site tests by 6 managers of the entity that defined, as part of their recovery
strategies, to have an alternate operation center, with satisfactory results.

- Follow-up of the performance of disaster backup and recovery testing (DBR) from the functionality of
technological applications to be tested according to the schedule led by the technological
infrastructure team, in order to achieve the greatest participation of the different management
departments of the Bank.
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- Evaluation of the criticality of suppliers (31) reported in the BlIA of processes, validating their
compliance with the business continuity program based on the documentation received and the
questioning carried out.

- Performance of tests (50) in different scenarios of unavailability defined in the policy by different
management departments of the Bank with satisfactory results.

Cybersecurity

During 2024, challenge and independent opinion activities were carried out on different IT and
Cybersecurity processes (direct changes in databases, implementation of Bots, execution of DBR,
technological obsolescence, and IT and Cybersecurity indicators and strategies, among others) generating
opportunities for improvement to established processes, action plans, and contrals.

The implemented strategies were followed up and the approach and planning for the IT and Infermation
security strategies for 2025 were known. Additionally, handling, response, and support were given to the
requests and visits of the Financial Superintendency of Colombia at the On-Site visit level regarding the
revision of controls for the protection of consumer financial information, with minor recommendations
for improvement in third-party verification processes and personal data processing.

The monthly monitoring of the different metrics, among which is the Security Risk Index (SR1), which allows
analyzing that with respect to the SRI security indicator, Protect, the Group maintained the risk level of the
indicator high for most of the year, close to the early warning threshold. However, in Movember, the
objective of reducing the risk level to medium was achieved. During 2024, the components that most
affected the SRl indicator Protect were those associated with phishing vulnerabllities and susceptibility.

The analysis of the SRI risk index, Identify, shows that during most of the year, the indicator remained at a
low level and below the early warning threshold. The increase in the indicator In some months was due
to the device detection component.

During 2024, a new IT and Cybersecurity risk indicator called “SRI 2.0” was Implemented, which will
generate metrics at a more executive level on the following processes: Vulnerability Management,
Software Currency, Management of Assets, Failures caused by Changes, Monitoring of Critical
Components, and Key Controls at Endpaints, among others, This new risk indicator will be analyzed to be
incorporated into the local Risk Appetite Framework for 2025, allowing a more global view of key
information security controls.

Regarding the monitoring of the indicator of hours of technological availability, the respective follow-up
was carried out identifying that during 2024, the indicator exceeded the established limits (9,6 hours)
during March, May, and July with a WIH of 11,67, 21,57, and 20,40 hours, respectively, observing the
normalization of the indicator during the last quarter of the year. During the closing of each month, the
second line analyzed the Incidents and issued recommendations to the Technology area on those that
generated unavailability or degradation of services, in order to generate changes that mitigate the root
cause of the analyzed incidents.
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The DBR [Disaster Business Recovery) program planned for 2024, which focuses an testing IT operations
at alternate sites, was fully and satisfactorily completed. At the end of 2024, the DBRR 2025 program was
planned and approved.

Likewise, the program to reduce technological obsolescence (Software Currency) was implemented as
usual. The case of the business, scope, and budget for the fiscal year 2025 was managed by the Technology
team,

Finally, as regards cyber threats, during the year, there were constant phishing and smishing attacks with
which different public and private entities were impersonated to deceive people and obtain money and
persanal information. The Group reinforced the impartance of managing the risk of third parties due to
external and Internal situations that have had an impact on the Group.

Model Risks

The Group manages the model risk associated with the probability of making erroneous decisions derived
from the use of statistical tools. Within the non-financial risk management framework, the initial
assessment and monitoring of the models implemented in the Bank is performed. The following were the
aclivities carried out:

- Validation of different models used as an independent questioning of the development process
through the conceptual revision of the methodology, the model testing, and the verification af the
processes, as well as a revision of the assessment in use; the above to mitigate the model risk that may
arise, amang other things, from improper specifications, incorrect parameter assumptions, hypotheses
or false assumptions, according to the Group's risk appetite.

- Updating the inventory by the fourth quarter of 2024 to maintain adeguate governance in the
manitoring, recording, and reporting of the Group's models,

Participation in Meetings and Submission of Reports

As required, the Group participates in periodic meetings with Scotiabank to address issues related to
operational risk management and its different programs. In addition, monthly risk committees are held to
infarm senior management of relevant events and the Operational Risk evolution, all within the framework
of regulatory compliance associated with IRMS.

e. Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing Risk Management System (ML/TF-RMS)

The Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing Risk Management System (ML/TF-RMS) meets and
incorporates the characteristics of the Group and Scotiabank as well as the regulatory requirements, best
practices, and international recommendations, especially those issued by the Group of Financial Action
Task Force — FATF.

The Bank's Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing (ML/TF) Residual Risk profile has behaved within
the acceptance levels approved by the Board of Directors, taking into account that no situations were
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affecting the ordinary performance of ML/TF-RMS. To determine this profile, control evaluations were
conducted, and the results of the revisions carried out by the control bodies were taken into account.

During the fourth quarter of 2024, varlous changes and modifications were made to the Institutional
ML/TF Risk Prevention Policy and its corresponding procedures, which were approved by the Board of
Directors and communicated to the interested parties for their corresponding adoption.

As part of the transaction monitoring process, unusual transactions were identified and analyzed under
the parameterized rules, and suspicious transactions were identified and reported where necessary. The
officers were alse reminded of their commitment to report unusual transactions and situations through
the established communication channels.

As part of the transaction monitoring process, the monitoring rules were revised, and adjustments were
made to the tools used. The officers were also reminded of their commitment to report unusual
transactions and situations through the established communication channels,

Different training and communication activities were developed for all officers to raise awareness and
specify duties and liabllities in connection with the prevention and control of the risk of ML/TF and
Sanctions. These training activities were supported by different methodologies and developed according
to the target group.

The requirements of the competent authorities were met within the agreed deadlines, and objective
reports were sent to the Financial Information and Analysis Unit, following the guidelines Issued by the
regulator.

Issuer and Counterparty Risk Management System (SARIC in its initlals in Spanish)

Exposure to counterparty risk (SARIC In its initials in Spanish) is understood as the contingency to which
Scotia Securities is exposed as a consequence of the default in one or several transactions by its
counterparties (or customers), events in which it will have to remedy for the default with its own resources
or materialize a loss in its balance sheet,

This risk may arise in the development of transactions on its own account when the counterparty of the
transaction fails to meet its obligations. Likewise, when one of its customers on behalf of which it carries
put transactions fails to meet its obligations of payment or delivery of guarantees regarding the
transactions entered into under the commission contract.

On the other hand, in accordance with the regulations in force (Decree 2555 of 2010), the value of all the
risks that the Broker contracts and maintains with the same issuer or group of related issuers may not
exceed thirty percent (30%) of its technical equity. For this reason, the entity has implemented a daily
control on the concentration per issuer, which contemplates verification of the positions in securities
and/or bank deposits per issuer.

Scotia Securities Colombia has adopted the guidelines of the Financial Superintendency of Colombia as
regards the Integrated Risk Management System (IRMS) of Counterparty Risk (SARIC) regulated in Chapter
K¥X1 of the Basic Accounting and Financial Circular.
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Likewise, the Broker structures its SARIC and issuer risk management through the Counterparty Risk
Management (SARIC} Manual, which defines the stages of identification, measurement, cantral, and
monitoring for the management of such risk, as well as the procedures and policies according to the
development of its operations, based on local regulatery provisions and the guidelines of its parent
company, scotiabank Colpatria 5.A.

Capital Administration
Capital Management

The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base to preserve the confidence of investars, creditors,
and the market in general, as well as to support the future development of the business. The impact of
the capital level on the return to shareholders is also recognized and a balance is sought to be maintained
between high returns and the advantages and security offered by a strong capital position capable of
absorbing unexpected losses. The Group's Board of Directors and Scotiabank continuously moniter the
various financial risks to which positions within and outside the Bank's separate statement of financial
position are exposed, including capital management risk.

Capital Allocation

The financial risk management and control policy is set directly by the Group's senior management,
analyzed and approved by the Board of Directors, and appropriately disclosed by the Group.

The risk policy is reviewed and updated as part of the annual review process and implemented for the
following year of operation. Senior management maonitors its capital base based on regulatory capital
levels. The allocation of capital between specific operations and activities is, for the most part, driven by
optimizing the return received from the capital allocation. The amount of capital allocated to each
operation or activity is based in principle on regulatory capital requirements. However, these
requirements do not always reflect the varying degree of risk associated with some activities. Although
the allocation of capital is based on the optimization of the return recelved, there are different bases used
for decision-making. In this regard, synergies that may exist between operations and activities and other
resources and the adequacy of these activities with the Group's long-term objectives are also taken inta
account. Finally, the Group's policies with respect to capital management are reviewed periodically by the
Board of Directors.

The Bank complies with the solvency margin requirements in accordance with the provisions of Decree
2555 of 2010, as amended by Decrees 1477 on August 6, 2018, and 1421 of August 6, 2019, This regulatory
framework is aligned with the definitions of regulatory capital established by the International standard,
in accordance with Basel 11l applicable in Colombia. Likewise, it defines the minimum regulatory Solvency
and equity ratios, which are determined by the value of the technical equity, assets weighted by the credit
risk level, market risk exposure, operational risk exposure, and leverage value, and include capital
conservation buffers to avoid deficits.

In relation to the subsidiaries, as of March 2024, under the regulation of External Circular 003 of February
3, 2023, of the Financial Superintendency of Colombia, the existing rules on the calculation of the solvency
ratio of the companies that manage third-party assets were adjusted. In turn, Chapter XII-17 “Selvency
Margin of the Companies that Manage Third-Party Assets” of the CBCF was created to provide instructions
related to the adequate equity and the minimum solvency ratio of the companies that manage third-party
assets.
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The minimum regulatory solvency and adequate equity ratios as of lanuary 1, 2021, applicable to the Bank
are as follows:

Minbmuem plus Capital Buffer for Mininum plus

Minimum C{:n:ﬁ:_;r::mu Conservation Systemically Cornbrimation
Buffer Important Cntitias™ Buffer”
Basic solvency ) 4,5% 15% B% 1% T
Additicnal basic solvency ratic 6% 1,5% 7.5% 1% B.5%
9% 15% 10,5% 1% 11,5%

Todal solvency ratim

* Far entities defined as systemically important.

Fiduciaria Scotiabank Colpatria 5.4, and Scotia Securities (Colombia) S.A. have a minimum solvency

requirement of nine percent [9%).

As of December 31, 2024, the Bank and its subsidiaries meet the minimum required solvency and adequate
equity ratios. The indicators of these are:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Solvency . . soleency Technical
Margin Technical Equity Margin Equity
Scatiabank Colpatria 5.4, 11,72% 2.931.452 11,81% 3.192.585
Fiduciaria Scotiabank Colpaltria 5.4 28.81% 18.514 14, A% 29,464
Scotia Securities [Colombda) 5.4, 397,005 43,731 292,00%, 42,925
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SCOTIABANKE COLPATRIA 5.A, AND SUBSIDIARIES
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The following are the details of cash and cash equivalents:

December 31, December 31,
20249 FLIFE ]
CUrTEnCy
i 3 470,410 742,263
vehe Ly Reprabaleca (2 939.469 93450
d ather financlal entltles 10,238 20,743
465 i34
1.420.582 1.456.730
Fareign currency
1.038 2,208
ttities 1.264.657 L7 A0
1.265.695 1,119,616
I € nd cash equivalent s R
2.686.277 2.576.346

(1) The decrease is due to lower levels of cash required in the ATMs available to the public.

{2} The increase in the balance in the Banco de kb Repoblica account s mainly due to the realization of interest-bearing deposits
in foreign currency and the implementation of strategles that seek to optimize the efficiency of the reserve requirement based
an the levels of concentration in deposits.,

Deposits in cash and Banco de la Replblica may be used in full as part of the legal reserve required by the
Board of Directors of Banco de la Repdblica. Calculation of the proportionality in the use of these deposits
is made on the deposits subject to reserve requiremeants.

As of December 31, 2023, the legal reserve requirement in Colombia was eight percent (8%) for deposits
in checking and savings accounts and three comma five percent (3,5%) for deposit certificates of less than
18 months. With External Resolution Mo. 3, issued by Banco de la Repiblica in August 2024, the reserve
requirement percentages were set at seven percent (7%) for deposits in checking and savings accounts
and two comma five percent [2,5%) for deposit certificates of less than 18 months, applicable as of
September 11, 2024, The legal reserve required, as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, to meet liquidity
requirements for deposits in checking and savings accounts is $906 and 51.131, respectively, and the legal
reserve required to meet liquidity requirements for deposit certificates of less than 18 months is 5218 and
$371, respectively,

Restrictions on the Group's cash and cash equivalents are restricted to special funds and the reserve
requirement in Colombia.

10, Investment Financial Assets

The halance of financial assets in debt securities and investments in equity instruments comprise the
fallowing.

December 31, 2024 Decemnber 31, 2023
Investments at fair value threugh profit and loss
ments (1] ] 1.654.722 B63.117
quity instruments (2) 45470 19,844
1.700.192 I':-ﬂ?!.")!.';ﬁ
Inwestiments at amortized cost 1.443.074 1.567.625

Cilemencia Taredes T ;
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December 31, 20024

Investments at falr value through OCI
[reelal imsbroments | £) 2841, 206
Egjuity instruments 145,099
29553IJ5
Total investment financial assets 5 El!! 571

December 31, 2003

L.096.135
133.946
2,230,081

4480662

{1} During 2024, these investments showed an increase of $991.610 as compared with the halances reported as of December
2023, mainly due to the acquisitions of T-Bills and short-term TES securities by the Bank's treasury, as part of the liguidity

management strategy and the risk management business model,

{2} Dwring 2024, there was an increase in these investments mainly due to the valuation in Redeban Multicolor 5.4, according

to the report submitted by the market supplier, Precia.

{3) As of December 31, 2024, an increase of $745.071 was recorded as compared with the balances reported as of December
31, 2023, mainly related to acquisitions of TES securities by the Bank’s treasury, which responds to the deposit hedging
strategy that the Bank has been developing given the current cycle of the maonetany policy interest rate.

Interest received on investment assets on December 31, 2024 and 2023, was $198.860 and 5166.464,

respectively,

Dividends received from investrents in equity instruments on December 31, 2024 and 2023, were 56.574

and $5.688, respectively.
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SCOTIABANK COLPATRIA 5.4, AND SUBSIDIARIES
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11.Trading and Hedging Derivatives

The details of the fair value of derivative instruments are as follows:

[herivative fssels

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
: r.'u[;l]\ng ”E?f;nﬂ Trading Hedging
Intenest rate contracis
5 164,949 5.068 A48, 725 1.810
Foreign exchange contracts
1 407 683 - 1.134.623
£.290 106,104 3097 174,558
i - a0
25.246 - 18, GOE
Securltles contracts
weCLnilies Foraand 14._'.!'22 =
Tatal H G21.157 111.172 1.706.1494 179.368

Derivative Liabilitics

December 31, 2024 o _ December 31, 2023
Trading Hedging . .
; Tradin Hedgin
(1) 2) . Bne
Interast rate contracts
Inberest rate swip 5 167,783 - 454,017 45,484
Fareign exchange contracts
Currancy forward A3R.997 = A2E.H13 -
Currean 18,385 - 16,781 189,464
2 - .
17.123 = L7.620
45975 - 292
- B7.89%9
- 9.19¢ -
-] 64T 265 77.085 1,352,523 234.948

(1) Trading Derivatives

The fair value of derivative instruments has positive or negative variations as a result of fluctuations in
exchange rates, interest rates, or other risk factors depending on the type of instrument and the
underlying.

(2) Hedging Derivatives

a, Cash Flow Hedges

Hedging with Derivatives

This type of strategy seeks to protect the variability of the flows received or paid by the Bank from the
balance sheet items designated as hedging cbjects, through the use of derivative instruments. In general,
the swaps used can change, e.g., the payment flows of an item from USD to COP, or from the IBR variable
rate to the fized rate, protecting the balance sheet from the volatility of such exposures.

Cash Flow Hedpes, Assets

- Synthetic Investments: USD bond investments
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As part of its structural investment portfolio, the Bank purchases sovereign bonds in USD (Yankees) and
designates the flows received from these bonds as a hedge object in order to change them from USD fixed-
rate flows to COP fixed-rate flows, eliminating the exchange rate volatility.

The hedping instrument is a Crass Currency Swap, in which the Bank receives a fixed rate in COP and pays
a fixed rate in USD (replicating the coupan and principal payments to be received from the bond), thus
limiting the volatility of the flows received in the face of changes in the USD/COP rate.

Cash Flow Hedges, Liabilities:
- Synthetic Funding: Loans in UsD

The Bank has loans in USD indexed to USD variable interest rate (SOFR + Spread), or in USD fixed rate. In
this sense, the objective of this strategy is to limit the volatility of the projected cash flows from the loan,
in the face of variations in the USD/COP exchange rate.

The hedging instrument is a Cross Currency Swap, in which the Bank pays a fixed rate in COP and receives
a fixed or variable rate in USD (under the same conditions of the loan taken). This hedge effectively
translates the designated component of the cash flows of the loan in USD into a fixed-rate instrument in
COP and, therefore, eliminates the volatility of the paid cash flows in the face of changes in the USD/COP
exchange rate,

- Macro Hedging = 90-day TDC portfolio and interest-rate sensitive demand accounts.

In its operations, the Bank issues 90-day TDCs and captures demand resources that have a high correlation
with the monetary policy rate (IBR overnight indicator). In this sense, the objective of this strategy is to
limit the variability of the repricing of this type of liahilities to the base interest rate risk and pay a fixed
rate at a determined term.

The hedging instrument is an interest rate swap In COP, in which the Bank receives IBR overnight and pays
a fixed rate at a determined term, thus fixing the cost of the base risk of 90-day deposits and demand
accounts.

Carrying Amaunt of the

Hredging Instrument Hadge Ineffectivendss
Par Value ol Gaing/[Losses) on Gelmy/[Losses] on the |||ef::::f1m§.$ Cadrying
For the Perlod Ending on Gecember : Hedging Instruments Hypothetical Derivative i Am
21, 2024 e fssets - Lsbilities  ycdtocalulate  UsedtoCalculate Medge | Mroroe Hx:ﬁ:::f
Hadga Inaffoctiveness Ineffectiveness the Pariod
Cash Flow Hedges
i Hank ot 5684921 74,869 2007 B2.746 B854 . 529.770
Lemand daposits £ IRS 2 271528 ] 1.703 18.092) [12.348] [167) 71528
KAy, WCD CRENBR SeTRGA0NS,, 15 182,380 280 . 113 n 15 182,380
_| ) 571619 31,235 G892 [26.854) [26.855]) - 953.685
CRHICHILY S T e
Total L9594.4498 L0384 75.602 ®/ALT 23702 [152) 1.937.363
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Carrying Amount of the
Huslging Instrument

Hedge Inellecliveness

Hedge
ai |
I-hl:nllll:ﬁl;:izin]u[:h 5:1$j:;:|;:5;::::ﬁ Inffectivemes: Canrying
LELTEEY Liahilithes i . i N Recorded in Amount of tha
Usad to Caboulate Ui to Calculate Hedge et Incame for Hadaed ftam
Hedge Ineliectiveness Ineffrctiveness the Period
L nhs 167 34 167 A5 ut] A5 HGT
F4.L1s 34,1280 (1L.143) 2r1528
1.B10 Gt 1185 208 185 AR 530
1% 464 (175,729 [175.7249) 1065, 46
179.368  322.650 “{39.373) (46394 283 2.210.383

Items that Have Affected the S5tatement of Other Comprehensive Income

The following table summarizes the movement of the cash flow hedge in other comprehensive incoma:

g Par Yal f
Far the Pariod Ending on December il
thue Herdging
31 2023
Instrument
Cash Flow Hedges
Treasury boreds (A0} S Cross cudmancy -
GGEG1
SR
emand depEesing £ IRS 0 71.528
Wh-day term dieposit certificat iF e
1RE.5 3
LWwap
5 I Forelgn currency f Crogs i 354 137
CLIFTEmCY Sheap
Takaal 283,106
For the Period Ending on Becember 31, 2024
Cash Flow Hedges

Trensury bands {USD) f Crass carrenty swap

M ¢ % RS swap

SO-day tar cartifscates £ IR swap
Lanns in T

Total

urrenCy / Cross cUmency swap

For the Meripd Encling on December 31, 2023

Cash Flow Hedges
Teeasairy bands (L50) f Cros

Balance in Cash Flow Hedge

Unraalized ReservefForeign
Currency
Currency Translation
Account as of December 31,
piirl
— “:] I ::::i | i B:m““u?] .
an O as Gain w0 OC] as o
December 31, Recognined in R;:T:l!:::b December 31, Active Hedges
223 oa " 20
65 383 [49.550) 17357 36,150 36,150
[34.178) 29,044 [3.087) {8.171) (B.171)
LETO 3113 [6.010) {27] 27}
{7,060 172795 [73.423) (3.208) (3.208)
et e e G AT a8
Balanee in Cash Flow
Huedge
Unrealized
Reseree/Foreign
Currency
Currency Translation
Account a5 of December
o omaen
G:irrs.f[mw:i ;:-m o Gains [Losses)
af0C] a3 g Gainesf|Losses) i i 001 o off .
Dreoember 31, Recognized in Rﬂ":!:::::::n Decernber 31, Active Hedges
2l L. - i ' = IO ——
4TG50 68381 GE.3%3
. [27.7185) (39122} (34,128
15.304 3. H08 {14 6032 1570 2870
15.822 (404.789) 374507 [ TG00y {7.060
CasAE (18364Y)  A7RSRE 30,065 " 30.0B5
80 ¢ emencin Pared s Teidd..
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Far tha Periad
Ended Decombaor
31, 2024

Interesl Bale Risk
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Cash Flow Hedges of Highly Probable Transactions

AL present, the Bank has contractual obligations in dollars which, due to the volatility of the exchange rate
(UsD/COP), affect the Bank's net income to the extent that payments are made on a future date. Given
this, for hedging purposes, they are classified as highly probable transactions.

For purposes of this strategy, the hedged item is defined as the projected USD cash flows that the Bank
would pay for within a predefined and sufficiently delimited future period, starting with the first cash flow
to be paid. The projected USD cash flows, which are eligible to be hedged, are based on the Bank's budget
expenditure projection,

The hedging instrument, in this case, is the purchase of US dollars in the SPOT market, according to the
schedule of projected cash flows for the payments that are the hedged item. For this reason, a long
position in USD/COP is designated as a hedging instrument through the purchase of cash, where the Bank
purchases a specific amount of dollars at an exchange rate and allocates them to the monthly payment of
these abligations considerad highly probable.

h. Fair Value Hedge

This type of strategy seeks to protect the fair value of the hedged item through the use of hedging
instruments, in general, swaps that reflect the movements of the interest rate curve, as the case may be.
The swaps used as hedpges reflect interest rate expectations through the exchange of the variable rate (IBR)
vs. fined rate.

Accumulated Aimoent
Carrying Amount of the Gains/[Losses)
ol the Hedging Hedge IneHectiveness Adjustments to the
Inatriment Fadr Value Hedge over
i — — — — the Hedged tem
. Inafleetiveness
Aol e Meddngimnmacuied  Wedgedmmudto  OeNedie NS
PR ' to Calculate Caleulate : the Hedped 5
Instrusment X 2 Net Incomie for
Inaffectivaness Ineffectiveness liem
the Period
265.000 4.194 1.386 12817 (23.907) [1.090) 22216 9,395
517,200 594 1107 {3.507) 1524 17 5203 [3.524)
782,200 4788 1493 —l M - T - 57
{femencia Pa :Eﬁ?.'._:iflr].:rdr.-
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Accumubiled Amounl

Carrying Amount of the Gaing fLogses)

ol the Hedging Hedpe Ineffectiveness Adjustments to fhe
InStrument Fair Value Hedge over
— . e I the Hodged fam
y Ineffectiveniss  Carrying
Eor the Perlod Par Amaunt of i Gd:r“r'i:“:;::r:'t md ﬁ:‘:’"ﬂm’:{;;: of tha Hedge  Aumount of
Endod Docembe the Hedging Assets Uiabilities eaging L_:*"I . “m o Rucorded in the Active Hedgas
31, 2003 Iretnament I“:I i g > wr: - Nt Incanme Hodged
welecveness TR iorthePeriod  tem
Iivbesresk Rate Risk -
Swap
TES Mzl -rader
secuniies f RS 265000 12.045% [13.705) 14512 207 Ma312 {14.512}
Tatal . 2ES.000 L 12.045 11].;"{"’5} . . _1:1.'1-1?: - 20 - 21‘5.#11 {14.512)
Cash Flow Schedule
Becember 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
_ Remaining Term to Maturity Remalning Term to Maturity
Between Morg Bevween Mare
Par Aot Up to D Léar than Fle Tatal Up to 0 than Five Tatal
One Year and Five O Year and Five:
ears Yeors
Years Years
Cash Flow Heslge
S0 bands f Cross eurrency svwap 5 - 312126 F56 795 S6E.521 199.4038 369,13 Soa.wl
Buemand deposits § 1R p - - 271528 271528 : 271525
O0-day TDC: FIRS swap 142,100 40,280 - 182,380 206,150 182 380
Foreign  currancy  loans [/ Cross 971,619 - & 971,619 252,513 971619 1.254.13]
CATTENCY SWap
Foir Volue Hedges
TES liorsl-rabie secunties / 1R swap - 10,000 105000 265,000 . 160,000 105, 000 265000
Term deposits (TRC) RS swap 332.000 185,200 - 517,200 =
Total % Laas5.3149 GO 606 613,323 2.TI6.6AR 88,663 1.51_.3-.5'1 ? ) TI'I_'E:_B IJ: ) _2.;1'l1 B.111
Average Rate or Price
) December 31,2024 December 31, 2043
Fined Intarast Exchangs Rate “Fixed Interest Exchonge
Average Price or Rates of Hedging Instruments Rate Rate
(2 Rate )
—— . - L B
Cash Flow Hedges (Assels)
Exchange rate difference / Interest rate risk - Swap 13,885 4.632.22 13,88% 463222
Cash Flow Hedges (Liabilities)
Imterest rate risk - Swap 9,41% h i 9,17% LT
Exchange rate difference J interest rate risk - Swap 13, 89% 1.519,16 13,65% 4.459.86
Fair Value Hedges [Assets)
" Interest rate risk — Swap 9,06% A a9, 06% MiA
Fair Value Hedges (Liabilities) )
Interest rate rish -~ Swap 5,90% MR N/A NfA
(1)  Weighted average interest rates relationships of all relationships. Annual Effective Rates {30/360)
(2] wWoeighted average agreed-upon exchange rates of all hedging relationships
{lemencia t.!‘urtdn'l'rmﬂu
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12. Loan Portfolio and Financial Leasing Operations

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the consumer portfolio includes the housing portfolio and the
commercial portfalio and includes loans with commercial mortgages.

The following are the details of the portfolio by type of segment:

becember 31,200 D“m::l'_:;r =
Commercial portfolic 5 9.324.094 12.015.350
S - (236,743} (238,436}
;;-.'n porticdio 18,354,502 149.230). 146
oo 11.089.838) (1.160.146)
Tetal 5 26.352.015 29.846.914

Impairment Movement for Loan Portfolio

The following are the details of the impairment of commercial and consumer portfolios:

Beginning balance as of December 31, 2023 § {1.298.582)
Expurnses lor portiolio impairment [1.453.466)
O portfolio impaimusent (216.378)
Wiriter-ol s 1LB2E.E51
Sale of corrent portlolio and others 112,994
Balanoe as of December 31, 2024 g ) (1.326.581)
Beginning balance as of December 31, 2022 § (1.143.240)
Fapenses for partfobio impadrment (L.ATE. 00
O portiolio impairoent [79.346)
Wrile-afls 1. 187060
Sale of current portfolio and others 115.234
Balance as of December 31, 2023 - (1.398.582)

a. Consumer Portfolio

Provision for loan portfolio impairment

December 31, 2024 . December31,2023
Capital Imgairrment Tatal Capital Imgairment Taotal

Cards 5 3.909,157 {316.678) 3.592.479 4,289,237 (366, 7R%) 3.882.452
— J 879.114 (55.832) 773,282 1.0, 386 (97, 700) 988.677
S LN L

Codensa 1.515.490 (111.648) 1.403.842 1670175 [112.545) 1.557.630
Maortgage + Employess 6.602.647 (105,491) 6,497,156 G222, 080 [96.411) 6.725.678
Commercial morigags A428.547 {7.829) 420,718 493.743 [9.483] 454,260
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rl RIS 4.143.734 {384.601) 3,759,123 4,023,306 (395.114) 3,628,192
Payrent ofders 24.235 (1.404) 22,831 44,784 [2.957) 41.827
Restructure 586,753 (77.323) 509,430 380380 [52.944) 327,436
fehicle + 5h 314,825 (29.032) 285.793 AED, 046 [26.198) 433,848
Total § 18,354,502 {1.089.838) 17.264.664 19.230.145 {1.160.146) 18,070,000

Segmentation by Stages of Credit Losses in Loans

) Decemnber 31, 2024
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal
Cards -] 108.351 115,513 03.514 316.6748
Revaolving + Overdrafe + Prestochequ 15.451 19,048 21.333 55.832
Codensa 27.731 41.142 42.775 111.648
Muortgage + Employees 10,981 42.553 51857 105491
Commercial mortgage 547 4.256 3.026 T7.829
nstalomenta + Unlinked + thaers 40,017 182 067 162.517 384601
Payment orders 778 A6 162 1.404
Restroctured 2.339 16.018 58.966 77.323
Vehlecle + ShE 1.407 y 2?:}4 ) 24.921 29.032
Total 5 207.602 424,065  as8a71 1.089.838
December 31, 2023
Stagel N Stage : ) ' Stage 3 Talal
Cards & 129,548 138 767 08,470 66785
Revalving + Overdralt # Prestachedque 26,016 29.967 41,776 07,708
Codensi 36,607 A3, 840 32038 112,545
Mortgage + Crployvess 12,471 A2.062 a1, 7% 06,411
Commercial morlgage 1.077 3.7700 4,706 L1
Instodamento + Unlinked + Others 147,506 138.697 108,911 395,114
Fayment order 1.797 713 447 FLLY)
Restructured 3.659 30820 18,465 52,044
Vathicle + SME 2215 3.689 20,294 26,198
Total 5 360.956 432,855 366.335 1.160.146 .

The following table presents the changes in credit loss movements during the year:

l]m:ember__ﬂl, 2024
Stagel Stage 2 . Stage3 Total
Balance as of December 31, 2023 4 360.956 ) - 43!.555_ o 355.135 1.160.146
Remeasurements {B40.705) (¥33.707) 1,114,057 [260.355)
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Dacember 21, 2024
Stage 1 Stayre 2 Slage 3 Total )

: ||I‘ r.;\l micackels and methodalogies IZM.ZM:I [45_5?51 {T.Eﬂz:l IES?-:GI-'
Impairment dug 1o new loans 331,476 357.959 264.312 953,747
Release for cancelltoms and pinpments [379.195) (56B.958) {525.2496) (1.473.399)
Trans{er to

Stag 6577.633 398.623 311.519 1.387.775
Stage J 60.189 563.039 557.423 1.180.651
Stage 2 512 20.829 122591 143.932
Total impainment movement (153.354) (8.790) 1.B36.764 1.674.620
Write-off - {1.557.815) {1.557.815)
Retoveries - - {187.113) (187.113)
Balance a3 of December 31, 2024 s 207.602 424,065 458,171 1.08%9. 38

December 31, 2023

Stage 1 ) Stage & Stoge 3 Tutn:l '_ i
Balance as of December 31, 2022 L3 375,041 300.876 263 2HE 939,205
Remeasuremednrs {9R1,287) [617.563) 1.171.658 (a0, 192}
Changes in models and methodologies =
. | {1136.457) 237 23.65 99,530}
{Covid-19) {136.457) 13 23.650 | 30}
Impairment due to new loans 17,521 250,521 SOR. 278 22730
1 5 ¢ cancallations and payments 1254,136) [6O8,B6T) (906.604) {1.A59.607]
Stage 1 407,603 343,302 14,977 1.065.882
Skage 2 111,876 229,135 134,294 459,305
Stage 3 85 11.174 54,268 GG, 257
Total impalrment movement [14.085) 131.979 1.339.431 1.507.375
Write-ofis - (1.145.531} {1.145.531)
Recaveries - ) ) {1400, 903) {140,903}
Balance as of December 31, 2023 5 160,956 432,855 366,335 1,160,146

Key Input and Assumptions

A model based on portfolio rolling between delinquency bands by product is used, under this
understanding, the key controls include:

- An accounting reconciliation process for reporting balances by arrears period, write-off amount, and
recovery amounts.

- An auditable process for the model implementation parameters such as the average product rate and
the expected remaining life of the portfalio,

Macroeconomic scenarios are included in the model to calculate the level of expected credit losses
through adjustment factors at the level of losses in optimistic, pessimistic, and base scenarios, which are
weighted according to economic expectations.

¢ lemenita Paredes Tejade
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R Base Optimistic Pessimistic Pessimislic
MpaxmES Scenario Scenario Scenario scenario FL
631.669 746,291 02820 Ed1.287 1.033.709

Carrying Amount of Exposures by Risk Rating

The following is the exposure by risk contribution for Probability Given Default (PGD) by class of credit:

Credit Cards
PED Category

¥ Mgn

Tatal

Rewolving
PGD Category
Very low

Lo

kedium

High

Wary high

Total

Covdurnsa

PGD Category
very low

Lo

Ibeechivim

High

very high

Total

Total Mortgage
PG Category
Very o

Loy

Medivem

High

ey high

Tatal

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

% 3.835 112.970 90.559 207.364

30.853 1.956 B51 33,460

33,601 SR BER 34.874

28.643 282 618 20.543

11.419 13 - 11.437

[ 108.351 115,813 92.514 316,678
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 ) Tatal

5 207 18.453 20762 39.422

3.852 366 135 4.353

4,166 138 236 4.540

5.307 Rl 181 5.569

1919 10 19 1.948

5 15.451 19.048 21,333 55.832
Stagel Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

37 33.548 32.991 66.912

4 g 2.691 5,448 11.856

4,924 3.511 3055 11.490

7.545 919 770 9,234

1172 473 511 1256

5 27.731 41142 42775 111,648
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Takal

5 864 33.374 27.396 61.634

5.827 13.380 27.145 46.352

3.548 51 230 3.829

1.001 2 48 1.051

288 2 164 454

4 11.528 A6.809 54.983 - 113.320
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Loans
PED Category Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal
! | 5 10 1448.731 219.094 367.835
" 141 30.040 73 30.254
Mediun 11.523 19,255 61 30.839
High 12.447 131 129 12.707
viery higl 19.013 292 2.288 21,693
Tatal 5 43,134 198,549 221.645 453.3.’-.‘_!
Vehicle « SME
PGD Category Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal
Vry bow I3 . 150 208 358
Liww 15 11 [ a2
W= clam 17 = = 17
High 9 - 9
very high 3 - - 3
Laans with noe PO 1.363 2.543 24.707 28.613
Tertal 5 1.407 1704 24.921 29.032
Non-Impaired Past Due Loans
Partfolle Balance by Delinquency Strips December 2024
Product 160 6190 >80
Morigage = 125.338 71.855 303.069
Loy 110,265 T9.977 202.549
Rank TIX 53.666 47.627 119.069
Codensa 26.004 24191 104,589
Tatal H 315.243 223,650 729,286
Partfolio Bakance by Delinguency Strips Decermber 2023
Product 31-60 G190 =20
Morgage § 160,037 89.771 263.591
Loans 151150 117.517 232088
114,782 12,229 104,566
FBG3 33,014 1E.BR7
5 496.632 312.531 639132
b. Commercial Portfolio
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Capital Impairment Total o Capital Impairment Tetal
. Parcdes
87 {'IE“IEERE?'IIL::.JI: L

GhLIST
o R L

TORE OF
g

Elgufyim oY
LFTT R T

Tejataia
all!



Clemencia Paredes Tejada
Official Translator of English - French - Spanish

Official translation of o document into English. For identification purposes, it Is sealed with the translator’s stamp.
This translation has been made by Clemencia Paredes Tejodo, an officlal translator duly recognized by the Ministry
aof Justice and authorized, Res. number 6694 of 1978.

SCOTIABAME COLPATRIA S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

] 9.324.004 [236.743) 9.087.351 12.015.350 (23H.436) 11.776.914

Impairment Movement

December 31, 2024
Stage 1 Stage 7 Stage 3 Total

Balance as of December 31, 2023 5 40,126 77051 121.259 238.436
Remeasuremaents [26.157) 49.071 39,5009 112423
lprainment due to new leans 120.123 - 13.845 133,968
Release for cancellations and payrments (85.443) {57.587) - [143.030)
Transher to:

Stage 1 [6.539) 5,539 =

Stage 2 7.403 [7.403) - -
Total impairment movement 8.387 (9.380) 103.354 103.361
Wrire-oflz - - (71.036) (71.036)
Recoveries - - (34.545) [34.545)
Other movements [223) 750 - 527
Balance as of December 31, 2024 5 49,290 G8.421 119.032 236.743

December 31, 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Balance as of Decamber 31, 2022 g 34.329 62,255 ‘_I.ﬁ.- 51 204,085
Remeasurements (27.596) e 4505
Impairment due to new loans A 458 13.03% 61493
Rezbease lor cancellations and paymments (24.115}) [18.066) (a2 181}
Iransfer to
Ctape 1 [B.753) B.753
Stage 2 JLILI [9.610) ) = o )
Tatal impairment movemeant . H".Iﬁl 1.995 87.308 BE.O07
Write-olls - {41.5.24) 141.529)
Impainmuent recoveries - {31.971) (31.971)
Dther movements G193 12.801 - 18.994
Balance as af December 31, 2023 - 40.126 ) F1.051 1zx1. 2"'"‘ 238,436

Key Input and Assumptions

The Bank's provision calculations are products of complex models with a number of variable underlying
assumptions. Some of the key variables include:

- Changes in the risk ratings of the borrower or instrument, reflecting changes in credit standing.

- Changes in transaction volumes.
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Chanpges in the future-ariented macroeconomic environment are reflected in the variables used in the
models, such as GDP growth, unemployment rates, commaodity prices, and housing price indexes,
which are most closely related to credit losses in the relevant portfolio.

- Changes in macroeconomic scenarios and probability weights assigned to each scenario; and

Borrower migration between the three stages may result from changes in any of the above
assumptions and input.

The following table provides a comparison between the estimated credit losses for portfolios in Stage 1
and Stage 2 and the impairment under the optimistic and pessimistic scenarios:

Impairmen Base Optimistic Pessimistic Pessimistic
t Scenarlo Scenario ~ Scenarlo Scenarlo FL
Credit losses 5 117.711 102.280 96.214 128.794 290.324

Non-Impaired Past Due Loans

Partfolio Balances by Delinquency Strips December 2024

More than 91
e, R i o
] 1.250 13.443 929 15.622
Portfolio by Maturity Period
December 31, 2024
Maore than
One Menth More than “T:,::pi:‘ )
. LI b Ol anil Mot Three Manths Nat Mu;e Mo than Interest Total
Segment Manth hore than and Mot More 3 Five Years
than Five
Thres than One Year Yoars
Commercial 5 773.604 1.591.676 2,341,435 4.354.771 140.188 122,420 9.324.094
Consumplion 1.746.527 T15.436 2.561.414 7.862.996 5.151.?09_ 256,420 18,354.502
$ 1.520.131 2.367.112 4,902,849 12.217.767 5,291,897 37H.BAD 27,678,596
December 31, 2023
Maore than Mara than
One Month Maore than
L b Ol an Mot Threa Maonths One Yesr ond Maore than
F
I
Segment Maonth More than and Mot More o M?m Five Years nfmpert Tom
tham Five
Thres than One Year Yoars
Morlths ) )
Comamereia % 2. 200,950 3.274.329 S 3428 155,396 194,595 12015350
Consumption 794673 2.627.593 8.345.859 5.527.162 329,915 19,230,146
5 3.035.663 5.902.222 13.989.297 5682558 5214.511 31.245.496
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Interest Generated by the Bank's Portfolio: The effective annual interest on average monthly balances
generated by the Bank's portfolio was as follows:

Sopments From January 1 to From January 1 to

' December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
e $ 12,38% 14, 5%
ERELI RS 22,45% 24,21
i weludes monetary corfection 10,58% 10} A0V

Annual Effective Placement Rates: As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Bank had published the
following rates for the different portfolio types:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

From 12.727% to 14, 96%
Cormumercial loan From 5,50% to 16 % AE. o 2.2 tes 14,

Depending on the Company

AE.

9,94% A.E. 9,81% A.E. VLl (Real Walue Unit)

11,45% A.E. 16,92% A.E. Pesos
fouesing I

7.59% AE. 10,41% AE. Social housing RV

10,79% ALE. 14,30% AE. sacial housing pesas
Criedit card {consumption) 26,11% AE, AT 5% AE. For purchases

’ Fromm 12,42% to 26,11% Fromn 45, 75% to 37 55%

Revolving cradit limit [consumption) AE AE

Interest on the loan portfolio received as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, was 54.4B8.466 and 54.968.461,
respectively.

Accrued Interest on the loan portfolio as of Decernber 31, 2024 and 2023, was $4.405.691 and 55.112.346,
respectively.

Portfolio Sale

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Bank sold the portfolio obtaining a profit of $73.593 and 5113.351,
respectively, broken down as follows:

Written-Off Portfolio Sale

The fallowing are the Bank's commercial and consumer portfolio sales during 2024 and 2023:

December 31, 2024 Decemnber 31, 2023
Gross Capital Salling Price Gross Capital selling Price
Balance ) Balwnce
Commercial 4 24,634 7.389 143,000 16.956
Consumplion 048346 62,531 1.243.177 69.658
69,920 86659
= Clemencia Paredes Tefada
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Current Portfolio Sale

The following are the details of the sale of the commercial portfolio as of December 31, 2024 and 2023:

December 31,
Decembaer 31, 2004 Az

Comnmercial Commercial
Carrying amount of portfolio, interest, and others § 92.375 13,006
Provision for "||II||j:|‘|| interest, and others {15.774) [32.887)
Wit canying amaounl 76601 144
Less w'iin;r. Price B80.274 26,541
Income 5 3.673 26.597

¢, Accounts Receivable from Financial Leasing

The Bank offers asset-based financing and uses a wide variety of industrial equipment and commercial

companies to offer financial programs tailored to the needs of manufacturers, dealers, and distributors of
assets.

The accounts receivable from financial leasing are included in the loan portfolio. The Bank's net
investment in the accounts receivable from financial leasing was as follows:

December 31, 2024
F“r.i."s-:nt Velue D.1 }."qum Future Financial Gross imvestment in Accounts
Receivable from Minimum Lease ;

Income Receivable from Financial Leasing

Mayments ) S
Do year of less % 20.774 74.946 165.720
Qe b Tive yiear 183.447 183461 366908
wWiore than five year 319,819 242,753 .552.5?1
Final balance 5 594,040 501,160 1.095.199

) December 31, 2023
Present Value of Accounts

i gl Fubure Financial Gross investment in Accounts
Receivable from Minimwm Lease : i oad
Income Receivable from Financial Leasing
) _Payments ) )
One year or less 5 $2,522 92 587 175.108
One o five years 216.028 224,685 460,713
Blore than five years 67352 288576 EELREEE
Final balance ] G£5.907 605,848 1.291.750

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, an uncollateralized remaining value of $59.440 and $73.580 had been
recorded.

The following are the details of other accounts receivable, net:

Clemencia Parvdes Tejada
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December 31,

December 31, 2024 2023
50 5 17,301 201,559
asits (1) 107.495 205,751
i 23.775 16. 785
T, 56,1490 52,023
thi tman 11,553 11.5971
i Critd wtract (2) 14.043 AR3,934
frira de Ri le Comtrapaote 30,054 35.518
b 12,184 12314
[he=rivartive i 4,536 4,831
Various others 61.415 39,050
Impairment ) [&.262) (5.221)
Total & 332,284 287.575

(1} The decrease is explained by the reduction in the valume of eperations carrled out threugh security deposits that suppart the
operations with foreign financial institutions, as part of the liquidity management strategy.

{2} As of December 31, 2024, the account receivable from Enel comprised collection of the kst days of December, while at the end
of December 2023, the balance corresponded to 90 days of collection pending transfer by Enel Codensa to the Bank.

Impairment expenses on accounts receivable amounted to $3.577 as of December 31, 2024; as of December
31, 2023, it was 52.087.

14. Non-current Assets Held for Sale

The following is the movement in non-current assets held for sale:

Dacember 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Beginning balance 5 19.824 Z7.23E
Additions 15.453 23,935
Reclassilication towards other @ssets - [2.497)
Reclassification towards investment property {16.128) {19.567)
Cost of assets wold [5,3?9} [9.285]
12.270 T 19824

Adjustrnent to the lower of fair value and carrying amount [497) [553)
$ 1 1m2m1

The following is the movement in the impairment of nan-current assets held for sale:

December 31, 2024 Decernber 31, 2023

Beginning balanoe 5 .553 175
recorded as expenses 819 730
crigh sale (332} {178}
Reclassification towards insestment property [543} {174}
§ 497 553
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Marketing

The Bank carries out the following steps for marketing non-current assets held for sale:

The marketing is carried out through the publication of the assets on the Bank's web page for the
knowledge of the general public. This publication is made with the infermation of the assets for sale
and photographic records, providing the possibility of direct contact by the interested parties with the
officers of the responsible area of the Bank via e-mail for the expansion of information, contactability,
arganization of agendas, and handling of proposals.

- Lists are created to be delivered to possible interested parties and the information is distributed to the
Office Managers and Area Managers so that they will become acquainted with and distribute the list
of the Bank's properties, so that each one may offer the properties according to the portfolio of
customers handled by them.

This commercial list is sent periodically to all potential customers who at some time, have been
interested in the assets sold by the Bank.

- Each of the real estate assets has a notice of sale published indicating that the property is owned by
the Bank and disclosing the contact telephone number, so that the interested parties may contact the
Bank to start negotiations; additionally, there is a QR that refers to the Bank's web site where the assats
are published, so that they may expand the infarmation regarding the immovahble property and access
the information available in the web site.

- Agreements are made with real estate agencies to promote sales and visits are made to all the
properties in the different regions where they are located on a regular basls In order to strengthen the
marketing processes and support the efforts almed at achieving the urban planning regulations
applicable to immovable properties to verify their best use,

- Auction processes (virtual) are carried out where goods owned by the Bank are made available to the
general public so that those interested parties may participate openly in their acguisition; these
auctions, as well as the goods that are traded, are made public and are reported in mass media for the
knowledge of those Interested parties at a general level,
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SCOTIABAME COLPATRIA 5.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Motes to the Consalldated Financial Statements

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, there are no mortgages or title reservations on the items of property
and equipment, nor have they been assigned as mortgage collateral.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, from the sale of real estate that in the IFRS transition balance sheet
used the fair value as the attributed cost, 56.389 and 55.114 were reclassified from the first-time adoption
to retained earnings, respectively.

Sale of Property and Equipment

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, sales of property and equipment are detailed below:

December 31, 2024

December 31, 2023

| 1 | I 3 A5.622 10,785
it aly 1551 4.433 4550
Procecds from the sals 1 R0.05%5 13.341

Impairment of Property and Equipment

The Group evaluated internal and external indicators such as significant changes in the legal, economic,
technological, or market environment with an unfavarable impact on the value of assets, resulting in the
identification of some indicators that reflect a measure of impairment of fixed assets represented in real
property and constructions in progress as of December 31, 2024, and December 31, 2023, for which the
Group proceeded to the calculation of the recoverable amount and as a result, it recognized the value of
$235 and $62 for impalrment, respectively, No evidence of impairment was identified with respect to real
estate assets.

Decommissioning

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Bank had made provisions for decommissioning of $3.671 and
$3.982, respectively. (See Mote 23).

16. Invastment Property, Net

The following are the details of investment property:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
15 5 106.176 50,907
npairneent 19,310} [15.355)
preciatio {3.584) |%281)
Total 5 93,282 130.271
The following is the movement of investment property:
Land Buildings Total
Balance a3 of December 31, 2023 5 49.063 101.824 150.907
iles (1) [6.508) [54.351) {E0.859)
e 6.204 9.924 16,128
Jalar s of December 31, 2024 a8.779 57.397 106.176
ance as of December 31, 2022 47.538 106,384 153,922
95 Clemencia Paredes Tepada
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Land Bulldings Total
Salis [10.631) (12.370) {23.401)
Raclassification fromy other assets 419 E19
Sl e e 12.176 7.391 19567
el Fowr sanke
Balance as of December 31, 2023 - 49,083 101.524 150.907
Depreciation
Balance a5 of December 31, 2023 5 = (5.281) {5.281)
Depreciation mosement = (200) [900)
Recovery from cales L 25497 2.597
Balance a3 of December 31, 2024 - ) (3.584) (3.584)
Balance as of December 31, 2022 % {4.659) [4.659)
Degarechalon movenment - [1.171) {1.171)
Recavery Trom sales = 549 545
Balance s of December 31, 2023 5 - (5.281) {5281}
Impairment
Balance as of Decembaer 31, 2023 1 {7.006) (8.309) {15.355)
Reclassification from non-current assets
held for sale . (543) (543)
Recovery from sales - 15231 15.231
Impairment recorded in enpenses {2.1{('_8! _ |5.935) (B.643)
galance a5 of December 31, 2024 ) ‘ [8.754) Lt 444 {9.310)
Balance a5 of December 31, 2022 5 6.789) [12,584) [19.373)
fier :.'}Lilil'.'..'l.l.l_i'- Irom nan-curnent assets . (174 (174}
held for sale
Adjustment 5.228 L2328
Recovery from salas 2.633 233 2. 8066
Impairment recorded in expenses {2.890) {L.012) {3.902)
Balance as of December 31, 2023 5 [7.046) [8.309) [15.355)
Carrying amount
Balance as of December 31, 2024 39.025 54.257 ﬂl!ﬂl__
Balance as of Decembser 31, 2023 5 Az.037 o BAB.234 130,271

{1

—

During 2024, there was an increase in sales of investment property, which is explained by the implementation of a commercial
strategy designed to market assets that have been held for mare than two years and reduce the cost of managing this portiolio,

The fair value of investment property as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, amounts to $126.190 and
S179.867, respectively.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, there are no restrictions on the availability of these assets.

17. Intangible Assets and Goodwill, Net

The following are the details of intangible assets and goodwill:

{Lemercia Paredes Tejadeo
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Computer Software Other i
(1) Intangible Intangible Goodwill
Assets (2} Assets

Cosl

Balance as of Decermber 31, 2023 1002090 G1.078 L.064.168 112.974
oquisiticn 108,768 687 110.535

Balance as of December 31, 2024 1.112. 858 61.845 1.174.703 112.974
Balance a3 of December 31, 2022 837728 b3.085% a0n.793 112.974
Actuisiticns 1E4. 186 A5 184,211

terecopnition of | gible asset {13.910) 113.910]

Irnpairmedt [4.514) [2.017) {5.926]
Balance as of December 31, 2023 5 1. 003080 B1.078 1.064. 168 112.974
Accumulated anmortization

Balance as of December 31, 2023 & [467.536) [58.541) (526.077) -
AMOrtZation oxppenst [154.860) [1.1300 [155.990) -
Balance as of December 31, 2024 (B22.396) [59.671) (682,067} -
Balance as of December 31, 2022 % [353.158) {57.410) [410.5686)
Ao tizalion expenses (120.811) {1.131) [121.942)
Derecognition in accounts G.431 £.431

ilance as of Decermber 31, 2023 5 [967.536) {58.541] ["u.'.’[1.[l?'f'r

Impainment
Balance as of December 31, 2022
lmpaairment cxpenses (12.414) (2.012)
Derecognition due ta impalrment 12414 2,012
Balance as aof December 31, 2023
Carrylng amount
As of December 31, 2004 490,462 2.174 492,636 112.974
As of Decamber 31, 2023 $ $35.554 2,537 538.091 1128974

{1} This corresponds to the software acquired and created for the development of the different technological projects developed
by the Bank.

{2} This mainky corresponds to changes that have been made to Enel's systems associated with regulatery requirements or proposed
improvements related to financial products or services,

Impairment Analysis of the Cash-Generating Unit:

The analysis performed by the Bank to identify the Cash-Generating Unit {CGU) concluded that it
corresponds to the group of assets and liabilities of the consumer and mortgage operating segment,
which represents the lowest level over which the Bank controls goodwill. The above considering that
the purpose of the business combination was the assignment of Citibank Colombia $.A."s consumer
banking business for Small- and Medium-Sized Enterprises, as well as the placement of mortgage
products for these customers.

In the evaluation of the impairment of the goodwill acquired from the business combination of consumer
banking, credit cards, and small- and medium-sized enterprises of Citibank Colombia S.A, as of
December 31, 2024, the value in use was calculated as the recoverable amount, mainly considering the

following variables: Clemencia Paredes Tejudo
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- Five-year valuation horizon with value in perpetuity.

- Volume decreases through advanced payments, in line with a capital efficiency strategy for 2025 and
volume increases for 2026 to 2029 with a capital-efficient business profitability strategy.

- The valuation is made by discounting free-cash flows at a rate of thirteen comma eighty-seven percent
(13.87%), which represents the Bank's cost of capital. The Capital Asset Pricing Model (CAPM)
methodology was used.

The Bank used the following economic assumptions:

- From 2025, the portfolio is expected to decrease in line with the Bank's capital efficiency strategy and
volume increases for 2026 - 2029,

- The Colombian economy presented a recovery in 2024, exceeding the GDP perspective in some
quarters. For the next few years, it is expected to continue with an average growth performance of
three percent (3%).

- The above, together with a reduction in inflation from nine comma twenty-eight percent (9,28%) in
2023 to five comma twenty percent (5,20%) in 2024, contributed to a reduction in Banco de la
Republica’s intervention rate of 350 bps, standing at nine comma seventy-five percent (9,75%).

Additionally, the financial analysis of the results of the Cash-Generating Unit was carried out, resulting in
the following factors:

- An average asset decrease of two percent (2%) Is expected for the consumer segment in the coming
years, due to the new strategy of efficient use of capital,

- Financial income is projected taking into account a lower volume of Personal Loan products for 2025,
in line with the Bank's risk appetite and the current strategy. From 2026 onwards, portfolio increases
are considered, leading to an increase in financial income.,

Commissions decrease in line with lower consumption volumes.

- Inthe projection of financial outflows, it is expected to have an indicator with a downward trend given
the repricing of the intervention rate of Banco de la Repdblica. However, we are seeking to attract
demand deposits, such as payrolls or transactional liabilities.

Finally, no decreases in the value of long-term assets were identified and no significant changes were
recognized in the legal factors or the business environment that could affect the net asset value of the
Cash-Generating Unit.

The methodology and assumptions used for the valuation of the CGU to which the goodwill is assigned
were revised by management, and based on the revision, it is concluded that, as of December 31, 2004,
no impairment of goodwill was identified that should be recognized in the financial statements.
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18. Income Taxes

Components of the Income Tax Expenses: Income tax expenses for the years ended December 31, 2024
and 2023, comprise the following items:

December 31,
December 31, 2024 2023

Current tax cEpEnses
] 7.891 7,093
12 L 787 (I8
hange THN Yol Wlnimate: 24723 (10.416)
Sulitotal 3 11.101 12.635)

Deferred tax (Income) expenses [47.850) [109.422)
Taobal incoms bax anponses (36.749) (112.057)

{1} The bank is part of the Scotiabank group, therefore, ance the calculation of the minimum consolidated tax of fifteen
percent {15%) has been made, there is no place to setlle the above tax.

Reconciliation of the Nominal Tax Rate and the Effective Rate

The tax provisions in force applicable to the Group stipulate that in Calombia:

- Starting in 2021, the Economic Growth Law reduces the presumptive income to zero percent (0%) of
the net equity on the last day of the immediately prior financial year.

- Inaccordance with the Social Investment Law 2155 of 2021, the audit benefit is extended for the years
2022 and 2023 for taxpayers who increase their net income tax of the tax year in relation to the net
income tax of the immediately preceding year at least by thirty-five percent (35%) and twenty-five
percent (25%), with which the income tax return will become final within 6 or 12 months following the
filing date, respectively.

- With the Economic Growth Law 2010 of 2019, the term of finality of the income and supplementary
tax return of taxpayers that determine or offset tax losses or are subject to the transfer pricing regime
will be 5 years.

- The excess of presumptive income may be offset in the following 5 financial periods.

- Tax losses may be offset with ardinary net income obtained in the following 12 financial periods.

Through the Tax Reform for Equality and Social Justice, Law 2277 of December 13, 2022, a tax reform was
adopted, such provision introduces some modifications in income tax matters, which we present below:

- The general income rate applicable for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, is thirty-five
percent (35%) for national companies and their assimilated companies, permanent establishments of
foreign entities, and foreign legal entities with or without residence in the country, required to file the
annual income and complementary tax return.

- For financial institutions, insurance companies, reinsurance companies, stock brokerage firms,
agricultural brokerage firms, stock exchanges of agricultural, agro-industrial, or other commodities,
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and stock market infrastructure providers, a surtax of 5 additional points of the general income rate is
established during the financial periods 2023 to 2027, being the total rate of forty percent (40%) if they
have a taxable income equal to or higher than 120.000 TVU (55.647.800.000 in pesos, year 2024). The
surtax will be subject to an advance payment of one hundred percent (100%).

- A minimum tax is established for residents in Colombia, and an additional tax is set in the event that
the purged income tax with some adjustments is less than fifteen percent (15%) of the accounting
profit before taxes with certain adjustments. Given the state of things, taxpayers must (1) determine
the purged tax of the Colombian taxpayer, or the purged tax of the group, in the event that it is part of
a business group, (i) determine the purged profit of the Colomblan taxpayer or the group, In the event
that it is part of a business group, and (iii) determine the purged tax rate of the Colombian taxpayer or
the group, in the event that it is part of a business group. If the effective rate (purged tax/purged
profit) is lower than fifteen percent (15%), the tax to be added should be calculated for the taxpayer
ar the group, in the event that it is part of a corporate group.

- The Special Economic and Social Zones ZESE, in its initials in Spanish, during the period that their
income rate is zero percent (0%, taxpayers whose purged profit is equal to or less than zero, those
who are governed by the provisions of Art 32 of the E.T. (Concessions), industrial and commercial
companies of the State or mixed economy companies that exercise monopolies of luck, chance, and
liguors; hotels and theme parks provided that they are not required to submit country by country
reports, are exempted from this rule.

- The amount of the summation of some income not constituting income, special deductions, exempt
income, and tax discounts are limited to three percent (3%) per annum of the erdinary net income.

- Article 158-1 Is repealed, eliminating the possibility of deducting the costs and expenses associated
with investments in CTel, i.e. these investments will only be entitled to a tax discount. The possibility
of taking as a tax discount thirty percent (30%) of the investments in Science, Technology, and
Innovation (CTel) that have the approval of the National Council of Tax Benefits (CNBT in its initials in
Spanish) remains, the previous regulation established a discount of twenty-five percent (25%).

- The possibility of taking as a tax discount fifty percent (50%) of the ICA effectively paid before filing the
income tax return is eliminated. One hundred percent (100%) accrued and paid prior to the filing of
the income tax return will be deductible,

- One hundred percent (100%) of the taxes, rates, and contributions effectively paid in the tax year,
which maintain a causal relationship with the generation of income (except for the income tax), will
continue to be deductible; fifty percent [50%) of the tax on financial movements (GMF) will be
deductible, regardless of whether or not it has a causal relationship with the income-generating
activity.

- Payments for memberships to social clubs, labor expenses of housing support personnel, or other
activities unrelated to the income-producing activity, and personal expenses of partners, participants,
chareholders, custamers, and/or their relatives, all of which will be considered income in kind for their
heneficiaries, will not be deductible,

- It is established that non-deductible amounts for sentences arising from administrative, judicial, or
arhitration proceedings correspond to the amounts that are of a punitive, sanctioning, or damage
compensation nature, (Paragraph 3 of Article 105 of the E.T.).

The occasional gain tax rate is established at fifteen percent (15%).
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- Awithholding tax rate of ten percent (10%) is established for dividends received by national companies
that do not constitute occasional income or gains (formerly seven comma five percent, 7,5%), which
shall be transferable to the resident individual or the foreign investor. The exceptions established in
the regulations in force remain. Dividends and shares received by permanent establishments of
national foreign companies that do not constitute occasional income or gains will be taxed at the
special rate of twenly percent (20%).

- ltwas provided that the tax on taxable dividends will be determined: (i) by applying an income rate of
thirty-five percent (35%) corresponding to the year in which they are declared and [ii) the rate of the
non-taxed dividend will be applied to the remainder, depending on the beneficiary (if it is a resident
individual or an unliguidated succession of a resident taxpayer, the table of Article 241 of the E.T. shall
apply).

- Dividends declared against income of 2016 and prior years' income will retain the treatment in effect
at that time; and those corresponding to income of 2017, 2018, and 2019 that are declared as of 2020
will be gaverned by the rates set forth in the 2010 Law.

In accordance with 1AS 12, Income tax, paragraph 81 section (c), the following are the details of the
reconciliation between the total income tax expenses of the bank and its subsidiaries calculated at the tax
rates currently in force and the tax expenses effectively recorded in net income for the period, for the
periods ended December 31, 2024 and 2023,

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Loss before Income tax 4 (161.409) 5 (366,218)

I|._ L ) IIII‘_.:.:I": n poeordanee with the wninol A% {Ed._SEﬂ' — [146.487)

Maora or [less) taxes ralated to the following items:

ll-;l.'-. s received not constituting income of otcasional 2% {2.630) 1% [2.123)

T ax-goeempt i I (14 [265) o {9

ol invCom 15% [24.026) 2% [7.082}

transactions 19%) 13.998 {a%) 14,425

e [ 20%) 32943 {L0%) 34.481

4% (6.053) [ 1%} 1.819

Cecasional gaing at 15% and 10%, cespactively [1%) 787 0% 688

EI.;:-..[:.I. lf'l.-.| -|.i...-.-:.:.l._--..l.__-: .,I|..'.-.- o5 al which [2%] 2,737 - P
Effect of tax additions (4%) 6.902 0%

Tax provision refund (2%) 2.422 30 (10.416]

Total income tax axpenses 23% 5 [36.749) 31% 5 {112.057)
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Movement in Deferred Tax Balances

Deferred Taxes due to Temporary Differences:

Differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities and thelr tax bases give rise to the
following temporary differences that generate deferred taxes, calculated and recorded In the periods
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, based on the tax rates in force for the years in which the asset is
expected to be realized or the liability settled.
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SCOTIABANK COLPATRIA 5.4, AND SUBSIDIARIES
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Tax Credits

Law 1819 of December 29, 2016, in its Article 123, creates a transition regime for offsetting tax losses and
excess presumptive income, as well as the minimum base excesses generated hefare 2017,

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the following are the details of the tax losses that have not been used

by the Bank:
December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
lax losses expiring on:
geember 31, 2035 5 552,769 492 305
coemiber 31, 136 9374
Tatal tas credits 5 562,143 492.395

Effect of current and deferred taxes on each component of other comprehensive income, in equity:

The effects on other comprehensive income are detailed below:

mavement

December 31, 2024 Dewember 31, 2023
Amount before Deferred Net Amount before Deferred Het
Taxes . Tax ) Taxes Tax )
le prehensive Income fo
[\t.l.l.drl prebensive incom the g (124.660) [254.161)
pericd
Itrmis that can be subsoguently
reclassified to net income for the [5.321) 2.129 (3.192) [7.378) 1.973 [5.405)
period
Cavsh Howe bedgypes 15.321) 2129 (3.192) [7.378) 1.497%
items that will not be reclassified to - e .
; {240.087) B7.616 (152.481) 133.656 [52.385) #1.268
net income for the period
anges n the fair value of financial

: II' ne 'I he fa ! {23.719) 12.176 {11.543) 713.002 {80.159) 137,843
nEtriments

Financial instruments portiolio (216.378) 75.440 [140.938) ) (79.346) ) 271771 [51.575)
Talal sermenl i ol

oy (245.418) 89.745 (155.673) 126.278 (50.415)
comprehensive income

Tatal with comprahensive ! (280.333) {178.298)

Current Income Tax Assets and Liabilities

Current Income tax recelvable and/or payable balances are as follows:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Assels
e B credil lalancy 4 1.079.849 BELAGA
Liabllitles
Income Las (B39) -
Total current 1as, nat 1.079.210 GH0.964

For financial statement presentation purposes, the Bank offset deferred tax assets and liabilities as
established in paragraph 74 of 1AS 12 and current tax assets and liabilities as established in paragraph 71
of 1AS 12, considering the application of the tax provisions in force in Colombia on the legal right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities.
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Clemencia Paredes Tejada
Official Translator of English - French - Spanish

Official translation of @ document into English. For identification purposes, it is sealed with the translator’s stamp.
This translation hos been made by Clemencio Paredes Tejoda, an official transfator duly recognized by the Ministry
of Justice and authorized, Res. number 6694 of 1973,

SCOTIABANEK COLPATRIA 5.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Uncertainties in Open Tax Positions, HIFRS 23 (Interpretation Issues of International Financial Reporting
Standards). Uncertainty Regarding Income Tax Treatment.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Group has no tax uncertainties that would generate a provision
for such item, taking into account that the income and supplementary tax process is regulated under the
current tax framewark. Consequently, there are no risks that could imply an additional tax liability.

Transfer Prices
In accerdance with the provisions of Laws 788 of 2002 and 863 of 2003, 1607 of 2012 and 1815 of 2016,
regulated by Decree 2120 of 2017, the Bank prepared a study of transfer prices on transactions carried out

with foreign ecenomic related parties during 2023, The study did not result in adjustments affecting the
Bank's income, costs, and tax expenses.

Although the 2024 study of transfer prices is in the process of preparation, no significant changes are
expected as against the study of the previous year.

Deferred Tax on Investments in Subsidiaries

In compliance with paragraph 39 of 1AS 12, the Bank did not record deferred tax liabilities related to
temporary differences in investments in subsidiaries to the extent that it can control the timing of the
reversal of such differences and this is not expected to occur in the near future.

Temporary differences for the items indicated as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, amounted to $(32.717)
and 5(16.483), respectively.

December 31, 2024 December 31,

2023
Arlv: wnls ] 110,087 107,904
AL | ge5ets 2,844 2,844
eelased assols (1) g9, 831 126.783
llscellaneaus 43,051 &2 90
TP [_'J.H.L'ﬂ I..-"'..'.'-.':-.:l
Tota H 240.536 260.003
(1) The following are the details of the foreclosed assets:
December 21, 2024 December 31, 2023
Rights and shares in real propory 5 94,388 119076
Ivestamient R4l Gd1
Machinery and others 4,802 1066
Tatal 4 98,831 126,783
lem Paredes Tejado
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Clemencia Paredes Tejada
Official Translator of English - French - Spanish
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SCOTIABANK COLPATRIA S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The following is the impairment movement for other assets:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Beginning balance g 20,428 20,668
beel ir 3.108 1,706

i [7.743) 15.003)

lassi ian of other asset [516) (8.943)

s 15277 20428

20. Deposits and Liabilities

The deposits received by the Bank from customers in the course of its operations are detailed below:

December 31, 2024 R
weposlts in bank current accounts 13 1..93E.B|:15 . . L.987.552
Term Deposit Certificates (1) 13.293.562 14,974,501
Sawdr sl 10.766.423 11.435.1.04
i 342.508 744,350
$ 26341298 T 29141927

[1) The decrease recorded as compared with 2023 is explained by a lower funding requirement as a result of the decrease in
the loan partfalic.

Temporality of Term Deposit Certificates

The following is the classification by temporality of term deposit certificates:

Descembaer 31,

Denembe.r 31, 2024 2021
Issued for less than & months ] 1.760.845 2,601,376
sued Tor a per I i 2 E i e

|ﬁ..":..\,II;_I.. for a period equal to & months and less than 2,385,490 3205 806
12 monlhs
lssuedd Tor a peceod eaus F L i \

aee foar o period eaqueal bo 12 moenths and less than 1.665.904 AAGS 285
18 manths
Issued for a period equal to 18 months or more A4.580.323 142434
Total 5 13.293.562 14.974.201

According to each funding madality, the effective annual interest on the average daily balances generated
by these liabilities as of the end of December 31, 2024 and 2023, was as follows:

decembier 31
December 31, 2024 SR
rrent BCoounts 2.,54'& . :,4‘.;14. o
Tepim deposit certificates in legal currency 11,97% 13,74%
Ordinary Savings Deposits G3AT% 9,18%

lemie nEm J‘uir..‘.r-: Tjiasds
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SCOTIABANEK COLPATRIA S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Interest accrued on customer deposits as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, were 52.379.241 and
$3.077.795, respectively.

Interest paid on customer depasits as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, were 52.545.586 and 52.935.006,
respectively,

21. Financial Oblipations

The details of financial obligations are as follows:

Short-Term Financial Obligations

December 31, 2024 December 31,

2023

Cammitments to transfer investrments in simultaneous transactions 5 T99.274 BEB.GOHE
Commitments orginating from short positions of simultaneous 274749 R3I89
Iransactions

[L;.":I11r|l|!|11-.!l'|t.‘- o sell investments in open-ended repo transactions 2.246.615 1451944

1

Foreign hanks (2] 1.141.591 ShLS1Y
Financicra de Desamrollo Terrborial 5.A. FINDETER - 10,405
Fi I winciamiento del Sector Agropreouario FINAGRED = 25.753
Banco del Exterior BANCOLDEX 919

Total $ A.463.148 2.018.076

(1] At the end of 2024, there was an increase in the funding lines in repo transactions with Banco de la Repablica duee to the
Increase of positions in TCOs and the execution of short transactions by the trading desk.

[2} The increase in abligations with fareign banks is due to o greater demand for funding in forelgn currency, mainly in USD,
as part of the Bank's strategy to fund loans in dollars and treasury transactions.

Effective Interest Rates

The following is a summary of the average annual effective interest rates charged on financial obligations:

December 31, 2024 [hecembaer 31, 2003
Minimum % Madimum % Minimum % Maxinmum %
Inabeerdsanl Turds g:]_:% 9'34“ 12,162 172.47%
Repo and simultaneous transaction 7.68% B 18% B, 2d% 92,90%

Repo, simultaneous, and interbank transactions are carried out at market conditions.

Long-Term Financial Obligations

{lemencia Paredes Tejade
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SCOTIABANE COLPATRIA S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Dercember 31, 2024 December 31,
2023
Fore 5 1.458.106 1.RGE.910
;I.TIIEII 1Era rrol Territorial i 140,047 ——
MLCHIDE 7.479 .55
Fondo para el Financiamicnlo del Seelor 173.136 150,114
i ecuario FINAGRD
i cial leasing (1) 130.611 150,307
Praployee savings plan 7.762 7190
Total § 2.117.141 2.A90.553
(1) The follewing is the movement of financial obligations:
December 31, 2024
gaginning balance as of January 1, 2024 1 5,508,629
sharsenent 311.648.237
Mew lease contracts -
Increases cowe o adjesbments o the rent fee 7.553
Interest accrued on koans 416.627
Interest accrued om lrasaes 10L078
Interas {435.3400
Laan cancellations (310,847 822}
Lease payments [35.566)
Lo bermination {1.543)
Adjustment for exchange rate differences 300436
Final balance o3 of December 31, 2024 5 6.580.289

Current Interest Rave

Between G08% and
6,755
Between 11,31% and
12,01%
Between 1689% and
17,46%
Between  15,18%  and
15,66%

December 31, 2023

210 TR .
281,236,952
2,015
15, 210
471,196
17 108
(485.016)
(279.486.819)
(56.612)
(24.554)
{387.286)
5,508,629

Interest accrued on financial oblipations as of Decamber 31, 2024 and 2023, was 5426.705 and $483.304,
respectively. Interest paid for financial obligations as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, was $435.340 and

S485.016, respectively.

Maturity by Timelines of Short-Term Financial Obligations

~ December 31, 2029
Mare than One Mare Lhan Three
Up to One Month and Mot Months and Mot
Maonth Mare than Three Bore than Six
Bonths Manths
Commitments to transber
mvestments [LL] "i ng|2?4 -
simultaneaus transs
Carmrmtime T
shart n 274,749 o -
simnvullaneodis transachicns
109

More than Six

Months and
I
Mot Mare than Tota
One Year
- 790,274
274,749
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SCOTIABANK COLPATRIA S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Motes to the Cansolidated Financial Statements

) December 31, 2024
Mare than One Muore than Three More than Six
Up to One Beenith and Nat Maonths and Mot Mol and Total
Ktonth wtore than Three Mo than Six Mot Maore than
Manths Manths i Yizar
Cormmibmenis
investments in ope 2.248.615 = - = 2.246.615
LR L4 Iransactions
Foreign Banks 32.570 521598 508.493 77.930 1,141,591
BANCOLDEX 918 = = B e I
Total shart term L 3.354.127 522,598 508.493 77.930 4,463,148
__December 31, 2023
Maore than One More than Three Maore than Six
Up to One Manth and Mot Months and Mot Maonths and Total
tenth More than Three More tham Six Mot Mare than
Manths Months Oz Yuraar
Conmmitiments bo transfer
investments in 5 BBE.GES HER.B6R
simultanecus transaction:
Commitments ansing from
short positions in 30,3849 B0.3ED
simultancous ALLonG
Commitrments to selling
Trwestments in open-ended 1.451.944 1.451.94:4
refs transactions
Fareign Banks 156,277 158.871 197.811 47.958 SED.O17
Fondo para el
Financiamismnta del Sector 13.325 114928 75,753
Agropeciano FINALED
Financiern de Desarrolio . -
fesritorial S, FINDETER T o B i
Total short tenm % 2.595.7714 170.799 203.545 A7 058 3.018.076
Clemenet Foin e
t"_ﬁ-ﬂ;l—'ff. " g el
110 TACION

e

i) L'lit'll:f;"-



“Eesosrz | S9SLEYT LLLET

1t

A FEETTTE Ty

SJUBLISIEIS [BI3UBLLY PE1BPI0SUST 3UI 03 $3I0N
SIIHVIAISENS ONY "¥'S WIHLYA10D AINVEYILOIS

895 LETT TLLOET 080°25E'T vE5TEE 90965 TELL5E “zzeser | vigos g
0BT L et - BTl Si6T 055°T SIET €15 otp I8¢
{05051 PEEETT 5£5°D TEIES L5268 £2EHT TEQET asTe ovoy 00T
pIT 051 reELL 26402 74 pRELS 08T'ZL sigay 99E'DT - aIT'sT
SLETH F0ET LT 6EL SHE°LT LT LT 8L5bE 85 ETET 25T
£50°297 bog LT - LOTES L50°ES EET'BET 008 L5 YEE'ES B6E°LT
165381 BLLTREE LETIET THEOSTT TET £35S #0908 SES'SEE arT Il ZETEY  §
T _ BLLEBEE o _iET L TP0sTL TETd3s WO S i
SIed, 1 Ba
oma e Ty
wiay uoniog ETLETY oo siem) B4yl uoned ey Uy i RSB oLy
- Juauny ohd U pue sea), Pue aug WaLmng 1op pue s 101 puE AU
-Uap [B10L XL I uBIM]aE [E1aL SYIUON XIS ] ordn
CETIT 3 sRuyL Yo
URYY MO Uiy e uey) AUp LB
] 240N
123, U0 UEY] MO 10N DUE
JEB), BU UBY} AUD aiRDgd SRIL U MO sywoly say) o1 dn
. R AT . s o B
- o T EZDE LEJequEnag -
WUOTZ  SE00SE  BO®E  b96WEZ  B6ETTS sorisTT sz EveTwy IS0 IS §
78LL [ - 6351 T16'E 28T 518 . z8E a5t
TI90ET BSETOT TS9°E CESLE EEI'T9 [{ f4 44 OTvT SgEa oISy SET'E
SETELT 93L0LT 980°BT LT56T ELLOTTT OSE'T T - 74 8 -
BLFL Etrts o L81 95L's 9ED'T (74 4] 807 ¥s
LprOrE PoEFEL LEED EEYSOT ok ] ESOSh 96E'T - Te0gE 29T'S
S0T'EsH' T FESOLE - £6%'51 TvL052 A1 15 SR 174 ) ERVSEP 2T . g
Siea) spuoy
4 ueyl JERL BUD u.,“..“m_u“uu_u“hﬂﬂm ;gL
—_— uojung LIEB, 2401 10N siap FR0y) uoed TR T CREE UEY} BIaN Yoy
Suoy oL twang B4 ey puz s1ES) pue 3ug wauns 19N pue . N pue sug
-uoy [210) ey EETIN IEEERET] (L-T1 SURLON 15 MEIRE T TH] adn
ey ueyl asom Wi wo
oW UELYT #JON
. JEE BU0 VEYD MO TN g "
JBay, SuD VB 210 BT EYIUOLY BRZL UL 2400 Sgua sy o1 dny
T uoniog waung-uay I wnaeg ey
. FEOT ‘1€ Jaquadag -

we|d sFupes sasopduwy
Busea) eouduig
OYSYMId

X330 INYE
H3L30MId

syjueg uileoy

ued sBunes salo|dws
Bupses; jepuen)q
[si"bok+ MIET
XIQN0OONYE
¥ALSONE

syueg v dianny

suonegnqo [epueuly wial-Juoq

CENGLIGH - ©

nanze BE  STEARTATE

L BRmEA I




SCOTIABANE COLPATRIA 5.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Motes to the Consalidated Financial Statements

22. Employee Benefits

The following are the details of the employee benefit liabilities:

December 31, 2024

Employees benefit

Short-tarm benafit (1) & T3.041
Leng-berm banefit {2) 8.601
Post-employment benefic (3) 1.168
Total s £2.310

(1) Short-term benefits comprise;
December 31,
2024

I E] 21122
Irite & pay 2477
WVacalic 2B 978
Extra-legal benuse 7.658
Total payroll payable BAE
Extra pays 12.008
Total 13

73.041

Dcemlbeer 31,

2023

6H.173
T 742
1.311
17220

December 31,
2023

20,587

2429

10136

P

4558

B.097

68,173

{2} Long-Term Benefits Include the Seniority Banus and the Vacation Bonus: The Bank provides a specific group of
employees with long-term extra-legal seniority bonuses throughout their working life depending an the number
aof years of service, every five (5), ten [10), fifteen (15), and twenty (20 yvears, etc., calculated as days of salary;
furthermore, additional vacation days and vacation bonuses according to seniority.

(3) Post-Employment Benefits: This corresponds to retirement pensions. The actuarial calculation as of December 31,
2024, was made considering a discount rate of fifteen comma twenty-three percent (15,23%), a pension increase
rate of nine comma ninety-five percent (9,95%), and the inflation rate of nine comma ninety-five percent (9,95%).

The compensation of key management personnel for each of the categories of benefits granted Is disclosed

in Note 34 related parties.

The following is the movement of the seniority bonus during 2024 and 2023:

December 31,

Decemnber 31, 2024

Benefit obligations defined at the beginning of the padod  §

Costs of services of the current period

Remeasuranents:
Effect of the change in financial assamplhions

b fiects of the change in exparianc
igation de

Benelit

ned at the end af the period 5

112

5.503

571
553

(777}

47
14

5.811

2023
4,968
BO5
540
(733)
(1}

B8

{301)
5,166

r:". ST 1
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SCOTIABANK COLPATRIA 5.4, AND SUBSIDIARIES
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Actuarial Assumptions

The variables used to calculate the projected long-term benefit obligation are shown below:

2024
Scotiabank Fiduclaria Scotla
Colpatria Scotiabank Securilles
Dhscoumnt ra 0,03% 9.73% 9,51%
T P . 3,008 5005 3,00%
Inifiat ate 2,008 3,005
2023

[Hscount rabe 11K

The employee turnover rate is calculated based on an average of the general turnover rate for the last
three years,

The expected life of the employees is calculated based on mortality tables RV-08 (“Valid Annuitants”); this
mortality table was constituted using the experience gathered in the period between 2005 and 2008 by
the administrators of the General Pension System of the Occupational Accident System and life insurance
companies.

The discount rate is assigned according to the duration of the plan; thus, plans with a longer time horizon
have a higher rate than a short-term plan, and therefore, for longer time harizons, the TES curve will have
a higher interest rate.

As of 2024, the Group's actuarial calculations are updated by PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC).

Sensitivity Analysis 2024

The sensitivity analysis of the long-term benefit liabilities for the different variables with chanpges of zero
comma five percent (0,5%) for the rate of discount and inflation is the fallowing:

Seotiabank Colpatria Fiduciaria Scotiabank Scatia Securities
Inflation 043%  993%  10,43% 9,23%  9.73%  1023%  901%  951%  1001%
6146 5993 5.847 m 6 BE a4 a
300 5810  5.840 5751 59 67 66 4 4 4
2 50% 5.833 5.694 5.562 57 66 65 a 4 4

Sensitivity Analysis 2023

The sensitivity analysis of the long-term benefit liabilities for the different variables is the following: _
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Fil FX ]

Hscount rat
t rate -50 bps decrease i 5626
b, Dhscaunt rat W hps increase in 5376

e-increase rale <50 bps decresse in 1.115

December 31, 2023
i Hypotheses used to determine long-term benefit obligations
Discorint rate 11,00

Salary-increase rats @ 50
cang-term inflation rate 1, 00%,
Hypotheses used to determine the cost of long-lerm bemefits
Discount rabe 11,008
Salary-morgerse rate 4,000

Lang-term inflation rate 30013

Payments of Expected Future Benefits

Payments of future benefits expected over the next 10 years reflecting services, as the case may be, are
expected to be paid as follows:

Expected Payment

For year 1 4 TE2
For yiear 2 QED
Foryear 3 B4
Far year 4 GEY
For year 5 735
For the next 5 years 2.837

On December 22, 2016, the Ministry of Commerce, Industry, and Tourism issued Decree 2131, by which
preparers of financial information are required to disclose, in the notes of the financial statements, the

calculation of pension liabilities under their responsibility, in accordance with the parameters established
in Decree Mo, 1625 of 2016.

As of December 31, 2024, the amount of the actuarial calculation in accordance with the parameters
established in Decree Mo, 1625 of 2016 is 51,283, and the difference with the retirement pension liabilities
determined based on actuarial assumptions defined in the International Accounting Standard 19
"Employee Benefits" is a lower value of $115.

23, Provisions

The following are the details of the provisions:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Labor lowesuits amd litigaticn in the process (1) GBS 353 a8
i ' g e g : A ¢ femencia Caredes Tijedo
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Decomimissioning 3.671 J.982
Other proviskons 71756 2763
Tatal ] 15.112

13.008

(1) As of December 31, 2024 and 2003, the Group had provisions for 30 and 33 proceedings against it, respectively, including
ordinary civil, labor, and administrative proceedings.

The movement of provisions is shown below:

December 31, 2024 )
Lawesuits and
. . Other
Litigation in Decommissioning Provisions Total
Process
Balance as of December 31, 2023 5 6,353 3.982 2.763 13.088
Provisions built up during the period 3.102 5 15.183 13.290
Provisions used during the period 13.647) [316) (9.332) (13.295)
Provisions released during the period {2.123) o  [mssE) j2EEl)
Balance as of December 31, 2024 s 3.685 3.671 1756 15.112
December 31, 2023
Lawrsuits and
Litigation In Decommissioning Other Total
Provisions
Process
Balance as of December 31, 2022 2 6,483 4,361 7.546 18.390
Prowvisions built up during the periad A.504 148 L1486 Tk JY9R
Provisions wsed durlng the period [2.68d4) 1527} [9.724) {12.935)
Provisions released during the period L o (2.205) (3.155)
Balance as of December 31, 2023 H 6.353 3.982 2.763 13.088
24, Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities

The details of accounts payable and other liabilities are as follows:

_ December 31, 2024 December 31, 2003
Taxes payable 5 18667 R
Dividends and surplus BaD 11
Suppliers and services ta be paid 90.207 111.464
Labor withholdings and conbributions B6.895 24,854
soeltled deposit insurance to ba paid 47.427 51367
Warious creditors 18.383 18, 787
Accounts payable lor derivaliee ransactons 25,140 31,247
ACH transfers (1) 30.070 52536
Lowealby programs 19.673 80629
Credit memos to be applied to obligations [2) 52.572 20472
Income recened in advance Cardif AXA 23,895 26325
Commissions and fees 15.64% 2115
Miscelbanens 88.4097 105.471
Total 5 547.911 593,498
M.n!
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{1} The decrease Is due to lower disbursements and a lower volume of pending transactions at the end of December 2024,

{2) This corresponds to payments pending to be applied as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, mainly for credit card portfalio
obligations received through different means, which are paid in the fiest business days of the following month,
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26. Equity

Subscribed and paid-in capital as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, comprises:

December 31,

December 31, 2004 2023
Capital stock
Authorized capital 4 412,150 432,150
Caj be subscribed |73.832) (73.832)
Subscribed and paid-in capital -3 358.318 J%8.318

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the total subscribed and pald-in shares was 55.553.196.622.
The main sharehalders and their equity stake are described below:

December 31, 2024 and 2023
Sharholding
MNumber of Share.i . Percentage
Grupo Mercantil Colpatria 5.4,
wbercantil Colpatria 5.4 12.444,335,.2949 22,405%
Winee Business Corp 9803, 115.905 17, 0%
Banderato Colombia 545 e, 756,185 1,63%
Acciones y Valores Nuevo Milenio 5.4 1.160. l""'-:"*ﬁ — = }1-'“:"%
Subtotal 24.374.902.784 43,88%
Scotiabank
Iudtiacciomes 5A, 31099603665 55,98%
Otros minority shareholders A9 1900150 0,145
Subtotal 31178793838 S, 12%
Total 55.553.196.627 100

There are no shares with preferential rights, privilages, and restrictions for the distribution of dividends.

Reserves

December 31,

December 31, 2024 2023

Reserves
Legal reserve
Appropriation of eamings 5 1.427.752 1.7 26.55%
Oecasional resernres
Charlty and donations = 1.5

1 rosislon: 1.750 1.750
Total reserves & 1.429.502 L.729.805

Legal Reserve: In accordance with the legal regulations in force, the Bank must build up a legal reserve by
appropriating ten percent (10%) of the net income of each year until reaching fifty percent (50%) of the

subscribed capital stock; however, it may be reduced below the above percentage to offset losses in excess
of retained earnings.

Occasional Reserves: Occasional reserves are determined at the General Shareholders’ Meeting for
distribution of dividends In cash or shares, future capitalizations, or specific donations as defined by the
Sharcholders” Meeting.

Clemencia Paredes Tepods
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Profit Distribution Project

On March 21, 2024, at the Bank's Ordinary General Meeting, the shareholders approved the loss
absorption project for the amount of $300.303 as follows: legal reserve release of $298.803 and occasional
reserve release for donations of $1.500 to offset losses.

On March 27, 2023, at the Bank's Ordinary General Shareholders' Meeting, the shareholders approved the
profit distribution project for the amount of 5151.352 as follows: Creation of a legal reserve of 590.931 to
maintain in retained earnings the amount of 560421, release of a reserve of $1,500, and creation of a
reserve for donations of 51.500.

Other Comprehensive Incame

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Drifferences in the loan portfolio (1) 5 35,082 176.919
sains and losses on financial instruments (2) 31.387 37,125
Cash Flow and foreign currency hedges 14.846 23,844
3 82215 237.888

(1) Pursuant to the provisions of the Financial Superintendency of Colombia, the Bank recarded, in other
comprehensive income, the adjustment resulting from the difference between the loan portfolio impairment of
the separate financial statement and that of the cansalidated financial statement.

(2} The decrease presented in the net comprehensive income of financial instruments is given by the valuation of debt

and equity instruments. The latter, particularly, by the valuation of the Investments in ACH COLOMBIA S.A.,
Credibanco, and Titularizadora, in the amount of $10.552.

27, Income from Commissions and Other Services, Net

The following is the net income from commissions for the years ended:

December 31,

December 31, 2024 a3
IO Trom comumissions and otheer services )
5 259,429 234.429
531,299 537,204
44,606 43.282
53,222 55.446
fling, frees (2) 362,737 313.200
G2.436 72,612
§ 1.313.729 1.256.173
ssigns and obhier services
5 (62.072)
Feeees {123.199)
Placement of praducts (8B.5132)
Use of transactional channels {109.681)
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December 31,
Dercomibeer 31, 2024 s
Concosund businiess cost {43.924) [43.370)
Collection management (20.873) (18887
ontract, Cotlensa [5.666) {6071}
Miscellaneous (190,717} (195, 204}
Total 3 {643.124) (G26.938)
Total income from commissions, net 5 670,605 627.235

{1) Theincrease responds to the Increase inthe number of customers during 2024 and a higher transaction volume; additionally,
there was an increase in financial advisory services provided to corporate customers during 2024,
{2) The increase in these commissions is mainly associated with the collection of foreign transactions with credit cards.

2B. Employee Benefit Expenses

The following are the details of employee benefit expenses for the years ended:

December 31,
December 31, 2024 2073

Salaric 4 (238.030) (238.771)
C o} v galary {142.056) [138.781)
Ex (1} (28621} {57.208)
Pansion contributions (53.813) {53.637]
Vaeations [26.254) {26.355)
Family Benefit fund contributions [26.103) [26.131]
epal bonas [23.042) (22160
Extra-lagal bonus [56.514) [53.881)
o pEIyS (22.280) [22.277)

Other employes benefits [{45.815) {6 ROO)
Tatal 5 (B62.528) {GEG.061)

{1)  In 2023 there was an increase malnly explained by the offer of a closed retirement plan that was freely and voluntarlly
accepted by the employees to whom it was offered; this situation did not ocoour in 2004,

29,  Other Income

The following are the details of other income for the years ended:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Eromm Lhee sabe af progesly and eouigiment 5 4,433 2 556
Fromm the sale of investment propery - 14l
ety w5 anad slakes 6.574 LGB
Fx lifference, net (1) 195.649 228855
ritten-off portiolio 106.274 105478
lee (2] 73.593 114.251
wiscellaneous 66,539 57.954
Total 5 453,062 ) 514.073

{1} The exchange rate difference is reported as net. The decrease is mainly due to the reduction of the asset position in dollars
during 2024 as cormpared with 2023, as of December 31, 2024, the Bank has an asset position of USD 169 as compared with
2023, which corresponds to USD 5203,

{2} The movement of this item is detailed in Note 12,

N narede s '_.I:J':Jur
il n;q“l':gﬁl_‘rlntgla pr Y
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30, Other Expenses

The following are the details of other expenses for the years ended:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

i 5 |2B0.856) {299,960
L] {12.956) (11962}
[TEATTH {112.808) {120.0:45)
1 i | rep (122.238) {118.657)
it af propedty and equipment [59.001) (58, THY)

warth af ¥ T {1.264) (1. 1643)
Amart cn i 15561 [155.994) (121.94.0)
Publicity, advertising, and public relat (141.714) (1415, i)
Temporary (14.463) {25.193)
Wtilities, cleaning, and security {49.557) {54.621)
ransportation 129.364) (24.114)
Loss ot e of financial asse [1.085) (2. 744)

rom the sale of invest propenty {11,139}
discallaneol {157.334) {201.184)
Tatal 5 (1.149.859) (1.186.763)
(1] The details af taxes and rates are the following:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Assumed Laxes & [5.873) (#5771 .
Tax on fimancial movermenls (70.307}) { #3001}
hdustry and Commeree (94.876) {1010.813)
[Hscountaldle sales tax {97.155) {104.392)
Other taxes [12.645) 113,168
Tatal 5 {280.856) (299,960}

31. Contingencies

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Group was involved in administrative and judicial proceedings
against it; the lawyers in charge of the proceedings quantified the possible obligations based on the
analyses and concepts issued, thus determining the following contingencies:

- Labor Proceedings: As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the amount of the labor lawsuit claims was
$13.279 and 514,053, respectively. There are proceedings with a risk rating of less than fifty percent
(50%) for $8.850 and $7.593, respectively, which have not been provisioned.

- Civil Proceedings: As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the amount of the claims of the judicial
proceedings on account of civil lawsuits was $125.140 and $165.981, respectively. There are
proceedings with a risk rating of less than fifty percent (50%) for $123.866 and 5164.604, respectively,

which have not been provisioned.
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- Administrative Proceedings and Others: In claims for administrative and judicial tax proceedings
initiated by national administrative and tax authorities, in some cases, penalties that the Bank would
incur in the exercise of its activity as a National and Territorial tax collecting entity are established; in
some other cases, higher taxes are determined in its capacity as a taxpayer. As of December 31, 2024
and 2023, The amount of this claim amounted to $45. This proceeding has a one hundred percent
(100%) risk rating; for this reason, it is fully provisioned.

Additionally, at the closing of December 31, 2024, the Bank is involved in legal proceedings facing
administrative acts issued by the DIAN (the National Tax and Customs Administration), with a rating of less
than fifty percent (50%) of probahility issued by independent experts, which should not be provisioned.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, there are no contingencies or proceedings against the subsidiaries

Scotia Securities (Colombia) 5.A. Sociedad Comisionista de Bolsa y Crédito Facil Codensa 5.A. Compaiiia de
financiamiento en liquidacidn,

Credit Commitments

In the course of its normal operations, the Bank grants a guarantee to its customers in which it irrevocably
undertakes to make payments to third parties in the event that the customers fail to comply with their
obligations to such third parties, with the same credit risk of the financial assets in the loan portfolio. The
granting of guarantees and letters of credit is subject to the same loan disbursement approval policies as
regards the credit quality of customers, and guarantees are obtained as deemed appropriate under the
circumstances.

The following are the details of committed credit lines not used:

Decembaer 31, 2004 December 31, 2023
£ 5 1.039.281 2427924

I = of erea ¥ el 18,407 |
v fE mits 275,340 F 15
Credit card i ot used 11.244.949 12,493,483
Cradit opening 1.586.4% 1.918.731
s RS SEPTE DR M0 391.115 1 “:.!" 94
Tokal % 14.705.691 18.436.016

The following are the details of the commitments by type of currency:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
IFrer
' G 14.790.371 17.576.267
LSh 411.006 B5(
LU 4.304 3.605
s B
sl $ 14.705.691 18,436,016
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33. Related Parties

In accordance with IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures, a related party is a persan ar entity that is related to
the entity preparing its financial statements, which may exercise control or joint control aver the reporting

entity, exercise significant influence, or be considered a member of key management personnel of the
reporting entity or a parent of the reporting entity.

The Group considered the participation of related parties in the generation of profits. The existence of
the relationship with related parties, such as shareholders, members of the Board of Directors, and
directors of the Bank and subsidiaries, are clear examples of persans and entities that influence or may
have an effect on the results and financial position of the Group.

In accordance with the above, the related parties for the Group are the following:

Shareholders: sharcholders who individually own more than ten percent (10%) of the Bank's capital stock
and those whose individual shareholding is less than this percentage but in respect of which there are
transactions above five percent {5%) of the technical equity.

Key Management Personnel: Key management personnel includes those persons who have the authority
to plan, direct, and control the Bank's activities directly or indirectly, and the responsibility for doing so,
including any director or manager of the Bank. Legal Representatives, members of the Board of Directors,
the President, and the Vice Presidents are also included.

Subsidiaries: The entities where the Bank has control are Fiduciaria Scotiabank Colpatria 5.A., Scotia
Securitles (Colombia) 5.A., Comislonista de Bolsa, Crédito Ficil Codensa 5.4, Compafiia de Financiamiento
- en liquidacion.

Other Non-Subsidiary Related Entities: The Bank recognizes as non-subsidiary related entities those
companies that are part of the corporate group and maintain a relationship through transactions such as
transfers of resources, services, or obligations.

Transactions with Related Parties: The Bank may enter into transactions, agreements, or contracts with
related parties, understanding that any such transactions shall be carried out at fair values, taking inta
account market conditions and rates,

There were no transactions between the Bank and its related parties during the years ending December
31, 2024 and 2023;

= Loans that entail for the borrower an obligation that does not correspond to the essence or nature of
the loan agreement.

- Loans with interest rates other than those that are ordinarily paid or charged to third parties under
similar term conditions, risk, etc,

- Transactions whose characteristics differ from those carried out with third parties.
The balances of assets and liabilities with related parties are listed below:
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December 31, 2024
Ihe Bank of Mova Mercantil Cither Entities of Group
Scotia Colpatria Colpatria and BNS (1)
Assels
Correspondents 3.677 - -
Forward transactions 381894 . a2
Lezan portfalio 5 32 271
Accounts reorivahble 342 b7 12896
Tatal assets 387,913 99 13259
Uabilities
Deposits and liabilities - 14.913 271.772
Credit lres (2) = - 1,739,606
Interest - 160 14,443
Forward transaciions 344,907 = -
Other accounts payable 8.055 - 1
Bowcls . 267.603 G57.087
Qther lahllities 1.380 - 58374
Tokal liabilkties 354,342 2B82.676 2.679.793
December 31, 2023
The Bank of Mova Mercantil Other Entities of Group
Scotia Colpatria Colpatria and BNS (1)
Assels
Correspondents 4,233 )
Faarward trarsaction 1.371,430 41
Loan portfolio : T8 3891
Accounls receakle 348 108 12 268
Total assets 1.376.011 186 16204
Liabilithes
Deposits and liabdlitics §.582 230,646
Cradit lines {2) 1.h14. 584
Tl 5463 26,970
Forward tronsactions OEd [l
Qiher accounks payable A4.702
Boands 27603 GhEL.097
Other labilities 5827
Total liablities 9ER. 796 281.668 2.547.124

The movements in income and expenses with related parties for the years ended December 31, 2024 and
2023, are listed below:
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December 31, 2024
The Bank of Nova Mercantil Other Entities of Group
Seatia Colpatria Colpatria and BNS (1)

Income and expenses
ward 3 1.842.576 - 33
i 23.444 - 1.6542
iterest and commissions 1.849 300 120,152
Total wncoine H 1.867.859 309 121.827
Interest and commissions 5 {17.404) (28.493) {199,658}
Forward (1.965.782) - -
Othel’ expnses (21.211) - {29.255)
Total expenses 5 [2.0:04.397) {28.493) (228.913)

December 21, 2023
The B.a;-.k of Mova h-'iern:'a.iﬁtll Otras entidades Grupo
Scatia __ Colpatria Colpavria y BNS (1)

ncome and expenses
Ear y o A.440 155 :
Other indorme 1.797 330
Intarest and commissions i 483 147,091
Total Income 5 4.457.157 488 147.421
Interest and commissions 5 (18.2049) [#9.2490] (2773400

Farwiand 13.4:46.324) [633)

Other expenses [32.853) . |19.030]
Tobal expenses o (3.497.986) [29.929) [296.379]

The other entities of the group that presented operations with the Bank Include Acciones y Valores Nuevo Milenio 5.4, AKXA
Colpatria Capitalizadora 5.4, AXA Colpatria Seguros de Vida 3.4, AXA Colpatria Seguros 5.4, Banderate Colombla 545,
Colpatria Medicina Prepagada 5.A., Constructora Colpatrda 5.A., Constructora San Isidro S.A., Emermiédica 5.4, Finanseguro
5.4.5., Gestor Capital 5.A.5, GSG Gestiones y Servicios Globales 545, Inversiones Sequoia Colombia 5.A.5., MC Victorias
Termnpranas 5.A.5., Multiacsiones 5.0.5,, Nixus Capital Humano 5.4.5., Olimpia IT 5.A.5, Scotia Global Business Services Calombia
Zana Franca Empresarial 5.A.5. Scotla Global Business Services Dominican, Scotla Serviclos Corperativos Spa, Scotiabank
Caribean Treasury Limited, Scotiabank Chile, Scotiabank de Costa Rica 5.4, Scotiabank Inverlat 3.4, Scotiabank Panama,
seatiabank Perd, Scotlabank Repiblica Dominicana, Scotiabank Ureguay 5.4, Serviclos Corporativos Scotia 5.4, de CV, Servicios
Regionales Tecnologia Scotiabank Limitada, Scotiabank Unuguay 5.8, Vince Business Colombia 5.A.5.

This corresponds to financing of foreign currency and warking capital operations for USD 392,276,599 and USD 422.177.664, as
of December 31, 2024 and 2023, these operations are negotiated at market rates. The average rate of operations outstanding
25 of December 31, 2024 and 2023, s zero comma forty-gight percent (0,48%) and 2ero comma sixty-one parcent (0,61%),
respectively,

Key Management Personnel: This relates to all transactions between members of the Board of Directors,
legal representatives, and key management personnel. Some members of the Bank's key management
personnel are also members of the key management personnel of the subsidiaries,
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The compensation of key management personnel includes salaries and short-term benefits such as extra
pays and vacations.

For the years ending December 31, 2024 and 2023, the employee benefits for the key management
personnel consist of:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
a - 9,501 12.538
wl VS 5157 5112
Ohver beneefits 28 188
Total H 14.686 18.185

34. Law of Conglamerates

Law 1870 of 2017 regulates the new framework for Financial Conglomerates in Colombia and creates new
instruments for their supervision, understanding, and consolidation.

On February 7, 2019, by resolution of the Financial Superintendency of Colombia (SFC in its initials in
Spanish), Scotiabank Colpatria S.A. was identified as part of a Financial Conglomerate in Colombia and
Bank of Nova Scotia (BNS), as the Financial Holding Company of this conglomerate.

Mow, taking into account that BNS is domiciled and incorporated abroad in accordance with the provisions
of Article 7 of Law 1870, on December 24, 2019, with Resolution 1257 of the SFC, an equivalence
accreditation was carried out between the supervision exercised by the SFC in Colombia and OSFI {Office
of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions) in Canada, excluding Scotiabank from the application of
the provisions set forth in Title | of Law 1870.

The consalidated financial statements and the attached notes were authorized for issuance by the Board
of Directors and the Legal Representative, in accordance with minutes No, 750 of February 19, 2025, to be
submitted to the General Shareholders' Meeting for approval, which may approve or modify them.

36. Subsequent Events

1. Agreement for the Integration of Operations

On January 6, 2025, the Bank was informed of the execution of an agreement between The Bank of Nova
Scotia (Scotiabank), the Bank's parent company, and the majority shareholders of Banco Davivienda S.A.,
to integrate the Colombian operations of Scotiabank Colpatria S.A. with those of Davivienda S.A.

As part of the reported agreement, Mercantil Colpatria will sell its interest in the Bank to Scotiabank, prior
to or in parallel with the integration process of Scotiabank Colpatria 5.A. and Davivienda 5.A. The
agreement also includes the integration of Scotiabank's current operations in Costa Rica and Panama with
Davivienda.

(lemencia Paredes Tejada
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This operation is subject to regulatory approval by the Financial Superintendency of Colombia, as well as
the regulators of the other countries involved, and is expected to take up to 12 months from the execution
of the agreement, during which time each entity will continue to operate independently, without affecting
the conditions and services of the products offered by each bank.

2. Decisions of the Shareholders’ Meeting
a. Capitalization Plan

In an extraordinary meeting of the General Shareholders' Meeting held on February 10, 2025, it was
decided to decree the issuance and placement of up to eleven thousand four hundred and forty-six million
eight hundred and three thousand three hundred and seventy-eight (11.446.803.378) common shares of
the Bank, an which it was authorized to receive an advance for the subscription of these shares,

b. Issuance of Bonds

Likewise, the General Shareholders' Meeting approved the issuance of Subordinated Bonds through a
private offering, which has the following characteristics:

- Amount: Up to =~ 5250000,

= Rate Type: Fixed Rate — Semiannual Coupon (between fourteen comma five percent {14,5%) and
sixteen comma five percent (16,5%) EA, subject to market conditions).

- Maturity: 10 years.

- Target of the Offering: Private Offering directed to specified investors (less than 99 persons) including
the possibility of offering them to Scotiabank or an affiliate or subsidiary of Scotiabank,

The issuance will be subject to the corresponding corporate approvals and the corresponding formalities,

THIS IS A COMPLETE AND ACCURATE TRANSLATION OF THE ORIGINAL DOCUMENT THAT | HAD IN MY HAND. FOR
COMPARISON PURPOSES, A COPY THEREOF IS KEPT IN THIS OFFICE.

Bogota, June 19, 2025
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